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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Results Zi5

For the year ended 31 December

HE+ZA=T-ALEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

~2-i% —T-mE “T-=f S I S

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT

Operating income EEMA 817,970 844,469 803,448 1225525 1314753

Operating profit EEHE 67,320 54,929 118,196 107,190 208,651

Profit before taxation flEas 73,796 57,951 128,055 112,840 213,095

Net profit for the year FHE 73,182 58,399 127,530 110,906 209,559

Attrioutable to: GER

Eouity shareholders of RRAMEE

the Company 73,182 58,399 127,530 110,906 208,636

Non-controlling interests PHHER - - - - 923

REARF (1) RMBARW0190T RVBARMH0.146T RMBAR®03127T RMBAXH0.2677T  RMBAKRH04897

it

Basic earnings per share (Note)

Note: Basic earnings per share was adjusted after the share consolidation on the basis of every 10 shares with a nominal value
of RMBO0.10 each be consolidated into 1 consolidated share with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each be effective on 28
January 2013.

7 BREFRBMEEAR-Z—=F-AZ1+TN\BEBZEREEARBCI0TZETREOEH REREEARE.00T.2
— A B 2 EORAERR A & 01 9% -
Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
ELAFRRELET

(AE#HFT)
(RMB’000)
250,000 F - — - — — - — ————— - — — — — — — — — —

200000 F——-| - ————=— - - - - - - - - - - — —

180,000 F——| b-——-—-----—-—-—-—-———-—-—-—-

100,000 |~ — — L - --- - -

50,000 |~ — — | --20---BEF - - N

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
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Assets and Liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company
FLFIRREGER

BELE

BEAE

ARAfEE
el

HEBRE L

(A

BERAR

2015
—E-1%
RMB'000
ARBTT

2,217,914

655,658

1,562,256

2014
“E-mF
RMB'000
AREFT
2,157,629

617,982

1,639,647

Financial Highlights
MBRE

Rt=A=t+-H

2013
“E-=F
RMB'000
ARETT

2,442,161

906,525

1,536,636

As at 31 December

2012
“E-—F
RMB'000
AREBTT

2,202,496

773,940

1,428,556

2011
“F——F
RMB'000
ARBTT
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845,091

1,388,673
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Chairman’s Statement

EERBREE

| am pleased to submit to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015.

Annual Results and Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately RMB817,970,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015 as compared to
approximately RMB844,469,000 last year, representing a
decrease of approximately 3.1%. The gross profit margin was
approximately 23% for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2014 was also
approximately 23%. The profit attributable to equity Shareholders
was approximately RMB73,182,000 for the year under review,
representing an increase of approximately RMB14,783,000
over the previous year of approximately RMB58,399,000. Basic
earnings per share was approximately RMBO0.19.

The decrease in turnover of the Group was mainly due to the
decrease in international market price of juice concentrate.
Adversely affected by the overall international market, the
international market price of the juice concentrate industry in
China continued to drop in 2015, which in turn had the impact
on the export price of the Group.

Under the trend of depreciation of Renminbi against US dollar,
the Group has enhanced its cooperation with domestic renowned
financial institutions to appropriately reduce the US dollar loans
portfolio. The directors of the Company (“Directors”) believe that
lowering the proportion of US dollar loans can reduce the Group’s
exchange rate risk and finance costs, and can better facilitate its
business development. In expanding the domestic market sales, the
Group continued to maintain close and stable business relationships
with certain renowned beverage manufacturers in China and has
developed new good customers with broadened sales channels.
The market share of the Company in terms of sales volume in the
domestic market also increased. For research and development,
the Group continued to undertake the research project under
the National Science and Technology Support Program of the
“12th Five-Year Plan” on the “Research and Industrialization
Demonstration of Key Technologies on Apple Comprehensive
Processing”, accomplished the research project under the National
Agricultural Fund Transfer Program 2013 on “Efficient Processing

6 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & IFZEFNRARHERATE
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Technology Integration and Industrialization Demonstration of
Apple Juice Concentrate”, Shandong Innovation Project 2013
on “Construction of Professional Information System for Apple
Processing and Optimization and Application Demonstration of
Apple Juice Processing Technology”, the International Scientific
and Technological Cooperation Project 2013 of Yantai city on
“Research on Critical Technology for Processing Peach Puree”,
and acceptance of “Research on Key Processing Technology of
Highly Enriched Apple Puree” of the Science and Technology
Development Plan 2014 of Yantai city; applied for three national
invention patents, and obtained national authorization of one
invention patent.

Analysis of Industry and Our Market Share

In 2015, the total volume of China’s apple juice concentrate
exports was approximately 473,800 tonnes, representing an
increase of 4% as compared to approximately 455,800 tonnes
in 2014. Although the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry has
only begun mass production since the late 90’s of last century,
the industry grew at a tremendous rate and has claimed a world
market share of over 50% within just a decade, owing to the
abundant apple supplies in the PRC. Excluding China, Europe is
the second main production site of apple juice concentrate in the
world. Hence the export volume and price of the China’s apple
juice concentrate is affected not only by global economy, but also
the production and sales of apple juice concentrate in Europe. In
the first half of 2013, since the global economy was growing in
a slow pace, the demand of juice market became weak and the
international market price of apple juice concentrate decreased
significantly. In the second half of 2013, the international market
price of apple juice concentrate gradually became stable and was
recovered to a reasonable level. In 2014, due to the increasing
competition of producers of apple juice concentrates in Europe
and low growth pace of global economy, the international market
price of apple juice concentrate decreased continuously until 2015.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERBREE

Since apple juice itself is nutritious, people’s increasing pursuit
for green and healthy food is bound to bring more rooms for
development for the apple juice market. Currently, 80% of the
world’s apple juice consumption market is concentrated in the
developed countries with solid demands and steady growth. In
these major consumer countries, we already have relatively fixed
market shares and customer base. Meanwhile, we believe that
the dense population in the developing countries and people’s
increasing attention on dietary nutrition, natural apple juice will
undoubtedly be one of the best options. This gradually maturing
consumer market will surely become a take-off area of future
apple juice consumption. In the long run, healthy and pure juice
will become more and more popular.

Being a leader in the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry
and through our proactive and visionary leadership, we have
gradually expanded the market shares of our products and will
seek to secure our leading position in the industry for more rapid
and better development.

Prospects and Outlook

As a mild raw material, apple juice concentrate can be mixed with
different fruit and vegetable juice, to fulfill the market requirements
like low cost and good taste. Therefore the demand of apple juice
concentrate is solid and steady.

With the rising demand brought by the global economic recovery,
we expect both the export volume and export price of apple juice
will steadily stabilise at a rational and normal level. In addition, with
the gradual implementation of specific measures favourable to the
agricultural industry under the PRC government’s macroeconomic
policies as well as the gradual improvement of various relevant PRC
laws and regulations, the Group will enjoy better development and
financing opportunities. Aiming at enlarging its business scale, the
Group will strive to further enlarge its market, enhance productivity,
diversify products, expand sales, disperse markets and to develop
financing channels, etc.
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In terms of juice production capacity, volatility in the industry will
force some of the small and medium domestic enterprises out of
the market. Moderate reshuffling in the industry will favour industry
consolidation and improve industry competition. The Group aims
to further increase its annual juice concentrate production capacity
and to strengthen its leading position in the industry by targeting
small and medium enterprises in the industry, both domestic and
abroad, through merger and acquisitions and to rationally adjust
the Group’s existing production capacities according to changes
in the sources of raw materials and to extend the research on
different types of juice concentrate and production capacity. On
domestic market sales, as the domestic consumer market for apple
juice concentrate gradually expands, the Group will continue to
maintain good business relationships with existing customers in
the coming year while actively exploring new customers through
our prime product quality and comprehensive services, with a view
to opening a new page in our domestic market sales. On research
and development, in 2016, as the presiding unit, the Group will
continue to undertake the research project under the National
Science and Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-Year
Plan” on the “Demonstration on the Research and Industrialization
of Key Technologies on Apple Comprehensive Processing”, and
its acceptance.

At present, the Group has a sound financial base. The Group
is also well positioned to take advantage of the State’s policy
on development of new villages and agriculture with a view
to developing rural villages, enriching farmers and expanding
domestic demands. The board of Directors (the “Board”) and
| have full confidence in the Group’s future development. Our
employees will continue to support the Group and to contribute
to the Group’s continuous and steady development.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERBREE

Dividend

The Board proposes a final dividend of approximately RMBO0.05
per share for the financial year 2015 in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Appreciation

During the reporting period, although the international market
price of apple juice concentrate decreased, due to the decrease
in finance cost and increase in investment income, both the
net profit and net profit margin of the Company still increased
significantly. The Directors strongly believe that the Company will
have even more development opportunities in 2016, given that
some small and medium domestic enterprises have been forced
out of the market and the whole international market is gradually
recovering. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all the investors, loyal customers and suppliers
for their appreciation and unfailing support to the Group.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An
Chairman

16 March 2016

*

For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

Results

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s turnover
decreased to approximately RMB817,970,000 as compared to
approximately RMB844,469,000 in 2014, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB26,499,000 or 3.1%. The Group’s turnover
was principally derived from the manufacture and sale of apple
juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, bio-feedstuff and related
products. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the sale of apple
juice concentrate was approximately 82% of the total sale of the
Group (2014: approximately 81%). The decrease in turnover was
mainly due to the decrease in international market selling price of
the apple juice concentrate in the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s gross profit
was approximately RMB189,351,000 and the gross profit margin
remained approximately 23%. For the corresponding period in
2014, the gross profit was approximately RMB199,592,000 and
gross profit margin was also approximately 23%.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s net profit
(i.e. the profit for the year attributable to equity Shareholders of
the Company) increased to approximately RMB73,182,000 as
compared to approximately RMB58,399,000 for the corresponding
period in 2014, representing an increase of approximately
RMB14,783,000 or 25%. The increase in net profit was mainly
attributable to the decrease in finance cost and increase in
investment income.

Distribution Costs and Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group incurred
distribution costs of approximately RMB49,985,000, as compared
to approximately RMB49,942,000 in 2014, representing a slight
increase of approximately RMB43,000. The Group’s distribution
costs mainly included transport, import and export service charge,
export inspection and marketing expenses. Such slight increase
was mainly due to the rise in sales volume.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRE DN

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group incurred
administrative expenses of approximately RMB49,561,000 as
compared to approximately RMB50,421,000 in 2014, representing
a slight decrease of approximately RMB860,000 or 2%. Such
slight decrease was mainly attributable to the tightened control
of administrative expenses by the Group.

Net Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the net finance costs of
the Group were approximately RMB23,392,000, as compared to
approximately RMB37,963,000 for the corresponding period in
2014, representing a decrease of approximately RMB14,571,000
or 38%. Such decrease was attributable to five continuous
decrease in domestic interest rate in the PRC in 2015 and the
increase in exchange gain.

Investment Income

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the investment income
recognized by the Group was approximately RMB7,160,000 as
compared to approximately RMB2,731,000 in 2014, representing a
significant increase of RMB4,429,000 or 162%. Such increase was
mainly attributable to two areas: investment gain of approximately
RMB2,938,000 from sale of 50% equity interest in a joint venture
company of the Group, Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co.,
Ltd., in 2015; and gain from investment in wealth management
products of approximately RMB2,512,000.

Income Tax

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the production of
condensed juice and bio-feedstuff by the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries was continuously recognized as primary processing
of agricultural produce under the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC and therefore was exempt from the PRC income tax.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

Acquisition of Liquan Yitong

On 5 August 2015, Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd. (“Baishui Andre”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Yantai Yitong Thermoelectricity Co., Ltd.
and Yantai Anlin Fruit Processing Co., Ltd., (collectively known
as “Vendors”) pursuant to which Baishui Andre agreed to acquire
from Vendors the entire equity interest in Liquan Yitong Juice Co.,
Ltd. (“Liquan Yitong”). On 11 November 2015, Baishui Andre
and the Vendors entered into a supplemental agreement to the
equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the consideration
was amended to RMB104,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$129,382,716). Liquan Yitong is principally engaged in the
businesses of production, processing and sales of fruit and
vegetable juice, apple juice and pear juice. Liquan is the county
with plenty of fruit supply in the PRC. The Board believes that
the acquisition of Liquan Yitong will increase the returns to the
Shareholders and achieve better social benefits. Liquan Yitong is
currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Disposal of 50% Interest in Yantai Tongli

On 29 September 2015, (i) the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Century
Co., Ltd., and (ii) Andre Juice Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into another equity transfer agreement
with Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Century Co., Ltd.. Pursuant to
the agreements, each of the Company and Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
agreed to sell its 25% equity interest in Yantai Tongli Beverage
Industries Co., Ltd. (“Yantai Tongli”) to Uni-President Shanghai
Pearly Century Co., Ltd.. The Group did not have any interest in
Yantai Tongli after such disposal.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRE DN

The Group has been focusing on and devoting resources to its
core business of manufacturing and sale of juice concentrate.
Since Yantai Tongli is principally engaged in the businesses of
manufacturing and sale of beverage, such disposal represents an
opportunity for the Group to realise its investments in non-core
business and redirect the relevant resources to the Group’s core
business, which is expected to achieve better development of
the Group and increase returns to the Shareholders. Also such
disposal will strengthen the Company’s working capital and will
help to satisfy its further capital expenditure requirement.

Stabilising Market Coverage

During 2015, by adapting to the market demand and leveraging on
its advanced production technology, superb product quality and
comprehensive customer services, the Group maintained steady
growth in markets sales. With years of continuous efforts, the
Group has already expanded its sales network to major countries
and regions in the world, including the US, Japan, Europe, Oceania
and African countries and PRC market.

Expanding Domestic Sales Market

The Group continued to maintain close and stable business
relationships with certain renowned processors and beverage
manufacturers in the PRC and has developed new good customers
with broadened sales channels.

Optimisation of Customer Base

While expanding its market places and market share, the Group
also leveraged on the prime quality of its products to optimise its
profile of customer base continuously. Currently, the customer base
of the Group mainly comprises renowned beverage manufacturers
of the world.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Research and Development

The Group continued to undertake the research project under
the National Science and Technology Support Program of the
“12th Five-Year Plan” on the “Research and Industrialization
Demonstration of Key Technologies on Apple Comprehensive
Processing”, accomplished the research project under the National
Agricultural Fund Transfer Program 2013 on “Efficient Processing
Technology Integration and Industrialization Demonstration of
Apple Juice Concentrate”, Shandong Innovation Project 2013
on “Construction of Professional Information System for Apple
Processing and Optimization and Application Demonstration of
Apple Juice Processing Technology”, the International Scientific
and Technological Cooperation Project 2013 of Yantai city on
“Research on Critical Technology for Processing Peach Puree”,
and acceptance of “Research on Key Processing Technology of
Highly Enriched Apple Puree” of the Science and Technology
Development Plan 2014 of Yantai city; applied for three national
invention patents; and obtained national authorization of one
invention patent.

Future Prospects

Market Expansion and Product Diversification

Currently the Group has maintained relatively stable market
penetration and customers groups in major consumer markets
of apple juice concentrate in the world, namely the US, European,
Oceania, African countries and Japan. Save as stabilizing the
existing market penetration and customers groups, the Company
will put more efforts in the development of various emerging
markets in the forthcoming year, with a view to breaking through
these markets. On the other hand, the Company has in recent years
been committed to the exploration of the market opportunities for
its new products and niche products as well as the development
of new customer groups. The Company will also further expand
the types of niche products. This will satisfy both the needs of the
market and our customers, as well as fulfill our target of diversified
product expansion.

Further Exploitation of the Domestic Market

As the domestic consumer market for apple juice concentrate
further expands, the Group will continue to maintain good business
relationships with existing customers in the coming year while
actively exploring new customers through our prime product quality
and comprehensive services, with a view to opening a new page
in our domestic market sales.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Continue the Development of Traceability and Farm
Management Improvement Linkages Project

In the coming year, the Group will more strictly implement the
GLOBALGAP standardisation in the regulation and development
of existing and newly established recognition bases. Improvements
will be made in the areas of production, management, storage
and sales, etc. to generate more revenue from the GLOBALGAP
bases, with a view to building up the modelling status so that
surrounding fruityards will follow the GLOBALGAP standardisation.

Develop New Financing Channels

The Group will closely monitor the trend of Renminbi exchange
rate against US dollar and adjust the proportion of Renminbi and
US dollar loans. The Group will continue to actively engage in
cooperation with domestic and international financial institutions
to diversify its financing channels and increase the variety of
financing products, in order to reduce the Group’s exchange rate
risk and finance cost, improve capital structure and facilitate better
business development.

Research and Development

The Group will commit to act as the presiding unit, undertake
the research project under the National Science and Technology
Support Program of the “12th Five-Year Plan” on the “Demonstration
on the Research and Industrialization of Key Technologies on Apple
Comprehensive Processing” and its acceptance.

Charge of Assets

Except as disclosed in Note V.15 to the Financial Statements, the
Group has no assets charged as at 31 December 2015.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The operating revenue of the Group is partly denominated in US
dollars. It is the practice of the Group to convert its operating
revenue denominated in US dollars to Renminbi to finance its
operating expenses and capital requirements. However, the results
of operations and the financial position of the Group may be
affected by any changes in the exchange rates.

On the other hand, the conversion of Renminbi denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Capital Commitment

For the capital commitment of the Group, please refer to Note
Xll.1 to the Financial Statements.

Capital Structure

The H shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM”) on 22 April 2003. On 19 January
2011, the H shares were transferred and listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (the “Main Board”) and de-listed from
GEM. The capital of the Company comprises only ordinary shares
(comprising domestic shares of the Company (the “Domestic
Shares”) and H Shares). Details of the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note V.22 to the Financial Statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRE DN

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally financed its operations and investing activities
by internally generated financial resources and loans from banks.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total outstanding bank
loans of approximately RMB485,170,000, all of which was short
term bank loan. As at 31 December 2015, short-term bank loans
of RMB404,000,000 bore interest at rates ranging from 4.01%
to 5.61% per annum. Short-term bank loans of RMB32,468,000
bore fixed interest rate of 1.93% per annum. Short-term bank
loans of RMB48,702,000 bore floating interest rate of LIBOR+2%.
In the year 2015, the Group repaid on time the loans due for
repayment. The Directors consider that the Group has sufficient
financial resources to meet its ongoing operation requirements.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB106,373,000. The Group’s gearing ratio as at
31 December 2015 was approximately 30% (2014: approximately
29%) which is calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities of
approximately RMB655,658,000 (2014: RMB617,982,000) by the
Group’s total assets of approximately RMB2,217,914,000 (2014
RMB2,157,629,000).

18  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. BAILEZENETREOERDT

RDBERRMERE

AEE-—RUARNHABERKLBITEER
HERENIGETSH cES - RZE—RF
TZA=T—H - AKEHREECE
FIRTTER@EL B AR 485,170,000
T EHAEEBER R —AHF
+-A=Z+—B BEHETERAR
¥ 404,000,000 7T 7 F F & 2 4.01% &
561% T % @ WEIRITERNAARE
32,468,0007T 2 [EEFF*E A1.98% ° %2
HIRTTEF# B AR 48,702,0007T 2 %
BFFEBEBRERBFNEL2% - =F
—hAFFEREESIZBEEIHER
EERE  AEEEBREZHNUBKER

MERELERE -

BFRARLLE

R—_E—RE+-_A=+—H K
SEH 2R REEEVHAARE
106,373,0007T - RZE—HF+=A=
+—H  AEBCZEEABELREDHA30%
(ZZ—V04F : £929%) » VIR AEE 24
B EYHARKB55658000L( —ZF—
F: ARM617,982,0007T) B AEEELD
ANR¥E2,217,914,0007t( ZZ—PU4F : A
R#2,157,629,0007C )51 & -



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang An (%), aged 583, is Chairman of the Board and
an executive Director. Mr. Wang has been a Director since 26
June 2001. Mr. Wang is a well known entrepreneur in the PRC.
Mr. Wang has received the following awards/recognitions: one
of the top ten Outstanding Youths Entrepreneurs in Shandong
Province, the medal of “Labor Model of the Nation”, an Advanced
Individual of the United Front (#t&; X4t 5L#E A ) , an Outstanding
Contributor to the Development of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics in Shandong Province ([LIRAESFHELEHTE
FEEHEERE), aTop Ten Outstanding and Influential Individual
in the Agricultural Industry of Shandong Province ([LIE& & ¥ 7&E
EZRAFENTAEEAY), a Star of Hope in the 30 Years’ of
Reform and Opening in Yantai (A& ERB=TF [FEZ£]),
an Influential and Outstanding Private Entrepreneur in Yantai to
Commemorate the 60th Anniversary of the Establishment of the
People’s Republic of China (422 KL 60EFHERAEFR
BZER), one of the Top Ten Influential Persons of the Time
Among the Top 60 Advanced Individuals in the Development of
Socialism in Yantai of Shandong Province (IR (f8&) & ¥
BEANTEREAY HELEEREZEAY) , and is a representative
of Shandong Province to the National People’s Congress (AKX
AFK) . Mr. Wang graduated from the Institute of the PRC Central
Communist Party (FREtAREREFERT) in June 1994. He was
the general manager of Yangma Resort (BB &E R for four
years before joining the Group. Mr. Wang has the following social
services appointments: member of China Business Advisory
Council (B TEEEEEE) , member of the 1st Session of the
Council of Yantai Charity Federation A& EZ=REFE—mIEE
GIEE) . Mr. Wang An is a director of China Pingan Investment
Holdings Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (ILE
Z{ER|EE AR AR, which are substantial shareholders of the
Company. He joined the Company in March 1996 and has since
been involved in the concentrated juice production industry. Mr.
Wang is responsible for the overall management of the Group.

*
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EES EESkeREEE

Mr. Zhang Hui (3%#%), aged 43, is an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been a
Director since 26 June 2001. He was Deputy General Manager
of Muping Foodstuff Industrial Company Limited (¥ &R T %A
FRA7]) and Muping material (Z2#)%& ) before joining the Group.
Mr. Zhang joined the Company in December 1998 and has been
involving in the concentrated juice production industry since then.
Mr. Zhang has been Supervisor of the Production Department,
General Manager of a subsidiary of the Company and Executive
President of the Company. Mr. Zhang has received the following
awards: Outstanding Member of the Communist Party ({85 &
#8) of Muping District, The 9th Session Top Ten Outstanding
Youth Entrepreneurs of Yantai city (FAfEAET T AEESFL
%) and the “May 1st Labor Award” of Yantai city. In March
2007, he was appointed as a member of the standing committee
of the Fruit and Vegetable Processing Division (SR INLIHE) of
the Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology. During his
tenure as General Manager of Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.* (F7K
ZEMREFTAR AT, he was appointed as a representative of
the Communist Party in Weinan city (FFiEm M ER K) and was
a standing member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee of Baishui County. Currently, Mr. Zhang assists Mr.
Wang An in the overall management of the Group. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Shandong Agriculture University with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and Management (majoring in corporate
management) in July 1997. Mr. Zhang is an engineer.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (E%:##) , aged 39, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Mr. Wang is a postgraduate and a certified
public accountant in the PRC. Mr. Wang formerly worked as an
accountant in Yantai Yangma North Hotel (A& EEILH AH
J&) . Mr. Wang joined the Company in February 2001 and worked
as accountant, chief accountant, deputy manager, manager
in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the
Financial Controller of the Group and the secretary to the Board.

*
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Tsung-Yi (BI5R'E) , aged 49, is a non-executive Director.
He has been a non-executive Director of the Company since 22
June 2009. Mr. Liu is the vice president of the Business Integration
Division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp., a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange. He joined Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. in July 1996, and was subsequently appointed as the head
of its Investment Analysis Section. In 2000, he was transferred
to President International Development Corporation, and was
responsible for its investments. He has also been the manager
of the Treasury Division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp. since
2004. Currently, Mr. Liu is also the president/director/supervisor
of certain member companies of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.,
amongst which Tait Marketing and Distribution Co., Ltd. is a
company listed on the Taiwan Gretai Securities Market. Mr. Liu
has over 20 years of experience in banking, corporate finance,
M&A, private equity, and business strategy. Before joining Uni-
President Enterprises Corp., he was the head of the Credit and
Loan Unit of Taipei branch of Cosmos Commercial Bank. Mr. Liu
obtained a Bachelor of Law degree (majoring in Economics) from
National Chengchi University in 1989, and a Master of Business
Administration degree from National Taiwan University in 1991.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Gong Fan (B2/1) , aged 51, is an independent non-executive
Director since 18 January 2011. Mr. Gong graduated from Xi'an
Jiaotong University (FA% 2 AZ) in July 1987 with a Bachelor’s
degree in Industrial Management Engineering (TEEIETH2) . Mr.
Gong has over 20 years of experience in finance and is a certified
public accountant and a certified appraiser in the PRC. Mr. Gong
worked in the Beihai Finance Bureau in Guangxi Province (&7
1EE M) from 1987 to 1992; and Beihai Accounting Firm (
1 HEIE$AT) and Zhong He Accounting Firm (R & 5HAISE
T%FT) from 1993 to 2000 as a registered accountant. Mr. Gong
was Chief Finance Officer of the Company and Secretary of the
Board from 2001 to 2003, a director and Chief Financial Officer
of Henan Ping Gao Electric Co., Ltd.* CAEFaERBRHBERA
@)) from 2003 to 2004. He has been Chief Investment Officer of
Creat Tian Cheng Investment Holding Co., Ltd.* (R K& &%
A& EBRAF]) since 2005.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Mr. Chow Kam Hung (E$%%) , aged 56, is an independent non-
executive Director since 18 January 2011. Mr. Chow graduated from
St. Cloud State University, U.S.A. in May 1986 with a Bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering, and Newport University, U.S.A. in
December 1998 with a Master of Business Administration degree.
Mr. Chow has over 20 years of experience in both overseas
and PRC investments. Mr. Chow was General Manager of the
Hong Kong company of Creat Group, a China based investment
company which has investments in finance, manufacturing, real
estate and resource sectors, from 1996 to 2014. He was also
Chief Operation Officer of Creat Resources Holdings Limited, an
Australia based resources investment and development company,
from July 2010 to August 2013.

Mr. Li Tong Ning (Z[F)%), aged 57, is an independent non-
executive Director since 27 June 2013. He is a member of
the Communist Party. Mr. Li has around 35 years of working
experience. Mr. Li obtained a college degree in economic
management from Party School of the Shandong Provincial
Committee of C.P.C. in June 2000. Mr. Li worked at Muping
Foreign Trade Bureau from December 1978 to April 1992. He
worked as the manager of Muping Foreign Trade Chemical
Packaging Import and Export Company from April 1992 to April
1994. Mr. Li worked as a deputy general manager of Muping
Foreign Trade Company from April 1994 to June 2005. He is the
chairman of Hailin Trade Co., Ltd. since June 2005.

Supervisors

Mr. Wang Chun Tang (F&%), aged 62, is an independent
representative in the Supervisory Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wang has been a Supervisor since 28 May 2007. Mr. Wang
was an officer of the Communications Bureau of Muping, Yantai,
Shandong Province from May 1973 to December 1987. He studied
Economics and Management in the Communist Party School of
Shandong Province from September 1995 to December 1997
and obtained the graduation certificate issued by the Communist
Party School of Shandong Province on 30 December 1997.
From January 1988 to January 2006, Mr. Wang was Supervisor,
Deputy Chief and Managing Deputy Chief of the Publishing
Office of Muping, Yantai, Shandong Province. From January
2006 to January 2009, Mr. Wang was a member of the Executive
Committee of the Yantai Muping National People’s Congress.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Xu Jiang (&) , aged 62, is the staff representative supervisor
of the Company since 4 February 2013. He has around 40 years
of working experience. He obtained a junior school diploma
from Shandong Muping District Gaoling County Dongtun Village
Chekuang Union Middle School in September 1970. From May
1992 to July 1997, he served as the manager of the project
department of China North Industries Corporation Yangma
Resort. From August 1997 to November 1998, he served as a
deputy general manager of China North Industries Corporation
Yangma North Hotel. From December 1998 to June 2002, he
served as a deputy general manager of Henghua Real Estate
Company. From July 2002 to December 2003, he served as a
deputy director of the general office of the Company. He was
the manager of the project department, the chairman of the
labour union of the Company and the deputy head of office of
the Company from January 2004 to March 2014,

Mr. Zhang Suoping (5%F7), aged 63, is an independent
representative in the Supervisory Committee of the Company.
He has around 35 years of working experience. He obtained a
diploma from Shandong Rushan Normal School in August 1975.
From November 1970 to August 1973, Mr. Zhang served as a
teacher of Yantai Muping District Shuidao County Qinghushan
Village Primary School. From August 1975 to August 1986, Mr.
Zhang served as a teacher of Muping No.2 Middle School.
From June 1987 to March 1990, he served as the head of the
business department of Muping Aquatic Products Company and
the manager of the store of Muping Aquatic Products Company
from March 1990 to January 1996. He joined in the Company in
May 2005. He was the general manager of Xuzhou Andre Juice
Co., Ltd. from March 2008 to December 2013.

Senior Management

Mr. Wang An (£%) , aged 53, is Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Please refer to his biography under the sub-
section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Zhang Hui (58#) , aged 43, is an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Please refer to his biography
under the sub-section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (E%:#%), aged 39, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Please refer to his biography under the sub-
section headed “Directors”.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EE EEkEREERE

Ms. Zhao Jing (&), aged 50, is a vice president of the
Company. Ms. Zhao graduated from Shandong Worker’s
University of International Business and Economics and obtained
a Bachelor’s degree in Foreign Business Management in July
1990. She worked in the Foreign Trade Investment Center of
the Foreign Economics and Trade Commission of Muping from
January 1992 to February 1992; Canadian Naisen (Tianjin) Steel
Products Co., Ltd. from 1992 to 1997; and in the Company as a
vice president responsible for sales and market promotion from
1997 to August 2003; and Shandong Freda Biopharm Co., Ltd.
from September 2003 to December 2010. Ms. Zhao rejoined the
Company in January 2011 and is currently responsible for both
domestic and overseas sales of the Group.

Mr. Qu Kun Sheng (FIE4) , aged 47, a university graduate with
a Bachelor’s degree in Agriculture, is a vice president and the
chief engineer of the Company. Mr. Qu joined the Company in
1997 to engage in manufacturing technologies development,
quality control and on-going supervision of production activities.
He was the two-time winner of the 3rd Class Award of Science
Advancement of Shandong Province (IURARHSES =) |
the winner of the 1st Class Award of Science Advancement in
Yantai City (JAEMEHLH#ES —F1E) and the winner of the 3rd
Class Award of Science Advancement in Yantai City (R&m Rl
R F=%4%) . Currently, he is responsible for the technology,
research and development of the Group.

Mr. Huang Lian Bo (Zi#)%) , aged 40, a college graduate, is a
vice president of the Company. Mr. Huang joined the Company
in 1997 and formerly worked as production line leader, workshop
supervisor, manager in quality control and general manager of
a subsidiary of the Company. He currently assists the chief
executive officer in supervising the production of the Group.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Man Yee (fh&1%) , aged 44, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. Ms. Ng graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and obtained her Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration in 1994. She is a fellow Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Chartered Accountant of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Ms. Ng has over 20 years of experience
in the field of auditing and accounting.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Continuous efforts are made to
review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and procedures in
light of changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). During the year ended
31 December 2015, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions of the CG Code, except for the following deviations:

According to Code A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. The Company is negotiating with the relevant
insurance agents about the liability insurance for the Directors and
will arrange such insurance cover in due course.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for formulating the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i) To develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements
(where applicable);

(iv) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees of
the Group and Directors; and

(v) To review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure requirements in the corporate governance
report.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The Board

The Company is managed by its Board, which has the responsibility
for providing leadership and control of the Company. Through the
Board, the Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs.

The Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised a total
of seven Directors, including three executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Wang An (chairman), Mr. Zhang Hui (chief executive officer)
and Mr. Wang Yan Hui; one non-executive Director, namely, Mr.
Liu Tsung-Yi; and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Gong Fan, Mr. Chow Kam Hung and Mr. Li Tong Ning.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years until the conclusion of the
Company’s annual general meeting to be held in the year of 2016.
All Directors are appointed by the Shareholders at the general
meeting with formal letters of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions relating to their appointments.

None of the Directors or Supervisors had entered into any
service contract with the Company which is not terminable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses a wide
range of skills and experience. They serve the important function
of providing adequate monitoring and balances for safeguarding
the interests of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that they can make independent judgment
effectively and fulfill the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 19
to 22 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board reviews the performance of the operating divisions
with reference to their respective agreed budgets and business
objectives on a regular basis and also exercises a number of
reserved powers which include:

- convening general meetings and reporting on their work
at such meetings;

- implementing resolutions passed at general meetings;

- formulating the Company’s business plans and investment
proposals;

- preparing the Company’s annual financial budget and final
accounts;

- formulating proposals for profit distribution and for setting
off of accumulated losses of the Company;

- formulating proposals for increase or reduction in registered
capital and the issuance of debt securities of the Company;

- formulating proposals for merger, demerger or dissolution
of the Company;

- formulating the internal management structure of the
Company;

- appointing or dismissing the chief executive officer of
the Company, appointing or dismissing the deputy
general manager, chief financial officer and other senior
management at the recommendation of the chief executive
officer of the Company and determining matters relating to
their remuneration;

- formulating the basic management system of the Company;
- formulating proposals for amendments to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”);

and

- carrying out other powers conferred by general meetings.
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The Board is also responsible for the integrity of financial information
and the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal control
and risk management processes. The Board is also responsible
for preparing the financial accounts of the Company. The day-
to-day management of the Company’s business is delegated to
the chief executive officer and the management. The functions
of the Board and the powers delegated to the chief executive
officer are reviewed periodically by the Board to ensure that they
remain appropriate.

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the
financial statements of the Company on a going-concern basis.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
chairman is separate from that of the chief executive officer.
The chairman of the Company is Mr. Wang An. The chairman
is responsible for convening and holding general meetings and
Board meetings, tracking the progress of implementation of the
resolutions passed by the Board, signing the securities issued
by the Company and carrying out other powers conferred by
the Board. Mr. Zhang Hui is the chief executive officer of the
Company. The chief executive officer and the management are
responsible for the production, operation and management of
the Company, implementation of the resolutions passed by the
Board, implementation of annual business plans and investment
proposals, formulation of the internal management structure, the
basic management system and the specific governance of the
Company. In particular the chief executive officer is responsible
for proposing to the Board for appointment or dismissal of
deputy general manager, chief financial officer and other senior
management of the Company, appointment or dismissal of other
management staff whose appointment and dismissal does not
require approval from the Board and carrying out other powers
conferred by the Board and the Articles of Association.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development
Upon appointment to the Board, each newly-appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director
to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition,
the Company has been encouraging the Directors and senior
executives to enrol in a wide range of professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance or act and corporate governance practices organised
by professional bodies and independent auditors so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; the company secretary
also organises and arranges seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to assist
them in performing their duties. During the year under review, the
company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Man Yee Karen, has
completed over 15 hours professional training.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
compliance with the requirement of the CG Code on continuous
professional development during the year under review:

Executive Directors BITES

Wang An T

Zhang Hui SR ¥

Wang Yan Hui T thiE
Non-executive Directors FERITESE

Liu Tsung-Yi 2RE
Independent non-executive Directors BIUERITES
Gong Fan BN

Chow Kam Hung A8

Li Tong Ning A=
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Board Meetings

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role,
setting agenda for Board meetings and taking into account any
matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agenda and related Board papers are circulated at least 7 days
before the time of a Board or committee meeting where possible.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
chairman also ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely
and clear information. Directors are encouraged to update their
skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Company through their
initial induction, ongoing participation at Board and committee
meetings, and through meeting key people at head office and in
the divisions.

All Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
who regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory
matters. Any Director, who wishes to do so in the furtherance
of his or her duties, may seek independent professional advice
through the chairman at the Company’s expense. The availability
of professional advice extends to the Audit and Review Committee,
Remuneration and Review Committee and other committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the company secretary
or the secretary of the Board and, together with any supporting
Board papers, are available to all Board members. Board meetings
are structured to encourage open and frank discussions to ensure
the non-executive Directors provide effective enquiries to each
executive Director. When necessary, the independent non-
executive Directors meet privately to discuss matters which are
relevant to their specific responsibilities.

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established three committees: Audit and Review Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration and Review Committee.
All committees have its terms of reference which fulfill the principles
set out in the CG Code. The secretary of the Board takes minutes
of the meetings of these committees and the work of these
committees is reported to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board held seven meetings during 2015. The chief financial
officer of the Company also attended all of the Board meetings
to advise on corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, mergers and acquisitions and accounting and financial
matters. The attendance (other than attending by authorised
representatives) of individual Directors at the Board meetings,
the meetings of major committees and the general meetings in
2015 is set out in the table below:

Board Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B¥ (BB %) £ WA ZH
12/03/2015 WA v v
02/06/2015 WA v v
05/08/2015 WA v v
26/08/2015 WA v v
29/09/2015 WA v v
11/11/2015 N/A v v
22/12/2015 N/A v v
Annual and Special General Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B¥ (BB %) ES: WA ZH
26/05/2015 WA v v
11/12/2015 WA v v

WYH

YR NANENENENEN

WYH
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E=ERAHREIETS  T2ZE8g883
KR A & ZF#1E

EEgam
LTY GF CKH LTN
v v/ v 4
4 v v 4
4 4 v v
4 v v v
4 4 v v/
4 4 v v
4 4 v v
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4 4 4 4
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N\ =5 N
TEEBRSE
Audit and Review Committee Meeting ENREEES

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B (B R %) £ GF CKH LTN
12/03/2015 GF v v v
25/08/2015 GF v v v
Nomination Committee Meeting REZRETR

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B# (BB %) % WA GF LTN
11/03/2015 WA v v v
Remuneration and Review Committee Meeting FHREREZAEEHE

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

B# (BB %) £ GF LTN
11/03/2015 GF v v
Note: [

WA Wang An F&

ZH Zhang Hui R pE

WYH  Wang Yan Hui I i

LTY  Liu Tsung-Yi 2IRE

GF Gong Fan BN

CKH  Chow Kam Hung B R

LTN  Li Tong Ning FEE

Symbols: o5 -

“/” means attended the meeting [VIREHFEEH

“~” means not attended the meeting [-IREZRFEEH

“N/A” means not applicable [N/AJRETEA
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Directors’ Interest

All Directors disclosed to the Board on their first appointment
their interests as a Director or otherwise in other companies or
organisations and such declarations of interests are updated
annually. When the Board considers any proposal or transaction
in which a Director has conflict of interest, the Director has
to declare his interest and is required to abstain from voting
and withdraw from the meetings as appropriate. The Company
seeks confirmation from the Directors annually in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related
to Directors or their associates.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions (the “Securities Code”) pursuant to Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Securities Code is sent to
each Director upon his appointment and thereafter twice annually,
that is one month before the date of the Board meetings to approve
the Company’s interim results and two months before the date
of the Board meetings to approve the Company’s annual results,
with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in the securities
and derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the requirements in the Securities Code during 2015.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company are also
subject to compliance with the Securities Code. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company in 2015.
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Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee comprises three members of which
two are recommended by Shareholders and one is an employee
representative elected by the employees. The Supervisory
Committee is responsible for supervision of the Board, members
of the Board and senior management, to prevent authority abuse,
Shareholders’ interest infringement and to protect legitimate
interests of the Company and its employees. During 2015, the
Supervisory Committee held one meeting, during which the
members of the Supervisory Committee reviewed the Company’s
financial position, legal compliance of the Company’s operations
and diligence of the senior management.

Internal Control

Internal Control System

The Board has the overall responsibility for setting and reviewing
the Company’s internal control system. The Audit and Review
Committee will also review the effectiveness of such system
periodically. Procedures applied by the Audit and Review
Committee for reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system include: discussing with the management
on the risky areas arising from auditing and/or raised by the
management, reviewing the internal and external audit plan of the
Company, reviewing material issues arising from internal or external
audit report and reviewing material matters identified by internal
auditors and risk assessment manager of the Group. The internal
control system of the Company plays an important role in risk
management which is a key factor for ensuring the achievement
of operational goal. The establishment of internal control system
is for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition;
for maintaining proper accounting records; and for the reliability of
financial information used within the business or for publication.
However, the procedures provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material errors, losses or fraud. Procedures
for the Company’s internal control system have been designed
in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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A review of the Company’s internal control system covering
financial, operational, compliance and risk management is
conducted annually. In particular, the Board has considered the
adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control. The result has been reported to the Board.

The Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place
to identify, control and report on significant risks involved in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to these
risks are monitored by the Board with the support of various
committees and senior management. For the year under review,
the Board considered that the Company’s internal control system
was adequate and the Company had complied with the Code
Provisions on internal control under the CG Code.

Internal Audit

The internal audit department of the Company provides an
independent review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system. The department is headed by a manager
who is familiar with the Company’s operation. Its scope of work
mainly includes auditing of financial and operational systems,
reviewing the observance of relevant policies and regulations,
regular and special auditing, auditing of production effectiveness,
etc. The audit plan, which is prepared based on risk assessment
methodology, is discussed and agreed on every year by the Audit
and Review Committee. In addition to its agreed annual schedule
of work, the internal audit department of the Company conducts
other special reviews as required.

The primary reporting line of the internal audit department of the
Company is to the chairman of the Board but there is also direct
access to the Audit and Review Committee. Internal audit reports
are sent to the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer,
external auditors and the relevant management of the departments
under audit. A summary of major audit findings is reported to and
discussed with the Audit and Review Committee. The Board and
the Audit and Review Committee actively monitor the number and
seriousness of findings raised by the internal audit department of
the Company and also the corrective actions taken by relevant
departments.
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Detailed control guidelines have been formulated and made
available to all employees of the Company regarding handling
and dissemination of corporate data which is price sensitive.

Risk Management

Risk management is concerned with the identification and effective
management of business risks, including safety and security, legal,
environmental and reputational risks.

Risk Management Committee

The Company has established a Risk Management Committee
which coordinates the proper application of operational risk
management procedures throughout the Company. The committee
assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role over the Company and
its subsidiaries in, among others, the following areas:

- establishment of the risk approach and risk management
strategy of the Company to formulate its risk profile;

- identification, assessment and management of the material
risks faced by the various business units of the Company;

- reviewing and assessment of the adequacy of the
Company’s risk management process, system and internal
control; and

- reviewing and monitoring the Company’s compliance with
the risk management process, system and internal control,
including whether the development of the Company’s
business is prudent and in compliance with the legal
requirements.

The terms of reference of the committee do not include financial
risk management and the coordination of the Company’s policy on
environmental issues. The committee is chaired by the chief financial
officer of the Company and includes senior representatives from
each division as well as the human resources manager and the
head of internal audit department of the Company. The committee
reports to the Audit and Review Committee on a regular basis.
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Audit and Review Committee

The Audit and Review Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Group’s financial reporting, internal controls and corporate
governance issues and making relevant recommendations to the
Board. All of its members are independent non-executive Directors
(namely Mr. Gong Fan, Mr. Chow Kam Hung and Mr. Li Tong
Ning) and its current chairman is Mr. Gong Fan.

The terms of reference of the Audit and Review Committee are
based on the guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit and Review Committee met twice in 2015. During
2015, it met to review the internal and external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
internal control and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and to
discuss auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters. The interim and annual accounts for 2015 were
recommended to the Board for approval after discussion of the
Audit and Review Committee.

External Auditors

In 2015, the total remuneration paid to the external auditors
amounted to approximately RMB1,480,000, which was all for the
audit services provided by the external auditors. The audit fee and
other service fees have been approved by the Audit and Review
Committee and endorsed by the Board.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out on pages 70 to 71 of this annual report.

The Audit and Review Committee has resolved the re-appointment
of KPMG Huazhen LLP for the audit work of the Company for
the financial year 2016. This resolution has been endorsed by the
Board and is subject to final approval and authorisation by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Remuneration and Review Committee

The Remuneration and Review Committee comprises Mr. Gong
Fan and Mr. Li Tong Ning as members with Mr. Gong Fan as the
chairman. Both of them are independent non-executive Directors.
The Committee’s responsibilities are as follows:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management,
remuneration and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

- to be responsible for determining the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments (including any compensations
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment),
and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

- to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives made by the Board;

- to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise reasonable and not
excessive;

- to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

- to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and
- to review and monitor the training and continuous

professional development of the Directors and senior
management.
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Factors to be considered by the Remuneration and Review
Committee for formulation of remuneration package including the
remuneration paid by other similar companies, time devoted by
a Director, Director’s responsibilities, employment terms of other
positions in the Group, Director’s performance, etc.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Review Committee
are available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration and Review Committee met once in 2015
to review and approve the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration for 2015. At that meeting, the committee approved
the individual remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management to be paid for 2015.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration and Review Committee to
the Board for further review and approval, which subsequently
requires approval by the Shareholders at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on remuneration
packages is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executive Directors by linking their compensation with performance
as measured against corporate objectives. Under the policy, a
Director is not allowed to approve his own remuneration.

The elements of the Company’s executive remuneration package
include basic compensation (comprising of director fee) and
discretionary bonus without capping. In determining guidelines for
each compensating element, the Company refers to remuneration
surveys conducted by independent external consultants on
companies operating similar businesses.

According to Code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management whose particulars
are contained in the section headed“Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management”in this annual report for 2015 by band is set
out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)
FHER (AR®) A8

0 - 250,000 7
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Basic Compensation

The Remuneration and Review Committee annually reviews and
approves the basic compensation of each Director in accordance
with the Company’s remuneration policy. In accordance with
the service contracts entered into by the Company and each of
the Directors, all Directors have the right to receive fixed basic
compensation.

Discretionary Bonus

Under the service contracts between the Company and each of
the Directors, the Directors are entitled to a discretionary bonus
based on the Company’s results and the degree of diligence of
each of the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Directors did not receive any discretionary bonus.

The amounts paid to each Director of the Company for 2014 and
2015 are disclosed in Note V.37 to the Financial Statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Wang An, an
executive Director, and comprises Mr. Gong Fan and Mr. Li Tong
Ning, both independent non-executive Directors, as members. The
role of the committee is to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors, evaluation of Board composition
and the management of Board succession with reference to
certain guidelines as endorsed by the Nomination Committee.
These guidelines include appropriate professional knowledge and
industry experience, personal ethnics, integrity and personal skills,
and time commitments of members. The Nomination Committee
carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorship including the consideration of referrals and
engagement of external recruitment professional when necessary.
The Nomination Committee met once in 2015 to discuss the Board
structure, size and composition and to evaluate the independence
status of the independent non-executive Directors.

As at the date of this report, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Below
is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:
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Selection of candidates for directorship will be based on a wide
range of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and service term. The Nomination Committee will review
the diversity of the Board and report to the Board the composition
of the Board members and monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee considers that the current Board
composition has provided the Company with a good balance
and diversity of skill and experience appropriate for the business
of the Company. The Nomination Committee will review the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its effectiveness on determining the optimal composition
of the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which
were revised on 19 March 2014 to adopt the Board Diversity
Policy have been posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Investor Relations

The Company is committed to fair disclosure and comprehensive,
transparent reporting. The chairman of the Board is ultimately
responsible for ensuring that there is effective communication with
investors and that the Board understands the views of the major
Shareholders. The chairman therefore makes himself available to
meet with the Shareholders for this purpose. On a day-to-day
basis, the Board’s primary contact with the major Shareholders
is through the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer
of the Company.

To enhance the Company’s system of information disclosure,
and to ensure the accuracy, completeness and timeliness of the
Company’s public disclosures, an Information Disclosure Review
Committee, led by the chief financial officer of the Company was
established. The Information Disclosure Review Committee is
responsible for the establishment of procedures to compile, verify
and report the Company’s financial and operational statistics
and other information as well as to supervise the drafting and
publication of periodic reports.
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Printed copies of the interim and annual reports are sent to all
Shareholders. The most recent annual general meeting was held
on 26 May 2015 at 2nd Floor, No. 18 Andre Avenue, Muping
Economic Development Zone, Yantai City, Shandong Province,
the PRC. The meeting was open to all Shareholders and members
of the press and was attended by all substantial Shareholders
personally present or by proxy.

As part of a regular programme of investor relations, senior
management holds briefings and attends conferences with
institutional investors and financial analysts to engage in a two-way
communication on the Company’s performance and objectives. A
wide range of information on the Group’s business activities is made
available to investors and the public through the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange. Announcements
of the interim and annual results are also available on the website
of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

In 2015, the Company held 9 meetings and conference calls with
analysts and investors at its Yantai and Hong Kong offices. These
activities allowed them to have good opportunities to directly
communicate with and understand the senior management,
operating management and general staff of the Company, as well
as to visit different places of business and operations of the Group.

Enquiries to the Board may be made by contacting the company
secretary through the Shareholders’ hotline or email, or directly
by questions at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting of the Company. Questions on the procedures for
convening of or putting forward proposals at an annual general
meeting or a special general meeting of the Company may also
be made to the Company by the same means.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special General
Meeting (“SGM”)

Shareholders requesting the convening of a SGM shall proceed
in accordance with the procedures set forth below:

The Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares with the voting power at the proposed meeting
have the right to request the Board to hold the SGM or a class
meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative regulations
and the Articles of Association, the Board shall give written
feedback to agree or disagree to hold the SGM within 10 days
after receiving the request.

If the Board agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting notice shall be
given within 5 days after the Board makes such a resolution.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved
by relevant Shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the SGM or fails to give feedback
within 10 days after receiving the request, the Shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares
have the right to request the Supervisory Committee to hold the
SGM in writing.

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting
notice shall be given within 5 days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved
by relevant Shareholders.

If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of the SGM
within the specified period, it shall be deemed that the Supervisory
Committee does not convene or preside over the general meeting.
The shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares for more than 90 consecutive days may
convene and preside over the SGM by themselves.

Necessary expenses of the general meeting held by the Supervisory
Committee or Shareholders by themselves shall be born by the
Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

When the Company holds the general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and the Shareholders individually or jointly
holding over 3% of the shares of the Company have the right to
submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders individually or
jointly holding over 3% of the shares of the Company may put
forward interim proposal and submit to the convener in writing
10 days before the SGM.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director

With regard to the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures posted on 2 April
2012 under the Investor Relation section of Company’s website
at www.andre.com.cn.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the company secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Room 1401-2, Yue Shing Commercial Building,
15 Queen Victoria Street, Central, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2587 9166

Email: andrehk@northandre.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Change in Constitutional Documents

At the special general meeting on 11 December 2015, amendments
of the Articles of Association were approved by the Shareholders,
to reflect the change of the holders of the Company’s domestic
shares, shares cancellation due to shares repurchase and the
change of functions and powers of the Board. An updated version
of the Articles of Association is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors are pleased to present and submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale
of apple juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, bio-feedstuff
and related products. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note VII.1 to the Financial Statements.

Subsidiaries and Joint Venture

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company and its interest in
joint venture as at 31 December 2015 are set out in Notes VII.1
and VII.2 to the Financial Statements respectively.

Results

The results and financial status of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 are set out in pages 72 to 228 of this annual
report.

Five-Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 to 5
of this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the reporting period, the Group mainly exported products to
the US market, Japanese market and European market, and was
expanding its market to other countries. The sales attributable to
the top five customers of the Group accounted for about 33.52%
of the Group’s total turnover and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to about 13.45%.

Purchases from the Group’s top five largest suppliers accounted
for about 6.8% of total purchases for the year. The largest supplier
accounted for about 1.71% of the total purchases of the Group
for the year.
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None of the Directors, Supervisors, their respective associates or
any Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the top five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

Dividends

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
approximately RMB19,050,000 (inclusive of tax), or RMBO0.05
per share for 2015. This proposed dividend will be distributed first
from the balance of the profit of the Group for distribution to the
Shareholders generated in or before 2007. Any insufficiency will
be distributed from the profit for distribution to the Shareholders
generated in or after 2008. The proposal to declare and pay
this final dividend will be submitted to the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 25 May 2016.
Final dividend for domestic shares will be distributed and paid
in Renminbi whereas dividend for H Shares will be declared in
Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend will
be paid to those Shareholders whose names appear on the
Companys’ register of members at the close of business on 10
June 2016 (the “Record Date”). To determine the identity of the
Shareholders entitled to receive the final dividend, the register
of holders of H Shares will be closed from 3 June 2016 to 10
June 2016 (both days inclusive) during which no transfer of H
Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, all transfers of H Shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s H Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at
22/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 June 2016.
The final dividend is expected to be distributed on 22 July 2016.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and its
implementing regulations (collectively referred to as the “Corporate
Income Tax Law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008, the tax
rate of the corporate income tax applicable to the income of
non-resident enterprise deriving from PRC is 10%. Pursuant to
the Corporate Income Tax Law, any Chinese domestic enterprise
(including the Company) which pays dividend to a non-resident
enterprise shareholder shall withhold and remit corporate income
tax at 10% on behalf of such shareholder. At the same time,
pursuant to the provisions of the Preferential Policy on Profit
Earned by Foreign Investors from Foreign Investment Enterprises in
the Circular of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
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of Taxation Concerning Several Preferential Policies Relevant
to Corporate Income Tax, any profit accumulated and not yet
distributed before 1 January 2008 by foreign investment enterprise
when distributed to non-resident enterprise in or after 2008, will
be exempted from corporate income tax. Any dividend distributed
to non-resident enterprises from profit accumulated since 2008 by
foreign investment enterprise will be subject to corporate income
tax.

Pursuant to the Notice on Issues Concerning Individual Income
Tax Collection and Management after the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa
[1993] No. 45 (No. 348, Guo Shui Han [2011]), where the non-
resident individual shareholders obtain dividend and bonuses
from the shares issued in Hong Kong by non-foreign-invested
enterprise, individual income tax shall be withheld and remitted
by the withholding agent according to the domain of “interest,
dividends and bonuses”. The non-resident individual shareholders
of domestic non-foreign-invested enterprise which issued shares
in Hong Kong, shall enjoy the taxation preferences in accordance
with the agreements between countries of their origins and China
and the regulation on taxation arrangement between the Mainland
and Hong Kong (Macau). The related tax rate of dividend as
provided by taxation agreement is generally at a rate of 10%.
In order to simplify the collection and management of taxation,
the individual income tax with a rate of 10% in general will be
withheld when dividend is paid by the domestic non-foreign-
invested enterprise which issued shares in Hong Kong without
making applications. Where the dividend tax rate is not 10%, it
will be handled according to the following requirements: (1) for
residents of countries which have entered into an agreement with
China in respect of a tax rate lower than 10%, the withholding
agent may apply for the relevant entitlements hereunder on their
behalf. Upon examination and approval by the competent tax
authorities, the additional amount of tax withheld will be refunded;
(2) for residents of countries which have entered into an agreement
with China in respect of a tax rate of 10% or more but less than
20%, the withholding agent shall withhold individual income tax at
the agreed tax rate when distributing dividends or bonuses, and
no application for approval is needed; (3) for residents of a country
or which has not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC and
in any other circumstances, the withholding agent shall withhold
individual income tax at the tax rate of 20% when distributing
dividends and bonuses.
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Pursuant to the Notice of Withholding and Payment of Enterprise
Income Tax Regarding China Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend
to Non-Resident Enterprise Holders of Overseas H-Share (No.
897, Guo Shui Han[2008]) issued by the State Administration of
Taxation, any domestic enterprise of PRC which pays dividends
to non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined in the Tax
Law) for the year of 2008 and subsequent years shall withhold
and remit enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 10%.

For this purpose, any H shares of the Company registered under
the name of non-natural persons in the H share register of members
of the Company on 2 June 2016 (Thursday), including HKSCC
Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or other groups
and organizations, will be treated as non-resident enterprise
Shareholders.

The Company anticipates that all the proposed dividend will be
distributed from the balance of the profit of the Group for distribution
to the Shareholders generated in or before 2007. Pursuant to the
preferential policy of the Corporate Income Tax Law, the Company
currently proposes not to withhold 10% corporate income tax and
to distribute the final dividend to such non-resident enterprise
Shareholders at gross amount before corporate income tax. This
arrangement is conditional upon obtaining the final approval from
the relevant tax authority. If the Company cannot obtain final
approval from the relevant tax authorities regarding the exemption
of corporate income tax for non-resident enterprise Shareholders
as mentioned above, the Company will distribute the final dividend
to such non-resident enterprise Shareholders after withholding
corporate income tax of 10% as required by the Corporate Income
Tax Law. Individual Shareholders who hold the H shares and
whose names appear on the register of members of H shares
(the “Individual H Shareholders”) shall pay individual income tax
at a tax rate of 10% upon their receipt of the dividends from the
Company, which shall be withheld and remitted by the Company
on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their taxation advisors
for advice on the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax effects with
respect to the holding and disposing of H shares.

The Company will have no liability in respect of any claims arising
from any delay in, or inaccurate determination of the status of the
Shareholders or any disputes over the mechanism of withholding
and remitting.
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Share Capital

The change(s) in share capital of the Company is set out in Note
V.22 to the Financial Statements.

Reserves

The change(s) in reserves of the Company during the reporting
period is set out in the statements of changes in equity of the
Group and the Company in the Financial Statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2015 amounted to approximately RMB366,365,000 (2014:
approximately RMB371,972,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the reporting period, the Group incurred approximately
RMB6,691,000, mainly for the construction of new production
line and acquiring plant and equipment.

The change(s) of property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the reporting period is set out in Note V.10 to the Financial
Statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the PRC laws and regulations which oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year 2015, the Company repurchased a total of
11,600,000 H shares with par value of HK$1.00 each on the
Stock Exchange at prices ranging from HK$3.07 to HK$3.51 per
H share, for a total consideration of HK$39,174,060.

Directors believe that through repurchase of shares, earnings per
share and asset value per share will increase, which in turn will
improve the Company’s capital structure and Shareholders’ equity.
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Details of share repurchased B BB -
No. of Highest Lowest
Shares Repurchase Repurchase
Repurchased Price Price
ElfERR A& H BEEER RIEEER
(HKD) (HKD)
(%&7T) (Z&7T)
June 2015 11,600,000 3.51 3.07

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31 December
2015.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire
Shares or Debentures

None of the Directors or Supervisors or their respective associates
was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any right to
acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year ended
31 December 2015.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals During the
Year

On 5 August 2015, Baishui Andre, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement with Yantai
Yitong Thermoelectricity Co., Ltd. and Yantai Anlin Fruit Processing
Co., Ltd. (collectively known as “Vendors”), pursuant to which
Baishui Andre agreed to acquire from Vendors the entire equity
interest in Liquan Yitong at a consideration of RMB120,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$151,898,734). On 11 November
2015, Baishui Andre and the Vendors entered into a supplemental
agreement to the equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which
the consideration was amended to RMB104,800,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$129,382,716). Since the completion on 21
August 2015, Liquan Yitong became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company.
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On 29 September 2015, (i) the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Century
Co., Ltd., and (ii) Andre Juice Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into another equity transfer agreement
with Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Century Co., Ltd.. Pursuant
to the agreements, each of the Company and Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. agreed to sell its 25% equity interest in Yantai Tongli to Uni-
President Shanghai Pearly Century Co., Ltd.. The disposal was
completed on 31 December 2015. The Group did not have any
interest in Yantai Tongli after such disposal.

Save as disclosed above, no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associated companies and joint venture companies
have been made by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2015.

Significant Investments

Except as disclosed in Notes V.7 and V.9 to the Financial
Statements, no significant investment was held by the Group as
at 31 December 2015.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 1,062
employees (2014: 995 employees). Staff costs including
directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2014 were approximately RMB45,953,000
and approximately RMB41,901,000 respectively. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes V.37
and 38 to the Financial Statements. The Group’s employment and
remuneration policies remained unchanged from those described
in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 April 2003. The
salaries and benefits of employees of the Group are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system which is reviewed annually. A wide range of
benefits, including statutory compulsory welfare plans, are also
provided to the employees.

Retirement Fund Scheme

The retirement fund scheme is set out in Note V.18 to the Financial
Statements.
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Directors and Supervisors

During the year 2015 and up to the date of this report, the Directors
and Supervisors were as follows:

Executive Directors:  Wang An, Zhang Hui and Wang Yan Hui

Non-executive Liu Tsung-Yi
Director:

Independent Gong Fan, Chow Kam Hung and Li Tong Ning
non-executive
Directors:

Supervisors: Wang Chun Tang, Zhang Suoping and Xu

Jiang

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company. None of the Directors or Supervisors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has an unexpired service contract which is not terminable by the
Company or its subsidiaries within a year without payment of any
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Company has received written
independence status confirmation from all independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. All independent non-executive Directors are considered
as independent.

Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

There was no material change to the Directors, Supervisors
and senior management of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the reporting period.
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Connected Transactions

Continuing connected transactions

On 17 September 2012, the Company entered into a
framework agreement with Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
(“Andre Pectin”) for the sale of pomace to Andre Pectin
and determined the annual caps for the sale of pomace for
the three years ended 31 December 2015. The framework
agreement took effect on 1 January 2013 and expired on
31 December 2015.

As of the date of signing the above framework agreement,
Andre Pectin was an associate of Andre Group, which was
a substantial shareholder of the Company and controlled
37.90% interest in Andre Pectin as of the date of signing the
agreement. Andre Pectin was also an associate of Mr. Wang
An, who was a Director and indirectly controlled 37.90%
interest in Andre Pectin through his 90% interest in Andre
Group. Therefore, Andre Pectin was a connected person of
the Company. The sale of pomace by the Company to Andre
Pectin as contemplated under the framework agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage ratios
was more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions
under the framework agreement were only subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but exempt
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement
under the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the applicable disclosure requirements in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

Under the framework agreement, the pomace products
shall be sold to Andre Pectin in accordance with the
following pricing principles (and in the following order):

- price prescribed by the PRC government; or

- where there is no government-prescribed price, the
guidance price set by the PRC government; or

- where there is neither government-prescribed price
nor government guidance price, a price determined
through tender process or other available market
price; or
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- where none of the above is applicable or available, a
price to be agreed between the parties. The agreed
price shall be calculated based on the reasonable
costs incurred in providing the pomace products
plus reasonable profits. In setting the price, the
parties may refer to the prices for previous relevant
transactions, if available.

The annual transaction cap was determined based on
the historical amounts of pomace sold by the Group to
Andre Pectin, estimated potential growth of the Group,
the expected economic growth of the PRC, demand
by Andre Pectin and expected increase in the pomace
price. The cap for the year ended 31 December 2015
was RMB28,000,000. The actual sale of pomace by the
Group to Andre Pectin for the year ended 31 December
2015 was RMB25,904,114 and is subject to annual review
requirement under the Listing Rules.

On 12 March 2015, the Company entered into a product
purchase framework agreement with President Enterprises
(China) Investment Co., Ltd. (“President”), whereby
President agreed to purchase and the Company agreed
to supply the Company’s products (including but not limited
to different kinds of juice) and provide related warehousing
service to President and determined the annual caps for
the three financial years ending 31 December 2017.

As at the date of signing the agreement, President held
16.29% of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Under the Listing Rules, President was a substantial
shareholder of the Company and thus was a connected
person of the Company. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the product purchase framework
agreement between the Group and President constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company. As
an applicable percentage ratio in respect of the annual
caps under the product purchase framework agreement
(other than the profit ratio) exceeded 5%, the transactions
contemplated under the product purchase framework
agreement constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and were subject to
the requirements of reporting, announcement, independent
Shareholders’ approval and annual review under the Listing
Rules.
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Under the product purchase framework agreement, prices
of products to be supplied by the Company shall be
determined according to (i) the Market Price (as defined
below); and (i) the Historical Price (as defined below),
whichever is higher.

“Market Price” shall be determined in accordance with the
following orders: (1) the prevailing price being charged by
independent third parties under ordinary course of business
for the sales of the same type of products at the selling
places or its nearby regions; or (2) the prevailing price being
charged by independent third parties under ordinary course
of business for the sales of the same type of products in
the PRC.

“Historical Price” shall be the average price of all
transactions of similar products with independent third
parties conducted within the preceding three months as
recorded on a transaction record sheet which shall be
monitored and maintained by the sales department of the
Company.

Upon receipt of a sales order of the products, the sales
department of the Company and its designated persons
will ascertain the pricing offered by other independent
third parties, generally by way of, obtaining quotation for
a comparable volume and similar products from at least
two independent third parties via emails, fax or phone
and tenders by publishing tender notice via various media
resources (for instance, the local newspapers), and take
average of such quotation as the Market Price. They will
also refer to the Historical Price as recorded on the updated
transaction record sheet. Then they will take the higher of
the Market Price and the Historical Price as selling price
of the relevant sales order. The selling price of each major
category of products will be reviewed upon receipt of a
sales order of such products and be approved by the head
of the sales department of the Company.
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The annual transaction caps were determined with reference
to the historical amount with President, the estimated
increase in the sales volume of the Company’s pear juice
concentrate to President and the expected increase in
the prevailing market prices of the Company’s products
due to the increase in the costs for the production of the
Company’s products, such as the raw materials and labour
costs. The annual caps for the three financial years ended
31 December 2017 are RMB86,000,000, RMB95,000,000
and RMB105,000,000 respectively.

The actual sale of products and warehousing services
provided by the Group to President for the year ended 31
December 2015 was RMB82,854,198 and is subject to
annual review requirement under the Listing Rules.

On 26 August 2013, the Company entered into a
construction and installation services framework agreement
with Yantai Xinping Jianan Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Xinping
Company”), pursuant to which Xinping Company agreed
to provide services for installation for various kinds of
constructions and indoor and outdoor decoration to the
Group for the three financial years ended 31 December
2015.

As at the date of signing the agreement, Xinping Company
was wholly owned by Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, the wife of Mr.
Wang An who is an executive Director and a substantial
Shareholder. Under the Listing Rules, Xinping Company was
an associate of Mr. Wang An and thus was a connected
person of the Company. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the framework agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Since
the applicable percentage ratios for the highest proposed
annual cap for each of the three years ended 31 December
2015 for the continuing connected transactions under the
framework agreement were more than 0.1% but less than
5%, the continuing connected transactions under the
framework agreement were only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements under the Listing Rules
and were exempted from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement.
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Under the framework agreement, prices of services to
be provided by Xinping Company shall be determined
according to the following principles in orders:

- the price prescribed by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is no government-prescribed price, the
guidance price set by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is neither government-prescribed price
nor government guidance price, the market price
(including tender price); and

- where any of the above prices is unavailable or
inapplicable, the agreed price.

The annual cap under the framework agreement for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB10,000,000.

The actual consumption of service by the Group from
Xinping Company for the year ended 31 December
2015 was RMB766,090 and is subject to annual review
requirement under the Listing Rules.

All the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions had been conducted on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than
those available to or from independent third parties under the
prevailing local market conditions and were entered into in the
Group’s ordinary and usual course of business, and were fair
and reasonable and in the best interests of the Shareholders as
a whole.

Report of Directors

EEEHRE

RIEANE R 1535 57 F 2 B R E IR
METR  BRERXFRETIIR
Al -

- R EIRATEE(R0E)

- WEIERFEE - AlRT
BB EEE(mNE);

- (WELERTEEXBAE
BE - AAMHE(ZRE
B): &

- WELEEFLAERKE
AERTER - RS HE

& -

AERBZATHE_T—AF+
ZAZT-HUEMBRFENFE L
BR A AR #10,000,0007T °

HE-FT—RAF+t-A=+—HL
FEZAEEFEAFTFERE RS
EREBEAARET766,0007T @ 1R
BEMRA - RSV ERSRBF
= -

ERBUIFATETCERHAFERER
5 WHERFEBEIZFDHINAEEIER
K —REBBETIRIET R EERETE
RIRBEHIRITHORAIE LS = TR
SIBULE =T EBHIRRETL - BAYF
BE  YFEARARARRNOERKERN

NV
S o
I

—Z—-RFFH Annual Report 2015

57



Report of Directors

EEEHRE

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company have
confirmed in a letter to the Board to the following effect with
respect to the continuing connected transactions of the Company
that such transactions:

(i) have received approval from the Board;
(i) were conducted in accordance with the pricing policy;

(i) have been conducted in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the cap amount for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015 disclosed in the relevant
announcement.

One-off connected transaction

On 29 September 2015, (i) the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement (the “First Equity Transfer Agreement”) with
Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Century Co., Ltd. (“Pearly Century”),
and (i) Andre Juice Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into another equity transfer agreement (the
“Second Equity Transfer Agreement”) with Uni-President Shanghai
Pearly Century Co., Ltd.. Pursuant to the agreements, each of the
Company and Andre Juice Co., Ltd. agreed to sell its 25% equity
interest in Yantai Tongli to Pearly Century.

Pursuant to the First Equity Transfer Agreement, the consideration
for the disposal of 25% equity interest in Yantai Tongli by the
Company is RMB29,205,200 (equivalent to approximately
HK$36,055,802), which shall be payable by Pearly Century to
the Company in lump sum in cash within ten working days after
completion of the First Equity Transfer Agreement. Pursuant to
the Second Equity Transfer Agreement, the consideration for
the disposal of 25% equity interest in Yantai Tongli by Andre
Juice Co., Ltd. is RMB29,205,200 (equivalent to approximately
HK$36,055,802), which shall be payable by Pearly Century to
Andre Juice Co., Ltd. in lump sum in cash within ten working
days after completion of the procedure for the payment of
withholding enterprise income tax for the consideration under
the Second Transfer Agreement by Pearly Century. Pearly Century
shall conduct such procedure within three working days from
completion of the Second Equity Transfer Agreement which shall
be completed within thirty working days afterwards.
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The disposal completed on 31 December 2015. The Group did
not have any interest in Yantai Tongli after such disposal.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the disposal are
greater than 5% but less than 25%, the disposal of 50% equity
interest in Yantai Tongli constitutes a discloseable transaction
for the Company under the Listing Rules and is subject to
reporting and announcement as required under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules. In addition, as Pearly Century is a subsidiary of
Uni-President Enterprises Corp., a substantial Shareholder, it is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the disposal of 50% equity interest in Yantai
Tongli constitutes a non-exempt connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules and is subject to reporting,
announcement and Independent Shareholders’ approval as
required under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The above-
mentioned disposal of 50% equity interest in Yantai Tongli has
been approved by independent Shareholders on 11 December
2015.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in Note VI to the
Financial Statements. Some of these related party transactions
constituting connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have complied
with the disclosure requirements thereon.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interest in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or the
Supervisors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company was a party in 2015.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were (a)
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); and (b) required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
the directors of the Company as referred to in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules were as follows:

EE  EERTERASKNRELFK
7  BERMRBHEEPHER R
RE

R-ZE—HFE+_A=1+—H &= &
ERITHRAFRN AR R R HEEREEE (%
(BERBEGRIDETRERNRE)EE()
BRIB(EFRBEKRMNE+REFH7 R8I
M2 REBAE AN T N (BIERE
(BEHREEED ) TR E E R
HFEZERERAR)  R)VBRIB(GES K
B 5P EFE 3521478 T #17 « B M ArEk ok
RIE EMRAMEETBENEARNQR) RER
FIEBESETESFISH RN ~ EXRRK
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Approximate Approximate
Percentage of Percentage of
Domestic Shares/ Total Share
Class of Number of Type of H Shares Capital
Name of Directors Shares Shares Held ~ Capacity Interest lhmER,/ HlEERE
BEEfY RiAER FiskhBE SK ERES HEESL ast
Wang An Domestic 101,010,501 () Interest of controlled Personal 40.32% (L)(%) 26.51% ()(%)
(Note 1) Shares 101,010,501(K)  corporations (Note 2) fEA
TR(M 1) R Rl AR (3 2)
Wang Yanhui Domestic 20,000,000 (L) Interest of controlled Personal 7.98% (L(K) 5.25% (L)(&)
(Note 3) Shares 20,000,000(&)  corporations (Note 4) LA
T 8B A (f0) RER R AR R ()
Zhang Hui Domestic 20,000,000 () Interest of controlled Personal 7.98% ()(K) 5.25% (L)(&)
(Note 5) Shares 20,000,000(%)  corporations (Note 6) A
RIB %A (MiFES) NEMR s AR ER (NiE6)
Liu Tsung-Yi H Shares 195400 ()  Beneficial owner Personal 0.15% (L)(&) 0.06% (L)(%)
fRE HIR 195400(k) EBHEEAA A
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position.

(1)

*

As at 31 December 2015, Mr. Wang An, a Director, controlled (a)
90% interest in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited, which
held 46,351,961 Domestic Shares, representing 12.17% interest
in the total issued share capital of the Company; (b) 90% interest
in Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd* (IUERZEFEEERAT]),
which held 54,658,540 Domestic Shares, representing 14.35%
interest in the total issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. Wang An was deemed to be interested in these Domestic
Shares through his interests in China Pingan Investment Holdings
Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (ILIERZEF|£EE
BT .

As at 31 December 2015, Mr. Wang Yanhui, a Director, held 20%
interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership)

(HEREZRERL (FRA#)), which held 20,000,000
Domestic Shares, representing 5.25% of the total issued share
capital of the Company.

Mr. Wang Yanhui was deemed to be interested in these Domestic
Shares through his interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre
(Limited Partnership) (A& B L& ERL (BRER) ).

As at 31 December 2015, Mr. Zhang Hui, a Director, held 20%
interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre (Limited Partnership)

(HEREZRERL (FRA#)), which held 20,000,000
Domestic Shares, representing 5.25% of the total issued share
capital of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Hui was deemed to be interested in these Domestic
Shares through his interest in Yantai Xingan Investment Centre
(Limited Partnership) (A& B L& EFRL (BRER) ).

For identification purpose only

BT
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ FERFEREMALTRELT
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, 7 BEEXBROERFEEPFHEEZR

Underlying Shares and Debentures of the &
Company

As at 31 December 2015, so far as the Directors are aware, the BEEM  RZZE—RAF+A=*+—
following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief A BRARBIES - BEERITHAIIN
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions in the AR ZKRGD « BEARRG REEE T H#
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which BERB(ESFRAEGRINETHEES2R
were discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO 3H M 2 MEMEHKE - RELARRA
and recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to RIEC(EH LB EEHI)EI36IK 2R ERF

section 336 of the SFO: BrEEMp s kAR 2 IRE R EAD
AT
Approximate Approximate
Percentage of Percentage of
Domestic Shares/ Total Share
Name of Class of Number of Type of H Shares Capital
Shareholders Shares Shares Held ~ Capacity Interest lhmER/ fsRRE
REEE BRip%ER FisRH8E &6 EREE HEESL aalt
China Pingan Investment Domestic 46,351,961 (L)  Beneficial owner Corporate 18.50% (L)(K) 12.17% (&)
Holdings Limited Shares Note 1) E&EEA NG
B 46,351,961 (%)
(W& 1)
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd."  Domestic 54,658,540 (L)  Beneficial owner Corporate 21.82% (L)(%) 14.35% ()(&)
(LRZEHNERBERAR) Shares Note2) EZ#EBA N
B 54,658,540( %)
(M 2)
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. ~ Domestic 65,779,459 (L)  Beneficial owner Corporate 26.26% (L)(%) 17.26% ()(&)
Shares Note 3) EmEBA 2]
B 65,779,459(%)
(M 3)
Uni-President Enterprises Corp. ~ Domestic 63,746,040 ()  Interests of controlled  Corporate 25.44% (L)(%) 16.73% (L)(%)
S-ERNERAT Shares (Note ) corporations 2]
NER 63,746,040(%)  (Note 5)
(MiF4) ENZEER
(B3 5)
H Shares 237,000 () Beneficial owner Corporate 0.18% ((X) 0.08% (L)(%)
Hi& 237,000(%)  (Note 6) A
ERBEBA
(M3 6)
* For identification purpose only * (EHERE
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Name of
Shareholders

BREE

Norges Bank

Mitsui & Co., Ltd.
HMERA &

Hongan International Investment
Co. Ltd.
BRI ERRAT

Zhang Shaoxia

RRE

Wang Meng
T

Yantai Xingan Investment Centre
(Limited Partnership)
MeBZREPL(ERAH)

Class of
Shares
Bin%ER

H Shares
Hi&

H Shares
Hi&

Domestic
Shares
WER

H Shares
Hi

Domestic
Shares
NER

Domestic
Shares

H Shares
Hix

Domestic
Shares

Number of
Shares Held
Fri&iAE

10,358,500 (L)
10,358,500( &)

21,340,000 (L
(Note 7
21,340,000(&)
(M 7)

)
)

65,779,459 (L)
65,779,450 &)

34,771,380 (L)
34,771,380(K)

101,010,501 (1)
101,010,501(%)

65,779,459 ()
65,779,459(K)

34,771,380 (L)
34,771,380(K)

20,000,000 (L)
20,000,000(&)

Capacity
&t

Beneficial owner

BERABA

Beneficial owner

Interest of controlled
corporations
R AR R
Beneficial owner

BEEBBA

Interest of spouse
(Note 8)

[

(P 8)

Interest of controlled
corporations

(Note 9)
Rt AR R
(P 9)

Interest of controlled
corporations

(Note 10)
Rt AR R
(W3t 10)

Beneficial Owner
ERBEEA

Report of Directors

EEEHRE

Type of
Interest

#aEE

Corporate
An

Corporate
NS

Corporate
NS

Corporate
NS

Personal
fHA

Personal

fBA

Personal
fEA

Corporate
NG|

Approximate
Percentage of
Domestic Shares/
H Shares
hiEhER/
HEESL

7.94% (L)(&)

16.36% (L)(&)

26.26% (L)(K)

26.65% (L)(&)

40.32% (L)(K)

26.26% (L)(K)

26.65% (L)(K)

7.98% (U(&)

Approximate
Percentage of
Total Share
Capital
wisERS
aal

2.72% ()(&)

5.60% (L)(&)

17.26% (L)(R)

9.13% (U(&)

26.51% ()(R)

17.26% (L)(R)

9.13% (&)

5.25% (L)(&)
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position.

M

*

Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in China Pingan
Investment Holdings Limited.

Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in Shandong Andre
Group Co., Ltd.* (IR ZEF|EBBRAT]) .

The long position in 65,779,459 Domestic Shares was directly
held by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.. Based on the information
provided by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., Hongan International
Investment Co, Ltd. and Ms. Wang Meng were deemed to be
interested in these 65,779,459 Domestic Shares.

The long position in 63,746,040 Domestic Shares was held by Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd., a non wholly-owned subsidiary
(m—EROHABERATD),
through its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely, Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (FK&&— D ERRERAD
A]), which held 42,418,360 Domestic Shares, and Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BM&—%ABBRAF]), which
held 21,327,680 Domestic Shares.

of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.

Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Uni-President Enterprises Corp.

(F—DERHDBERADT]) was deemed to be interested in such
63,746,040 Domestic Shares. The 63,746,040 Domestic Shares
were held by a series of controlled corporations of Uni-President
Enterprises Corp. (#i— 1R MABRAT]) , of which 42,418,360
Domestic Shares, representing approximately 11.13% of the
total issued share capital of the Company, were held directly
by Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (B&EB&—1
22 MAMRAT]) and 21,327,680 Domestic Shares, representing
approximately 5.60% of the total issued share capital of the
Company, were held directly by Guangzhou President Enterprises
Co., Ltd. (BIH#Z—EBRAT) .

For identification purpose only
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M

*

EF TSk HE HFEBHERChina
Pingan Investment Holdings Limited 2
0%z ML IEEA UL NE s -

BETRELE  FBEBERNURZER
SEARRF Z90% M & M AR EHA
UEAE ks -

65,779,459 W& ik & & JyH Donghua
Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. H#EZ#&HH - 1BiF
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. 32 4t#y
8 AEBIBREERRARMEHL
TR B I1L65,779,4590% & AR #E

25 o

63,746,040k N ERTEBA — 1
& BRRAE 2 IEEEHERQFUN-
President China Holdings Ltd.i% @ H
MEEZEANBARKER —PER®
BRAR(EHEBF42,418360 N E
BI)REBEMG—CEARAR(ERFH
21,327,680 NE R HE ©

RECGES REEIEODEXVE - Fi—10
R BR A R ERF 563,746,040
B & BY #E &5 o 7% 68,746,040 % A
ERBEF—CEROARARZ —&E
BEZEGNEESAE - EF42,418,360
BAER  HARRBEBEITRRKRALY
11.13% * BAXEFR—ERMLERA
BIEEEA  AN21,327,680AE
f& - (AR RAEIE BITRRALS5.60%
HEMG—CEERAREERHA °
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(10)

These H Shares are beneficially held by Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd..

After the capitalization issue of shares by the Company in 2007,
the number of H Shares held by Mitsui & Co., Ltd. was adjusted
from 97,000,000 H Shares to 213,400,000 H Shares. Upon the
share consolidation of the Company in January 2013, the number
of H Shares held by Mitsui & Co., Ltd was further adjusted to
21,340,000 H Shares.

101,010,501 Domestic Shares were held by Mr. Wang An, the
husband of Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, therefore Ms. Zhang Shaoxia was
deemed to be interested in these shares.

Ms. Wang Meng indirectly held 100% of the issued share capital
of Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., which in turn held 65,779,459
Domestic Shares. Therefore Ms. Wang Meng was deemed to be
interested in these shares.

Ms. Wang Meng directly held the entire issued share capital of
Hongan International Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn held
34,771,380 H Shares. Therefore, Ms. Wang Meng was deemed
to be interested in these shares.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors, the controlling Shareholder and their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business which competes or may compete with
the businesses of the Group or has or may have any other conflicts
of the interest with the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

(10)
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I H M 9 B Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. Bz A °

RRBRZZELFHTEARET
B =ZHDEXKASHFELRRAFRD
HA% 2k B 97,000,000 B H % & & &
213,400,000f&Hf& -« == —=F—A
RARIRMDEHE  —HYEKRA S
FARHR 22 B 8% /521,340,000
BRHAR ©

FeaAE(RBELLTCRB)IFA
101,010,501 R E K + A RBEL
THRIERER LR (D -

T B & £+ @ # ¥ A Donghua Fruit
Industry Co., Ltd..2100% 2 B{THRZ -
ifiDonghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.¥ 4
65,779,450 ME IR - FIL T AL 1%
RIEHB R DR -

THELTEERELLRBREEBRA
AR EITRA  ARBRREBR
NEHEE34,771,380 H% - FH itk £ #5
IR IERA IR DR o

mEED

ARBEFHEBRBERANESEZHE
AEER LR BE MBS A]
EERKEASERBHREFEHTES
EIHER - TRARE LA R E A AR
M E R -

BHBARBRE

REBEZE-Z-—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE
A REARFAIFHARAERRAR
AIEEMM - ARFIE—BERE LEWARR
B REANARFRE -
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Practices and Procedures of the Board

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”) as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by its Directors. A copy of the Required Standard was sent to
each Director two months before the date of the Board meeting
to approve the Company’s 2015 annual results, with a reminder
that the Directors cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of
the Company until after such results have been published.

Under the Required Standard, the Directors are required to notify
the chairman of the Board and receive a dated acknowledgement
in writing before dealing in the securities and derivatives of the
Company and, in the case of the chairman of the Board himself,
he must notify the chairman of the Audit Committee and receive
a dated acknowledgement in writing before any dealing.

All Directors, upon specific enquiries, have confirmed that they had
complied with the Required Standard during the reporting period.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the Required Standard. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended
31 December 2015.

Audit and Review Committee

The Company has established an Audit and Review Committee with
written terms of reference based on the guidelines recommended
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
primary duties of the Audit and Review Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
of the Group, ensuring compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of the
Listing Rules. Currently the Audit and Review Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Gong Fan, who
is the chairman of the Audit and Review Committee, Chow Kam
Hung and Li Tong Ning.
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During the reporting period, the Audit and Review Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the Directors, including a review of the annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2015. The Audit and Review
Committee held two meetings during the year with all the then
existing members present.

Auditor

KPMG Huazhen LLP shall retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In the past three years, the Company’s auditor remained
unchanged.

By Order of the Board

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2016

*
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
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To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”) of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*, in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association, has
conducted its work in accordance with the fiduciary principle, and
has taken up an active role to work seriously and with diligence
to protect the interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

During the year, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the operation and development plans of the Company
and provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the
Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised
the Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association, and
in the interests of its Shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors, audited
financial statements and the dividend to be proposed by the Board
for presentation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. We
are of the opinion that the Directors, the chief executive officer
and other senior management of the Company are able to strictly
observe their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and to
work in accordance with the Articles of Association. The operation
is becoming more regulated and the internal control is constantly
improved. The transactions between the Company and connected
parties are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole and
under fair and reasonable price.

*

For identification purpose only
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

Up till now, none of the Directors, chief executive officer and
senior management staff had been found to have abused their
authority, damaged the interests of the Company or infringed
upon the interests of its Shareholders and employees. None of
them was found to be in breach of any laws and regulations or
the Articles of Association.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement

and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2015 and has great
confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Xu Jiang

16 March 2016

*  For identification purpose only
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Auditor’s Report
BirHE

KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 1600484

All Shareholders of Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yantai
North Andre Juice Company Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet and balance sheet as
at 31 December 2015, the consolidated income statement and
income statement, the consolidated cash flow statement and
cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity and statement of changes in shareholders’
equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of these financial statements. This responsibility
includes: (1) preparing these financial statements in accordance
with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China, and fairly
presenting them; (2) designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control which is necessary to enable that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with China
Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants, and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position and financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated financial performance and financial performance and
the consolidated cash flows and cash flows of the Company
for the year then ended in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

KPMG Huazhen LLP

Certified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

Lei Jiang
Zhao Ying
Beijing, China

16 March 2016
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2015912 A31H

(£FEE - ARKET)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand
Bills receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepayments
Other receivables
Inventories
Available-for-sale financial assets
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Long-term equity investments
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Intangible assets
Goodwill

Total non-current assets

Total assets

BE

MBEE
EBES
RES

& W BR K
TR

H A fE WK

&

AL ESREE
HAi R BB &=

MBEESR

EREBEE ¢
REIARIEIS &
BEEEE
EREIRE
IS E
G

FREEERFT

BEME

Note

V.1
V.2
V.3
V.4
V.5
V.6
V.7
V.8

V.9
V.10
V.11
V.12
V.13

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.
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2015 2014
HieE —2—AhF —F-mE

a1 106,373,059 191,634,476
f -2 - 290,000
£ -3 102,712,187 145,680,730
h -4 3,993,014 8,981,451
h -5 30,234,414 1,938,070
h -6 862,607,161 781,344,637
"7 86,178,356 10,000,000
f 8 65,697,933 60,263,754

1,257,796,124 1,200,033,118
a9 - 53,762,081
f 10 837,909,270 794,464,571
a1 5,880,330 15,311
f 12 107,674,464 100,700,677
f 13 8,653,575 8,653,575

960,117,639 957,596,215

2,217,913,763 2,157,629,333

TSN SE86 E = F 228 A MM BT MK MR
REA R R AR AR D ©



Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201512 A31H

(2FE - AR¥T)

2015 2014
Note MisE —ZE—hEF —Z=—pUF
LIABILITIES AND AEMEEES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities: mEAE
Short-term loans 5 HAfE X V.16 # 16 485,170,000 473,237,000
Accounts payable FERTAR K V7 R 17 68,991,418 66,563,565
Advances from customers TEURIR 2,468,411 2,748,318
Employee benefits payable JE 1S B8 T 37 o V.18 # - 18 18,370,361 16,365,153
Taxes payable BRI B V19 19 20,589,650 15,184,010
Interest payable FERFI B 2,820,527 3,371,233
Other payables E TR V.21 o 21 56,481,147 39,820,248
Total current liabilities mBBEAR 654,891,514 617,289,527
Non-current liabilities: EREBEE
Long-term payables RHEIFER R 766,519 692,453
Total non-current liabilities Fr@EEST 766,519 | 692,453
Total liabilities BEAF _ 655,658,033 617,981,980
Shareholders’ equity: R R
Share capital % 7K V.22 FH .22 381,000,000 392,600,000
Capital reserve BEARRNE V.23 # - 23 75,100,275 94,622,523
Other comprehensive income H iR e s V.24 T~ 24 178,356 =
Surplus reserve BHNIE V.25 # 25 105,794,859 104,236,707
Retained earnings R B E V.26 F 26 1,000,182,240 948,188,123

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity

BEMBRERE

&t

1,562,255,730

1,5639,647,353

2,217,913,763

2,1567,629,333

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2016.
LI RKREN20165F3 16 B EEE S & -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: ~ Wang Yan Hui
EEREKA : Tz FTEEHTEEEA T s
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

BIHEBEEA >z (RRIEE)

TIENFE85E = FE228E B I MERMTE A
BT TRR MM ER S o

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.
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Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
are set out in Note V.20.



Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2015912 A31H

(£FEE - AR T)

2015 2014
Note  Mfs+ “Z—h%F —EF—NF
ASSETS gE
Current assets: MENEE :
Cash at bank and on hand EBEe XV.1 +Fh 1 44,849,439 180,498,375
Bills receivable R R - 290,000
Accounts receivable JEUBR TR XV.2 +F& -2 90,470,947 115,540,380
Prepayments SEUNE ] XV.3 +HxH 3 511,597 6,244,882
Dividends receivable JrE W% ) 56,822,440 57,674,279
Other receivables i & R XV.4 +H -4 605,673,875 394,032,828
Inventories T8 XV5 +H 5 96,958,682 74,558,681
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHEEMEE Xv.6 +H 6 86,178,356 10,000,000
Other current assets B ReEE X7 +&H -7 49,623,213 42,902,832
Total current assets MBBEEAR 1,031,088,549 881,742,257
Non-current assets: ERHEE
Long-term equity investments REIGHER & XV.8 +HhH -8 573,355,647 592,831,754
Fixed assets EEEE XV.9 +Hx -9 127,597,934 131,786,270
Intangible assets mEE XV.10 +3 + 10 27,904,004 28,871,696
Total non-current assets IERBBEEASRT 728,857,585 753,489,720
Total assets BERG 1,759,946,134 1,635,231,977

TSN E86 E = F228 A MM B MA MR
REA TR AR AR D ©

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.
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Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201512 A31H

(2FE - AR¥T)

2015 2014
Note iz =A% —Z—uF
LIABILITIES AND ERMERER
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities: mEAE
Short-term loans 5 HAfE X XV.12 +F 12 436,468,000 423,237,000
Accounts payable FETRR X XV.13 +3 13 202,050,064 100,028,822
Advances from customers S E ] 1,510,389 1,471,406
Employee benefits payable JE 1< B8 T 37 o XV.14 +3 - 14 2,137,422 2,463,514
Taxes payable ER T & 195,229 956,756
Interest payable FERFE 2,293,755 3,371,233
Other payables H Ath FEAT 3R XV.15 +# 15 160,610,153 114,029,748
Total current liabilities RBAEEE 805,265,012 645,558,479
fotal fabilties REaE | 805,265,012 645,558,479
Shareholders’ equity: PR R
Share capital & A V.22 hH 22 381,000,000 392,600,000
Capital reserve BARRNE XV.16 +# 16 101,342,973 120,865,221
Other comprehensive income HiRe s 178,356 =
Surplus reserve BB XV.17 +F - 17 105,794,859 104,236,707
Retained earnings R B FE 366,364,934 371,971,570
Total shareholders’ equity [ Rt A T 954,681,122 989,673,498

B EMBIRE S AR

Total liabilities and shareholders’

equity 1,759,946,134 1,635,231,977

These financial statements were approved by the board of Directors of the Company on 16 March 2016.
LB BHmKRER20165F3 16 B EESSIA -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: ~ Wang Yan Hui
FEERRERA Tz FESHIHEBEA I e
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

BEHEAREA == (RRIEE)

TSN SE86 E = F228 A MM B MK MM A
REA T R AR AR D ©

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

XD ES

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2015 &
(2EEE - ARET)

| Operating income

Il Less: Operating costs
Business taxes and
surcharges
Selling and distribution

expenses

General and administrative

expenses

Financial expenses

Impairment |

0sses

Add: Investment income
Including: Income from

Il Operating profit

investment in
a joint venture

Add: Non-operating income
Including: Gains from

disposal of
non-current
assets

Less: Non-operating expenses
Including: Losses from

disposal of
non-current
assets

IV Profit before income tax
Less: Income tax expenses

V' Net profit for the year and net
profit attributable to

shareholders of

the Company

VI Other comprehensive income,

net of tax

TN
L BRR
BRI RN

BiEA
AEAEAR
0+ A
Kb HAELE
i AR

fm

A

1+ BESA
Hob ERAE
BEFS

W EEINH
Hep FRBEE
REERX

- MERRR
B FERER

RN REBRE AR
R FFE

- BitiR & EE MR
R

Note

V.27
V.27

V.28

V.29

V.30

V.31

V.32
V.33

V.41
V.34

V.35

V.36

V.24

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

REEFZEFNRTROBRIF

B &

27
27

H

=

29

30
+ 31
+ 32
+ 33

=== =)

2015 2014

k- 2k 8- T
817,970,479 844,468,613
628,619,160 644,877,041
5,193,242 6,098,700
49,984,824 49,941,905
49,560,984 50,421,314
23,391,992 37,968,346
1,060,246 2,967,908
7,159,927 2,730,676
4,648,319 1,642,821
67,319,958 54,929,075
7,039,826 2,791,619
65,276 214
563,549 170,007
464,739 41,348
73,796,235 57,550,687
613,966 (848,216)
73,182,269 58,398,903
178,356 -

TSN E86 E = F228 A MM B MA MR
REA TR AR AR D ©



VIl Total comprehensive income
for the year and total
comprehensive income

attributable to shareholders

of the Company

VIII Earnings per share:
(1) Basic earnings per share

(2) Diluted earnings per share

N

Consolidated Income Statement

CRiRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note

- i

(=) ERER K V.40

(Z)HETRkE V.40

2015 &

(2FE - AR¥T)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2016.
I RREN2016F3A16BEEEFSHE -

Legal Representative:
EEREKRA - F&
Chief Accountant:

Wang An

Li Lei
SRRBARRA ¢ T

Chief Financial Officer:
TEEHTEEEA

(Company stamp)

(RAIEE)

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

2015 2014

GE: —g-E% = —T-ME

73,360,625 58,398,903

f 40 0.190 0.146

f -~ 40 0.190 0.146
Wang Yan Hui

T4

TIE MBS A EFE 228 A MM BSHE TR

REA R R AR AR D ©

—ZE-HEFFH Annual Report 2015
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Income Statement

bR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20156 F

(£FEE - ARKET)

2015 2014
Note B = —E—hF —T—F
| Operating income — EEIA XvV.18 +H - 18 605,759,963 587,447,194
Il Less: Operating costs =W EERA XV.18 +H - 18 530,977,926 498,568,898
Business taxes and =R KA
surcharges 1,301,909 1,674,587
Selling and distribution HEER
expenses 32,321,875 30,681,010
General and administrative EEEHR
expenses 16,736,146 16,825,118
Financial expenses MBER XV.19 +% 19 20,865,328 34,271,164
Impairment losses BEREREX 480,787 -
Add: Investment income m - wEWE XV.20 +F - 20 12,240,702 1,909,266
Including: Income from He : {5
investment in a ES=0k5d
joint venture Bl s 9,729,094 821,411
Il Operating profit = EERNE 15,316,694 7,335,683
Add: Non-operating income o EEINEA 353,016 2,625,500
Including: Gains from Heh: EmEE
disposal of non- ERE
current assets Mg - -
Less: Non-operating expenses W BEINT 88,194 141,349
Including: Losses from He: ERFE
disposal of non- ERE
current assets Bx 88,194 41,348
IV Profit before income tax m - MERRE 15,581,516 9,819,834
Less: Income tax expenses B FTSTE R Xv.21 +& 21 - (1,097,308)
V' Net profit for the year B OFFE 15,581,516 10,917,142
VI Other comprehensive income, N Bfoir A MaEm i
net of tax FEE 178,356 -
VIl Total comprehensive income + RAENEBE
for the year 15,759,872 10,917,142
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2016.
I RKREN2016F3A16BEEEFSHE -
Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: ~ Wang Yan Hui
EEREKA T FESHIEEEA T dhpE
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)
EEEBEEEA e (RAIEE)

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial HIE N FE8s B &= F228H I IS IRKRMITEA
statements. R TSR AR E S ©
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2015 &

(2FE - AR¥T)

2015 2014
Note Mzt —E-1F —EE
| Cash flows from operating activities: C RETHELNRERE
Proceeds from sale of goods and HEMm - RESBKEE
rendering of services Be 967,813,122 938,608,096
Refund of taxes YRR ERE 66,298,522 79,858,810
Proceeds from other operating WEH AR BN A AR
activities e V.42() - 42(1) 12,216,647 8,883,141

Sub-total of cash inflows

REEHREMANGT

1,046,328,291

1,027,350,047

Payments for goods and services BERD  BEXBBEEAH
He (791,701,216) (641,477,864)
Payments to and for employees YHEBTARAR TS
MR e (43,947,484 (41,424,905)
Payments of various taxes XHNEEHE (40,344,723) (54,504,929)
Payments for other operating SR R R A AR
activities B4 V.420) T 420) (34,225,331) (66,528,395)
Sub-total of cash outflows BEFERRSML/) G (910,218,754) (804,026,093)
Net cash inflow from operating REZHEENRERE
activities Vi V.43(1) E - 43(1) 136,109,537 223,323,954
Il Cash flows from investing activities: C REZHEANEERE
Proceeds from disposal of financial fEemEERISRE
assets 3,347,411,608 4,228,587,855
Investment returns received REREREMKEINE S - 5,450,000
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed RERETEEEMKENERS
assets R 603,516 39,447
Proceeds from disposal of equity REAEMFREREIM
interests of a joint venture Be 29,205,200 -
Proceeds from other investing Wi o th 245 &R B B Y
activities B4 V.423) T 4203) 237,183 822,499
Sub-total of cash inflows REBBREMANG 3,377,457,507 4,234,899,801
Payments for acquisition of financial EECRAEYNNRS
assets (3,420,900,000) (4,237,500,000)
Payments for acquisition of fixed ERETEENENEEM
assets and intangible assets MEE B (13,169,725) (7,498,504)
Net payment for acquisition of a BEFARSAMALFE
subsidiary V43Q) 432 (102,875,378) (50,872,124)
Sub-total of cash outflows RETHHS ML/ (3,536,945,103)  (4,295,870,628)
Net cash outflow from investing REBZHELANHRERE
activities Ve (159,487,596) (60,970,827)

TIE N EBE A EFE 228 A MM BEHE TR
REA R R AR AR D ©

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20155 [E

(2#HE - AR¥T)

l Cash flows from financing activities: = + BEEHELHR LT
Proceeds from borrowings
Proceeds from other financing

activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

BEERKR MRS

LEp

BE

SERPRSRANG

Note

=

DS

Lt B RSB
V.424) & - 4204)

Repayments of borrowings BRERIINAS

Payments for dividends PEBAZAARE

Payments for interest BRAEZAHNES

Repayments of borrowings to related BEER T ERZTHRE
parties

Payments for purchase of own shares FELAROZNHRE

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from financing

activities

IV Effect of foreign currency exchange 7 -
rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

V' Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

VI Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2016.

EHEPRL RN

BERPELNRTRE
e

1 BHekBe

/N

~

HEEHRER D N2016FE3 S 16 EES €K -

Legal Representative:

EEREKA

Chief Accountant:

SEHBREA

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Wang An
e

Li Lei
T

REETHLZEFIR

Chief Financial Officer:
B IIERBEA :

EEE = A

T“@J”ﬂﬁi&fﬂ’i\#
{EMEE

FEMFRLB
e ENRERASEED

V.43(1) & - 43(1)

- FRAS KA EENHE
V433) T - 430)

(Company stamp)

(nRE

STROBRAF

)

=

2015 2014
ZE-1f —E
1,033,513,852 951,395,759
- 9,354,986
1,033,513,852 960,750,745

(995,618,141)
(19,630,000)
(44,487,949)

(7,770,201)
(31,122,248)

(1,173,281,526)
(20,226,102)
(38,961,102)

(93,088,008)
(34,161,243)

(1,098,628,539)

(1,359,717,981)

REA S R AR AR D ©

_____ CoIIC ST
3,331,329 438,126
(85,161,417) (236,175,983)
191,534,476 427,710,459
106,373,059 191,534,476
Wang Yan Hui
o=

TIE N EBE A EFE 228 A MM BEHRKR TR



| Cash flows from operating activities:
Proceeds from sale of goods and
rendering of services
Refund of taxes
Proceeds from other operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for goods and services
Payments to and for employees

Payments of various taxes
Payments for other operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Il Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets

Investment returns received

Net proceeds from disposal of fixed
assets

Proceeds from disposal of equity
interests of a joint venture

Proceeds from other investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payments for acquisition of financial
assets

Payments for acquisition of fixed assets
and intangible assets

Payments for acquisition of investments

Net payment for acquisition of a
subsidiary

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from investing
activities

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

Cash Flow Statement

BERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20154 &

(2FE - AR¥T)

REA R R AR AR D ©

2015 2014
Note — Mf&E -E-5%E —mé
RETHELNASRE
HEBM - RESKEKEIN
Bé 654,960,719 620,177,089
WEIEHERE 51,486,772 63,388,139
B BT E B A A
Bé 9,214,756 13,011,855
AREDEERANH .. Tisee2T 60777083
BEER  BREBEIAR
B (483,873,117) (390,733,329)
TRHERINE AR TIZM
HHES (16,006,583) (10,941,657)
SR BRE (5,692,156) (8,284,864)
T A B A A
B (47,448,860) (69,584,467)
agEmEemtd 53020716) (479,544,317
REEDELORREFE Xv221) T5 - 22(1) 162,641,581 217,532,766
— REFHEANBLRE:
WESREERINES
3,347,411,608 4,228,587,855
BERENEMREINAL - 4,905,000
REETEEMUEMES
et 454,008 6,964
REAELEREWINES
29,205,200 =
WE| E S5 &R BN AR
Be 206,138 782,809
BERBRERAN T | BATIEES 4234260608
BRESBEEYANES
(3,420,900,000) (4,237,500,000)
BRETEENENEER
TRHES (5,065,794) (601,145)
BEFNHGES (211,493,413) (152,868,464)
STRRE AR EFE
- (52,120,000)
BREBRE R 3 __ [8637,450.207)  (4,443,089,609)
RERHELNBERETF
(260,182,253) (208,806,981)

TIE N EBE A EFE 228 A MM BEHE TR

—Z—-RFFH Annual Report 2015
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Cash Flow Statement

BERERXR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
20154 &

(BFEEL - ARKT)

Il Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings
Proceeds from other financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Repayments of borrowings

Payments for dividends

Payments for interest

Payments for purchase of own shares

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from financing
activities

IV Effect of foreign currency exchange
rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

V' Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

VI Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

Note

= BERPELNRERE:

BEETRENEHE
BEEMEEEEEERA

R
ZLEHHLMANGT

EREF MR
DB HNRE
EFFE S‘iﬁﬁ’lfﬁé

EERARNXAHRE

SERYPREMML/ G
SERPELNATREFE

EXEHURS LA EEY
iFZ |

» BeRREEEMFHLR
XV.220) 1 - 2209)

m: R RAELFEN
7

N ERASRBAEEEMHE
XV.2203) 1 - 2203)

P&

2015 2014
ZE-If —E
081,708,272 881,395,759
- 9,354,986
981,708,272 890,750,745
(942,514,561) (1,053,281,526)
(19,630,000) (20,226,102)
(26,626,152) (35,097,790)
(31,122,248) (34,161,243)

(1,019,892,961)

(1,142,766,661)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2016.
L BHREREN2016F3A16BBEF A -

Legal Representative: Wang An
EEREFA Tz
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
FEIEBAEERA ¢

&

Chief Financial Officer:

TERFIEREA

(Company stamp)

(RAIEE)

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

REETHLZEFIR

STROBRAF

______ Ealp) e
__________ e SR
(135,648,936) (242,879,488)
180,498,375 423,377,863
44,849,439 180,498,375
Wang Yan Hui
Ea

TIE N EB5 A EFE 228 A MM BSHKR MR
REA S R AR R D ©



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

ERRERSB X

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20154 2

(2R - ARKET)

Other
Share Capital - comprehensive Surplus Retained
capital reserve income reserve earnings Total
i iiss EB FOR
Note s 13 I\ it 0# A &it
Balance at 1 January 2014 NIEIRIERE 408,988,000 112,395,766 - 103144993 911,107,036 1,685,635,795
Changes in equity for the year NEREEGGE

1. Total comprehensive income 1 fialngE - - - - 5830903 58398903
2. Appropriation of profts 2. 1% Ve E%

- Appropriafion for surplus reserve ~ERRRLE - - - 1001714 (1,001,714) -

- Distrbutions to sharefolders ~HRENAR - - - - (026100 (0,206,100

3. Purchase of own shares 3 BEEE V2 B2 (16388000 (17,7324 - - - (34161249

Balance at 31 December 2014 NAE1DAS BEE 392,600,000 94,622,523 - 104236707 948,188,123 1,539,647,363

Balance at 1 January 2015 N15EIA1R%E 392,600,000 94,622,523 - 104236707 948,188,123  1,530,647,353

Changes in equity for the year X3y i

1. Total comprehensive income 1 GalngE - - 178,356 - 73182269 73360625
2. Appropriation of profts 2. 1A V6 I

- Appropriaion for surpls reserve ~ROARDNE - - - 155815 (1,558,152 =

- Distributions to shareholders ~HRRNAR = - - - (19,630,000  (19,630,000)

3. Purchase of own shares 3 REmE V2 12 (11,600,000) (19,522,248 - - - (31,122,248

Balance at 31 December 2015 NI5E12A31 ARE 381,000,000 75,100,275 17835 105,794,859  1,000,182,240  1,562,255,730

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2016.
B HRERBN2016F3 16 EE=ZSHA -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: ~ Wang Yan Hui
EERKRA B FESHIEREA B i
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

SRMEBREA = (RAIEE)

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial HIE N FE8s B EF 228 H I IS IRKRMITEA
statements. R HRE AR LD o
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Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
RREZBSF K

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20156 F

(£FEE - ARKET)

Other
Share Capital - comprehensive Surplus Retained
capital reserve income reserve earnings Total
i kga B 31 )
Note i k% OF k& AR i@ &it
Balance at 1 January 2014 NUEIRIABE 408,988,000 138,638,464 - 103144993 382,372,244 1,083,143,701
Changes in equity for the year NEREEGGE

1, Total comprehensive income 1 fialngE - - - - 1007142 10917142
2. Appropriation of profts 2. 1% Ve E%

- Appropriafion for surplus reserve ~ERRRLE - - - 1001714 (1,001,714) -

- Distrbutions to sharefolders ~HRENAR - - - - (026100 (0,206,100

3. Purchase of own shares 3 BEEE V2 B2 (16388000 (17,7324 - - - (34161249

Balance at 31 December 2014 MI4E12 A3 ARE 392,600,000 120,865,221 - 104236707 371971570 989,673,498

Balance at 1 January 2015 N15EIA1R%E 392,600,000 120,865,221 - 104236707 371971570 989,673,498

Changes in equity for the year KEEREHLE

1, Total comprehensive income 1 GalngE - - 178,356 - 15581516 15750872
2. Appropriation of profts 2. 1A Ve I

- Appropriion for surpls reserve ~ROERNE - - - 155815 (1,558,152 5

- Distributions to shareholders ~HRRNAR = - - - (19,630,000 (19,630,000

3. Purchase of own shares 3 RE0E V2 12 (11,600,000) (19,522,248 - - - (31,122,248

Balance at 31 December 2015 NI5E12A31 ARE 381,000,000 101,342,973 17835 105794859 366,364,934 954,681,122

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2016.
B HRERBN2016F3 16 EE=ZSHA -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer: ~ Wang Yan Hui
EERKRA B FESHIEREA B i
Chief Accountant: Li Lei (Company stamp)

SRMEBREA = (RAIEE)

The notes on pages 85 to 228 form part of these financial HIE N FE8s B &= F228H I IS IRKRMITEA
statements. R REA AR LD o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Company status

Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited (the “Company”),
was named Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited which
was established at Yantai on 30 March 1996. Headquarter
of the Company is located in Yantai, Shandong Province.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of condensed juice,
pulp, apple essence, pomace and related products. For
information about the subsidiaries of the Company, refer to
Note VII.

During the reporting period, the information about increases/
decreases in the Group’s subsidiaries is disclosed in Note VI.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis.

Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates

1 Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance
(MOF) of the People’s Republic of China (PRC) and present
truly and completely the consolidated financial position
and financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated financial performance and
financial performance and the consolidated cash flows
and cash flows of the Company for the year then ended.

2 Accounting period
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to
31 December.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

NCE- T3P

Healt T 2B RABRMBRRA A
(ATEE A2 DRAEREIEAE
EBRRAERAT - RAFER1996
FI3H0BEME ML + BIBLLAAIL
REMET °

ARRARFRBIATEREIAEER])
TERFLEEHESERIT R
OBRER LUENRERE
m © ANABEFARKNEREES R
gt e

REHA - AR BT
AABERZ REEN ©

SR FA

MBERROESER

ARBAFFELE BERREL R
i% o

AEEERHBE « Wit

1 BRCESTENNESR
AHBREFEPEARLFEH
B 2B (AT RS 7l B B ED ) 284
MiXerrElnERk  EE -
SEEM KRBT AR R 2015F 12
A 318 KA G817 K 0 A0 B 75 AR
S 2015F B W& HHE & R AN
KEXNREAEHBEREMA S
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
3 Functional currency 3 REERA{uME

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and
these financial statements are presented in Renminbi.
The Company translates the financial statements of
subsidiaries from their respective functional currencies
into the Company’s functional currency (see Note III.7) if
the subsidiaries’ functional currencies are not the same
as that of the Company.

Accounting treatments for a business combination

involving enterprises under and not under common

control

(1) Business combinations involving enterprises under
common control
A business combination involving enterprises under
common control is a business combination in
which all of the combining enterprises are ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the business combination, and that control
is not transitory. The assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are measured based on their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements
of the ultimate controlling party at the combination
date. The difference between the carrying amount
of the net assets acquired and the consideration
paid for the combination (or the total par value of
shares issued) is adjusted against share premium in
the capital reserve, with any excess adjusted against
retained earnings. Any costs directly attributable to
the combination is recognised in profit or loss when
incurred. The combination date is the date on which
one combining enterprise obtains control of other
combining enterprises.

86  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HZEFNRTRHOERATE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

4 Accounting treatments for a business combination
involving enterprises under and not under common
control (cont’d)

(2) Business combinations involving enterprises not under
common control
A business combination involving enterprises not under
common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining enterprises are not ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the business combination. Where (1) the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred (including the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer,
in exchange for control of the acquiree, exceeds (2)
the acquirer’s interest in the acquisition-date fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the
difference is recognised as goodwill (see Note IIl.16).
If (1) is less than (2), the difference is recognised
in profit or loss for the current period. The costs
of issuing equity or debt securities as a part of the
consideration for the acquisition are included in the
carrying amounts of these equity or debt securities
upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs
are expensed when incurred. Any difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the assets
transferred as consideration is recognised in profit or
loss. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities, if the recognition criteria are met,
are recognised by the Group at their acquisition-date
fair value. The acquisition date is the date on which
the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

5 Consolidated financial statements
(1) General principles

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based
on control and the consolidated financial statements
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
exists when the investor has all of following: power
over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered. The financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of
a subsidiary are different from those of the Company,
the Company makes necessary adjustments to the
financial statements of the subsidiary based on the
Company’s own accounting period or accounting
policies. Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised profit or loss arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated when preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, unless they
represent impairment losses that are recognised in
the financial statements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)

5 AMHMBEBRRNERSEGE)
2) B GFERIZFINAE]

5 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)
(2) Subsidiaries acquired through a business combination

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
enterprises under common control, the financial
statements of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated financial statements based on the
carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the financial statements of the ultimate
controlling party as if the combination had occurred at
the date that the ultimate controlling party first obtained
control. The opening balances and the comparative
figures of the consolidated financial statements are
also restated.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
enterprises not under common control, the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date
that control commences, based on the fair value of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition
date.

(3) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
Group derecognises assets, liabilities, and other
related items in shareholders’ equity in relation to
that subsidiary. The remaining equity investment is
remeasured at its fair value at the date when control
is lost. Any resulting gains or losses are recognised
as investment income of the current period.
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Il Significant accounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

6 Cash and cash equivalents 6

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits that can be readily withdraw on demand, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Foreign currency transactions and translation of
foreign currency financial statements

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies
from investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at
the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other
foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates on the
dates of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are generally recognised in profit or loss, unless they
arise from the re-translation of the principal and interest
of specific borrowings for the acquisition and construction
of qualifying assets (see Note Ill.14). Non-monetary items
that are measured at historical cost in foreign currencies
are translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the
transaction date. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined;
the resulting exchange differences are recognised in profit
or loss, except for the differences arising from the re-
translation of available-for-sale financial assets, which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)

7 SEEBMINEHRRITE(H)

7 Foreign currency transactions and translation of

foreign currency financial statements (cont’d)
Assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance
sheet date. Equity items, excluding “Retained earnings”,
are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates at
the transaction dates. Income and expenses of foreign
operation are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange
rates at the transaction dates. The resulting translation
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
The translation differences accumulated in shareholders’
equity with respect to a foreign operation is transferred
to profit or loss in the period when the foreign operation
is disposed.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash at bank and on hand,
receivables, available-for-sale financial asset, payables,
loans and borrowings and share capital.

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in
the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

The Group classifies financial assets and liabilities into
different categories at initial recognition based on the
purpose of acquiring assets or assuming liabilities:
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-
to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial
assets and other financial liabilities.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (cont’d)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
initially at fair value. For financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, any related
directly attributable transaction costs are charged to
profit or loss; for other categories of financial assets
and financial liabilities, any related directly attributable
transaction costs are included in their initial costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets and
liabilities are measured as follows:

— Receivables
Receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

— Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated upon
initial recognition as available for sale and other
financial assets which do not fall into any of the
above categories.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets (cont’d)
Available-for-sale investments in equity instruments
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably are
measured at cost subsequent to initial recognition.
Other available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value subsequent to initial
recognition and changes therein are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses from monetary financial assets which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. When
an investment is derecognised, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or
loss. Dividend income is recognised in profit or
loss when the investee approves the dividends.
Interest is recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method (see Note 111.20(2)).

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than the financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
other financial liabilities, other financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(2) Presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities generally are
presented separately in the balance sheet, and are
not offset. However, a financial asset and a financial
liability are offset and the net amount is presented
in the balance sheet when both of the following
conditions are satisfied:

— the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts

— the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.

(3) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised if the Group’s
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or if the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to another party.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in
profit or loss:

— the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred;

— the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of

it) only when its contractual obligation (or part of it) is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)

8 &mMIAH)
(4) TEEERBE

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
includes but is not limited to:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(b) a breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties faced
by the issuer;

(e) significant changes with an adverse effect that
have taken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer
operates, indicating that the cost of an investment
in an equity instrument may not be recovered by
the investor;

(f) asignificant or a prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)
For the calculation method of impairment of receivables,
refer to Note Ill.9. The impairment of other financial
assets is measured as follows:

— Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are assessed
for impairment on an individual basis and on a
collective group basis. When an available-for-
sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative
loss arising from decline in fair value that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity
is reclassified to profit or loss even though the
financial asset has not been derecognised.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on
an available-for-sale debt instrument, the fair value
of the debt instrument increases in a subsequent
period and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
an investment in an equity instrument classified
as available-for-sale is not reversed through profit
or loss. The impairment loss on an investment in
an unquoted equity instrument whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured is not reversed.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)

8 S@MIA(E)
(65) #ExTA

8 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(5) Equity instrument

The consideration received from the issuance of equity
instruments net of transaction costs is recognised in
shareholders’ equity. Consideration and transaction
costs paid by the Company for repurchasing self-
issued equity instruments are deducted from
shareholders’ equity.

When the Company repurchases its own shares, those
shares are treated as treasury shares. All expenditures
relating to the repurchase are recorded in the cost of
the treasury shares, with the transaction entering into
the share register. Treasury shares are excluded from
profit distributions and are stated as a deduction under
shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.

When treasury shares are cancelled, the share capital
should be reduced to the extent of the total par value
of the treasury shares cancelled. Where the cost of the
treasury shares cancelled exceeds the total par value,
the excess is deducted from capital reserve (share
premium), surplus reserve and retained earnings in
that order. If the cost of treasury shares cancelled is
less than the total par value, the difference is recorded
in the capital reserve (share premium).

When treasury shares are disposed of, any excess of
proceeds above cost is recognised in capital reserve
(share premium); otherwise, the shortfall is deducted
against capital reserve (share premium), surplus
reserve and retained earnings in that order.
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estimates (cont’d) (#8)

9 Impairment of receivables 9 EWFIENRIRERS
Receivables are assessed for impairment on an individual FE U SR IE % T a iR BI)3E A @ B 75
basis and on a collective group basis as follows. NAAEE T N FHERERK °
Where impairment is assessed on an individual basis, an ERER AR EE - B R
impairment loss in respect of a receivable is calculated HRTEET AR RIB S RE(TRIE M
as the excess of its carrying amount over the present REENRRERER)RRER
value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future FEFRHOBEENEERER
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at B AEEEZERFKIBENRT
the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are BERLEZEZSRE B
recognised in profit or loss. BRBEERERK 5T AE H

B e

The assessment is made collectively where receivables EERMAE T A EWFIAER
share similar credit risk characteristics (including those WEBKRE @ HEBXSELER
having not been individually assessed as impaired), based EEEEUERRRBEBAER
on their historical loss experiences, and adjusted by the FIE(BIEAER S N h R E
observable factors reflecting current economic conditions. B B E U IE ) /) LA 1B R A

B - WARERIRE BRI
A ERSIBEITHARETER -

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on FEREWFIERRBEELE - W0
receivables, there is a recovery in the value of the ERBEERPZeREEERA
financial asset which can be related objectively to an BikiE - BERE FEERZEX
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the BEANFTEER  AEEHR
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through ERARERL T UER - 2 A
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss will not EHER 2B OEMEKREER
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding what the THRBRERE T IRBEEERBER
amortised cost would have been had no impairment loss TZemEETER B A ERK
been recognised in prior years. 7N o
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
10 Inventories 10 78

(1) FE/I 72 A

(1) Classification and cost

Inventories include raw materials, work in progress,
semi-finished goods and finished goods.

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other expenditures incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.
In addition to the purchasing cost of raw materials,
work in progress and finished goods include direct
labor costs and an appropriate allocation of production
overheads.

(2) Cost of inventories transferred out

Cost of inventories transferred out is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Consumables including low-value consumables
and packaging materials are amortised in full when
received for use. The amortisation is included in the
cost of the related assets or recognised in profit or
loss for the current period.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

10 Inventories (cont’d)

(3) Basis for determining the net realisable value and
provisioning methods for impairment losses of
inventories
At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and relevant taxes. The net realisable
value of materials held for use in the production is
measured based on the net realisable value of the
finished goods in which they will be incorporated.
The net realisable value of the inventory held to
satisfy sales or service contracts is measured based
on the contract price, to the extent of the quantities
specified in sales contracts, and the excess portion
of inventories is measured based on general selling
prices.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each item of inventories is recognised as a provision
for the impairment, and is recognised in profit or loss.

(4) Inventory system
The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.
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(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
11 Long-term equity investments 11 RERERE

(1) RERIEREREKAHETE
(@) BBEEAHEKRNEE

(1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments
(@) Long-term equity investments acquired through a

business combination gtz &
— Theinitial cost of a long-term equity investment — HRE—EHTHRE
acquired through a business combination BRI S F A EH

involving enterprises under common control
is the Company’s share of the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s equity in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controlling
party at the combination date. The difference
between the initial investment cost and the
carrying amount of the consideration given is
adjusted to the share premium in the capital
reserve, with any excess adjusted against
retained earnings.

For a long-term equity investment obtained
through a business combination not involving
enterprises under common control, the initial
cost comprises the aggregate of the fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity securities issued by
the Company, in exchange for control of the
acquiree.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

11 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(1) Investment cost of long-term equity investments
(cont’d)
(b) Long-term equity investments acquired other than
through a business combination
— A long-term equity investment acquired other
than through a business combination is initially
recognised at the amount of cash paid if the
Group acquires the investment by cash, or at
the fair value of the equity securities issued if
an investment is acquired by issuing equity
securities.

(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity

investment

(@) Investments in subsidiaries
In the Company’s separate financial statements,
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for using the cost method for subsequent
measurement. Except for cash dividends or profit
distributions declared but not yet distributed that
have been included in the price or consideration
paid in obtaining the investments, the Company
recognises its share of the cash dividends or
profit distributions declared by the investee as
investment income in the current period.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

11 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity
investment (cont’d)
(@) Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)

=

The investments in subsidiaries are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

For the impairment of the investments in
subsidiaries, refer to Note l11.17.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in
accordance with the policies described in Note
[11.5.

Investment in joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties have joint control (see
Note Ill.11(3)) and rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method for subsequent
measurement, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

11 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity
investment (cont’d)
(b) Investment in joint ventures (cont’d)
Under the equity method:

— Where the initial cost of a long-term equity
investment exceeds the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets at the date of acquisition, the investment
is initially recognised at cost. Where the initial
investment cost is less than the Group’s interest
in the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets at the date of acquisition, the investment
is initially recognised at the investor’s share of
the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets, and the difference is recognised in
profit or loss.

After the acquisition of the investment, the
Group recognises its share of the investee’s
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as investment income or losses and other
comprehensive income respectively, and
adjusts the carrying amount of the investment
accordingly. Once the investee declares
any cash dividends or profit distributions,
the carrying amount of the investment is
reduced by that amount attributable to the
Group. Changes in the Group’s share of
the investee’s owners’ equity, other than
those arising from the investee’s net profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or profit
distribution (“other changes in owners’ equity”),
is recognised directly in the Group’s equity,
and the carrying amount of the investment is
adjusted accordingly.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

11 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity
investment (cont’d)
(b) Investment in joint ventures (cont’d)

In calculating its share of the investee’s net
profits or losses, other comprehensive income
and changes in other owners’ equity, the
Group recognises investment income and
other comprehensive income after making
appropriate adjustments to align the accounting
policies or accounting periods with those of the
Group based on the fair value of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.
Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no impairment.

The Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses of the investee after the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment
and any long-term interest that in substance
forms part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture is reduced to zero, except to
the extent that the Group has an obligation to
assume additional losses. If the joint venture
subsequently reports net profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

11 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity
investment (cont’d)
(b) Investment in joint ventures (cont’d)
For the impairment of the investments in joint
ventures, refer to Note lIl.17.

(3) Criteria for determining the existence of joint control
over an investee
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities (activities with
significant impact on the returns of the arrangement)
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The following factors are usually considered when
assessing whether the Group can exercise joint control
over an investee:

— Whether no single participant party is in a position
to control the investee’s related activities unilaterally

— Whether strategic decisions relating to the
investee’s related activities require the unanimous
consent of all participant parties that sharing of
control.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
12 Fixed assets 12 EEEE

(1) BIE & EREZIFIF

(1) Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by
the Group for use in production of goods or for
administrative purposes with useful lives over one
accounting year.

The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, related taxes, and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. The cost of
self-constructed assets is measured in accordance
with the policy set out in Note Ill.13.

Where the parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives or provide benefits to the Group
in a different pattern, thus necessitating use of different
depreciation rates or methods, each part is recognised
as a separate fixed asset.

Any subsequent costs including the cost of replacing
part of an item of fixed assets are recognised as
assets when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the costs will flow to the Group, and the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day maintenance of fixed
assets are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

12 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(2) Depreciation of fixed assets
The cost of fixed asset, less its estimated residual value
and accumulated impairment losses, is depreciated
using the straight-line method over its estimated useful
life, unless the fixed asset is classified as held-for-sale.

The estimated useful lives, residual value rates and
depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are

as follows:
Class LRl
Plant and buildings BB RIS

Machinery and equipment a8

Office and other equipment  HFA R K H (b 25 16

Motor vehicles BWHTA

Useful lives, estimated residual value and depreciation
methods are reviewed at least at each year-end.

(3) For the impairment of the fixed assets, refer to Note
.17,

(4) For the recognition, measurement and depreciation

of fixed assets acquired under finance leases, refer
to Note l11.24(3).
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

12 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(5) Disposal of fixed assets
The carrying amount of a fixed asset is derecognised:

— when the fixed asset is on disposal; or
— when no future economic benefit is expected to
be generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item, and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

13 Construction in progress
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, capitalised borrowing costs (see
Note lll.14), and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use.

A self-constructed asset is included in construction in
progress before it is transferred to fixed asset when it is
ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided
against construction in progress.

Construction in progress is stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated impairment losses (see Note Ill.17).
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

14 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as financial expenses when incurred.

During the capitalisation period, the amount of interest
(including amortisation of any discount or premium on
borrowing) to be capitalised in each accounting period
is determined as follows:

— Where funds are borrowed specifically for the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset,
the amount of interest to be capitalised is the interest
expense calculated using effective interest rates
during the period less any interest income earned
from depositing the borrowed funds or any investment
income on the temporary investment of those funds
before being used on the asset.

— To the extent that the Group borrows funds generally
and uses them for the acquisition and construction
of a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the weighted average of the
excess amounts of cumulative expenditures on the
asset over the above amounts of specific borrowings.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the interest rates applicable to the general-purpose
borrowings.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

14

15

Borrowing costs (cont’d)

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flow through the
expected life of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the initially recognised amount of the
borrowings.

During the capitalisation period, exchange differences
related to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose
borrowing denominated in foreign currency are capitalised
as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange
differences related to the principal and interest on foreign
currency borrowings other than a specific-purpose
borrowing are recognised as a financial expense when
incurred.

The capitalisation period is the period from the date of
commencement of capitalisation of borrowing costs to the
date of cessation of capitalisation, excluding any period
over which capitalisation is suspended. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities of acquisition and construction that
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
are in progress, and ceases when the assets become
ready for their intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended when the acquisition and construction
activities are interrupted abnormally for a period of more
than three months.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see Note I11.17).
For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost less
estimated residual value and accumulated impairment
losses is amortised using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful life, unless the intangible asset is
classified as held for sale.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

15 Intangible assets (cont’d)
The amortisation period for such intangible assets is as

follows:
Item Amortisation period (years)
Land use right 35 - 50 years

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life and is not amortised when there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate economic benefits for the Group. At the balance
sheet date, the Group does not have any intangible assets
with indefinite useful life.

Expenditure on an internal research and development
project is classified into expenditure during the research
phase and expenditure during the development phase.

Expenditure during the research phase expensed when
incurred. Expenditure during the development phase is
capitalised if development costs can be measured reliably,
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible, and the Group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete the development. Capitalised
development costs are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see Note Ill.17). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

16 Goodwill
The initial cost of goodwill represents the excess of cost
of acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value
of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree under a
business combination not involving enterprises under
common control.

Goodwill is not amortised and is stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
Note lll.17). On disposal of an asset group or a set of
asset groups, any attributable goodwill is written off and
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)

17 REERERMEENNEMEE

17 Impairment of assets other than inventories and

financial assets

The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date based on internal and external
sources of information to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment:

A
AEBEEERBERBRBEALD
RINEBIEEBAEE NI EERST
FERENTR @ 215

- fixed assets — BEEE

- construction in progress — IR

- intangible assets — EREE

— long-term equity investments — REIRERE
- goodwill — B

If any indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated. In addition, the Group estimates
the recoverable amounts of goodwill at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication of
impairment. Goodwill is allocated to each asset group
or set of asset groups, which is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination for the purpose
of impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of an asset (or asset group, set
of asset groups) is the higher of its fair value (see Note
[11.18) less costs to sell and its present value of expected
future cash flows.

An asset group is composed of assets directly related
to cash-generation and is the smallest identifiable group
of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
asset groups.
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PR ARERSFFERTYH
BEGFEATKEERE - ARE
KEHEEEEREEEMAMEAS
BESME 1 2 & BF A 107 R AR FE R &Y
XaBEA BB EREERE X
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estimates (cont’d) (#8)
17 Impairment of assets other than inventories and 17 REEREREENINEMEE
financial assets (cont’d) B (&)
The present value of expected future cash flows of an BEEGFARRESREMNRE -
asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows, EREECHEGCHBEBREFN&
estimated to be derived from continuing use of the asset REEREANERKIEAS
and from its ultimate disposal, to their present value using mE - EERRENBATERE XY
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate. HETINRENSEINARERE -
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when ARECENGETERRA &
the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its EMAEeEEREREEEAE
carrying amount. A provision for impairment of the asset B BENREAEESRLER
is recognised accordingly. Impairment losses related to WEERE - R EEREE
an asset group or a set of asset groups are allocated first EREERX st AZEHER - [
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated Rt iRABEMEEREEMR - 1
to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then to BEEMAIEEEHABE BB
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the BEXLX BRI EEZEEMA
asset group or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis. SEEEABESETEENERE
However, such allocation would not reduce the carrying B BREEEAESELEEAA
amount of an asset below the highest of its fair value less EFREEZIINAEMSIEEE
costs to sell (if measurable), its present value of expected FEREEEMELEE - R FE
future cash flows (if determinable) and zero. WEMSEEENEREEEEB - 8

HREHNEEENRABETS
BERZEENAABERERE
ERENFR(NATEED) - Z
BEBRHARBAZRENRED
TN NE=E2PREE °

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it is not reversed BERBEEL —KER - ENU1E
in a subsequent period. SrTHE T~ gED -
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

18

19

Fair value measurement
Unless otherwise specified, the Group measures fair value
as follows:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the particular asset or liability
(including the condition and location of the asset and
restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset) that
market participants would consider when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date, and uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data and other information are
available to measure fair value. Valuation techniques
mainly include the market approach, the income approach
and the cost approach.

Provisions

A provision is recognised for an obligation related to a
contingency if the Group has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Where the effect of time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows. Factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money are taken into account as a whole in
reaching the best estimate. Where there is a continuous
range of possible outcomes for the expenditure required,
and each possible outcome in that range is as likely as
any other, the best estimate is the mid-point of that range.
In other cases, the best estimate is determined according
to the following circumstances:
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting

estimates (cont’d)

19 Provisions (cont’d)

— Where the contingency involves a single item, the best

estimate is the most likely outcome

— Where the contingency involves a large population of
items, the best estimate is determined by weighting
all possible outcomes by their associated probabilities.

The Group reviews the carrying amount of a provision at
the balance sheet date and adjusts the carrying amount

to the current best estimate.

20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefit arising
in the course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the
inflows result in increase in shareholders’ equity, other
than increase relating to contributions from shareholders.
Revenue is recognised in profit or loss when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, the
revenue and costs can be measured reliably and the

following conditions are met.

(1) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the general conditions
stated above and the following conditions are satisfied:

— Significant risks and rewards of ownership of

goods have been transferred to the buyer

— The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods

sold.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable

under the sales contract or agreement.
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Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

20 Revenue recognition (cont’d)
(2) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis with reference to the principal outstanding and
the applicable effective interest rate.

21 Employee benefits
(1) Short-term employee benefits

Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, social security
contributions such as medical insurance, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund,
measured at the amount incurred or accrued at the
applicable benchmarks and rates, are recognised as
a liability as the employee provides services, with a
corresponding charge to profit or loss or included in
the cost of assets where appropriate.

(2) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution
plans
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China, the Group participated
in a defined contribution basic pension insurance
plan in the social insurance system established and
managed by government organisations. The Group
makes contributions to basic pension insurance
plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government. Basic pension insurance
contributions are recognised as part of the cost of
assets or charged to profit or loss as the related
services are rendered by the employees.

(3) Termination benefits
When the Group terminates the employment with
employees before the employment contracts expire,
or provides compensation under an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a provision
is recognised with a corresponding expense in profit
or loss at the earlier of the following dates:
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21 BT M (&)
(3) BHRIEH (&)
- AEBETREESTEALNR
FRER S B BRI S BUR
AT R BRI

21 Employee benefits (cont’d)
(3) Termination benefits (cont’d)

— When the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw
the offer of termination benefits because of
an employee termination plan or a curtailment
proposal

—  When the Group has a formal detailed restructuring — AEBEFE -  ERXBP
plan involving the payment of termination benefits &I T =Rl E
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected g:WH  ZEHFEE
that it will carry out the restructuring by starting FHIEEN  KERXEE
to implement that plan or announcing its main 2N EBETZTERN
features to those affected by it. FEARAD  EmMESHE

KTHASEKEBEH
MEIETEERRE -
22 BUNHBD

22 Government grants

Government grants are non-reciprocal transfers of
monetary or non-monetary assets from the government
to the Group except for capital contribution from the
government in the capacity as an investor in the Group.
Specific transfers from the government, such as investment
grants that have been clearly defined in official documents
as part of “capital reserve” are also dealt with as capital
contributions rather than government grants.

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to the
grant.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

22 Government grants (cont’d)

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
monetary asset, it is measured at the amount received or
receivable. If a government grant is in the form of a transfer
of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair value.

Government grants related to assets are grants whose
primary condition is that the Group qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-
term assets. Government grants related to income are
grants other than those related to assets. A government
grant related to an asset is recognised initially as deferred
income and amortised to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the useful life of the asset. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred
in the future is recognised initially as deferred income,
and released to profit or loss in the periods in which the
expenses are recognised. A grant that compensates the
Group for expenses already incurred is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

23 Income tax

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to a business
combination or items recognised directly in equity
(including other comprehensive income).

Current tax is the expected tax payable calculated at the
applicable tax rate on taxable income for the year, plus any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilities
are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set them off and also intends either to settle on
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
23 Income tax (cont’d) 23 F5%i (&)
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arise from BEMGHEERELERMEHA
deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, BHRREATEINEREEZZEM
being the differences between the carrying amounts of JEMTIE R EEETE - TR
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and EREREEERBENEREER
their tax bases, which include the deductible losses HEAHER 2 ERNERE B
and tax credits carried forward to subsequent periods. eSS AR FE R ISR
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is MBRER - BEFTFSHEER
probable that future taxable profits will be available against R LA AR 0] B BR 1S A 2K 5 30 7] K
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. HNEREEZENEANTEES
fR o

Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary differences MREABREEEHZZARS
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities BERBRATZE2NERT
in a transaction that is not a business combination and RN TS E(KAENE
that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or B) AZERZTEENERMT
deductible loss). Deferred tax is not recognised for taxable ERETSELEREMGH - 52&
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition MR ERERNEREZED
of goodwill. PEAEEBRELERSE ©
At the balance sheet date, deferred tax is measured EEAERE  AEEREBEEL
based on the tax consequences that would follow from P57 & 2 A & & /) T8 B Uk B 5k
the expected manner of recovery or settlement of the HEFR  KBEEBEAOBER
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax E o RBIEEKEZEESIEE
rates enacted at the reporting date that are expected to ZEEHRNERTEAEZE
be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or LEFMEMEENBERNIRASHE ©

the liability is settled.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed BEARBRA  AEBEHELERH
at each balance sheet date, and is reduced to the extent BMEENREEBEETERZ -
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits IR R R BRI R A BE R B 15

will be utilised. Such reduction is reversed to the extent L) HE TR FT1S RE R AR R R
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits FrisHiEER Nz - ARG IEL
will be available. FIEMEENREEE - £RA

RREGSEANEAT SRR
MR TIAED -
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

23 Income tax (cont’d)
At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset if all of the following
conditions are met:

the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and current tax assets

different taxable entities which intend either to settle
the current tax liabilities and current tax assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

24 Operating leases and finance leases
A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an
operating lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset to the lessee, irrespective of
whether the legal title to the asset is eventually transferred.
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

(1) Operating lease charges

Rental payments under operating leases are
recognised as part of the cost of another related
asset or as expenses on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

24 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)

(2) Assets leased out under operating leases
Fixed assets leased out under operating leases,
except for investment properties, are depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policies
described in Note Il.12(2). Impairment losses are
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy described in Note lll.17. Income derived from
operating leases is recognised in profit or loss using
the straight-line method over the lease term. If initial
direct costs incurred in respect of the assets leased
out are material, the costs are initially capitalised
and subsequently amortised in profit or loss over the
lease term on the same basis as the lease income.
Otherwise, the costs are charged to profit or loss
immediately.

(3) Assets acquired under finance leases

When the Group acquires an asset under a finance
lease, the asset is measured at an amount equal to
the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease. At the commencement of the
lease term, the minimum lease payments are recorded
as long-term payables. The difference between the
carrying amount of the leased assets and the minimum
lease payments is accounted for as unrecognised
finance charges. Initial direct costs attributable to a
finance lease incurred by the Group are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset. Depreciation and
impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policies described in Notes III.12
(2) and .17, respectively.

If there is reasonable certainty that the Group will
obtain ownership of a leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the leased asset is depreciated over its
estimated useful life. Otherwise, the leased asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its
estimated useful life.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET

estimates (cont’d)

24 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)
(3) Assets acquired under finance leases (cont’d)

25

26

()

4 KEHE  BMEHEE(R)
6@%§ﬁ§ﬁﬂ§§%@

Unrecognised finance charges arising from a finance
lease are recognised using an effective interest method
over the lease term. The amortisation is accounted for
in accordance with the principles of borrowing costs
(see Note Ill.14).

At the balance sheet date, the long-term payables
arising from finance leases, net of the unrecognised
finance charges, are analysed and separately
presented as long-term payables or non-current
liabilities due within one year.

Profit distributions to shareholders

Dividends or profit distributions proposed in the profit
appropriation plan, which will be approved after the
balance sheet date, are not recognised as a liability at
the balance sheet date but are disclosed in the notes
separately.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or
exercise significant influence over another party, or
vice versa, or where two or more parties are subject to
common control or joint control from another party, they
are considered to be related parties. Related parties may
be individuals or enterprises. Enterprises with which the
Company is under common control only from the State
and that have no other related party relationships are not
regarded as related parties.
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ANEERHEE  WEHEH
()

Il Significant accounting policies and accounting =
estimates (cont’d)

27 Segment reporting 27 SRS

Reportable segments are identified based on operating
segments which are determined based on the structure
of the Group’s internal organisation, management
requirements and internal reporting system after taking the
materiality principle into account. Two or more operating
segments may be aggregated into a single operating
segment if the segments have the similar economic
characteristics and are same or similar in respect of the
nature of each segment’s products and services, the
nature of production processes, the types or classes of
customers for the products and services, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of the
actual transaction price for such transactions for segment
reporting. Segment accounting policies are consistent
with those for the consolidated financial statements.

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates as well as underlying assumptions and
uncertainties involved are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future
periods affected.

Notes V.13 and Note IX contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment
of goodwill and fair value of financial instruments. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEE®HBR « GrHaE
estimates (cont’d) (#8)

28 T EEEHHEH R H K (H&)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)

Impairment of receivables

As described in Note IIl.9, receivables that are
measured at amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, an impairment loss is recognised. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about loss
events such as a significant decline in the estimated
future cash flow of an individual debtor or the portfolio
of debtors, and significant changes in the financial
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
If there is objective evidence of a recovery in the value
of receivables which can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed.

— R RE

M= ~ 9FTal - ANEEE
BEBERAEMIEEHRKRAE
SFERNEWREIE - LFTERES
HIRAERR - W HBERE
BN ERERLANAES
o ORENTEERBEER
85k 48 & FE U FRIE T AT R 2R
REMEHRAR NERA R E
RYE - BARERIRAS ER
FIEFRES AR AR IR
EREMEHHAERYIEE

BH -MREBEERPELE
WHIEEEE RE - BERE L
HERZIBREEENETEE
B B RERARERRT
LABE[E] o

— Provision for impairment of inventories 7 BB
As described in Note I1.10, the net realisable value M= 10FTit - AEE
of inventories is under management’s regular review, T HAfLEHE E My a] &35 5% (E -

and as a result, provision for impairment of inventories
is recognised for the excess of inventories’ carrying
amounts over their net realisable values. When
making estimates of net realisable value, the Group
takes into consideration the use of inventories and
other information available to form the underlying
assumptions, including the inventories’ market prices
and the Group’s historical operating costs. The actual
selling price, the costs of completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale and related taxes may vary
based on changes in market conditions and product
saleability, manufacturing technology and the actual
use of the inventories, resulting in the changes in the
provision for impairment of inventories. The net profit
or loss may then be affected in the period when the
impairment of inventories is adjusted.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting
estimates (cont’d)

28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

(cont’d)

— Impairment of assets other than inventories and
financial assets
As described in Note [ll.17, assets other than
inventories and financial assets are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of
the assets. If any such indication exists, an impairment
loss is recognised.

The recoverable amount of an asset (or an asset
group) is the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and its present value of expected future cash
flows. When a market price of the asset (or the asset
group) cannot be obtained reliably, the fair value of
the asset cannot be estimated reliably, the recoverable
amount is calculated based on the present value of
estimated future cash flows. In assessing the present
value of estimated future cash flows, significant
judgements are exercised to estimate the asset’s
production, selling price, related operating expenses
and discount rate to calculate the present value. All
relevant materials which can be obtained are used
for estimation of the recoverable amount, including
the estimation of the production, selling price and
related operating expenses based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions.
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Il Significantaccounting policies and accounting = AFEEDEBE - FrHEET
estimates (cont’d) (#8)
28 Significant accounting estimates and judgments 28 FEG AR M E (&)
(cont’d)

— Depreciation and amortisation of assets such as fixed — BEEEE  BEEEZEER

assets and intangible assets

As described in Notes Ill.12 and 15, assets such as
fixed assets and intangible assets are depreciated
and amortised over their useful lives after taking into
account residual value. The estimated useful lives of
the assets are regularly reviewed to determine the
depreciation and amortisation costs charged in each
reporting period. The useful lives of the assets are
determined based on historical experience of similar
assets and estimated technical changes. If there
have been significant changes in the factors used to
determine the depreciation or amortisation, the rate of
depreciation or amortisation is revised prospectively.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. There are many transactions and events
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Significant
judgment is required from the Group in determining
the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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IV Taxation

1

Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates

Tax type Tax basis Tax rate

Value added tax (VAT) Output VAT is calculated on product
sales and taxable services revenue,
based on tax laws. The remaining
balance of output VAT, after
subtracting the deductible input VAT
of the period, is VAT payable

Based on taxable revenue 5%

Based on business tax and VAT paid 1%, 5%, 7%

17%, 13%

Business tax
City maintenance

and construction tax
Enterprise income tax  Based on taxable profits 15%, 25%
Tax preferential benefit
The Company and other domestic subsidiaries are subject
to income tax rate 25% in 2015 (2014: 25%) except for
the following subsidiaries and the overseas subsidiaries
of the Company which were taxed at the local applicable
income tax rates.

(@) According to implementing the Western Development
Program about taxation preferential policy issued by
Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation,
General Administration of Customs (Cai Shui
No0.202[2001]), notice of the State Administration of
Taxation on specific opinions for implementing taxation
policies for the Great Development of the Western
Regions (Guo Shui Fa No.47[2002]), notice of State
Council on implementation of transitional enterprise
income tax incentives (Guo Fa No0.39[2007]), the
Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
notice of Ministry of Finance, State Administration
of Taxation, General Administration of Customs on
implementation of Western Development Program
about taxation policy (Cai Shui Fa No.58[2011]), the
income tax rate is 15% for Baishui Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2020.

128  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & HF ZEFNRARHERATE

1 #RIA

1 FEHERBE
& HiRKE ik
HER BT ENHEED
MERSBUABERE
STEHEERE - Bk

ERnHEAMMEER
Bk ZRIIRER

17% ~ 13%

HER
EEM TRIER & E AT 5%
WimkE  REREMEERRER 1% 5% 7%
BM EERGE
DERRH  BEARASETH 15% * 25%
2 BKWEE

BT ZZXHKERDNT QA
Gh KRB REARASTFARR
FEHEANMBREE B25%
(2014 : 25%) * AR RIHIRINF
A RIEE A R ANETSE o

@ BB I ~ BRI L
B BHERBHERAILKA
BERWERRREEN RN
(BA%i[2001] 20258 ) ~ (B =R
TS RENEE A AR
ERRHWMBERAREERE W
AN (EFIEE[2002] 475R)
Bl R B EMBH
BEERBRMBA) (R
[2007] 39%%) (R E AR K
MBASEREFE) (AT EE
[EMBFE]) REEEE
Bl A RSB BREB ~ B R B 75 48
B BRAREENEAENERA
B0 K B 3 B S B B A MUK R
R (A% [2011] 585%%)
METE @ B2011F1A1HZE
2020412 A31HHA/KZEF|
EEABR QB ARMIZ15%H
R BN EER -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

IV Taxation (cont’d)

2 Tax preferential benefit (cont’d) 2
(b) According to the EIT Law, revenue derived from primary
processing of agricultural produce is exempt from the
PRC income tax. The production of juice concentrate
of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries and
production of bio-stuff of its subsidiaries are recognised
as primary processing of agricultural produce under
the EIT Law and therefore are exempt from the
PRC income tax commenced from 1 January 2008.
The following companies are recognised as primary
processing of agricultural produce for the year 2015:

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

MIR(HA)

HUEE(E)

(o) RIBBHEMEHE  FERE
m AL EBHA K EER R
FIBf - AARMETFTFA
TR R B M YRR A E
EBTELEMSBETRRE
@A T2 - HIE20084F 1
A1BRERPENFTEE -
2015FEMEZEXZRERIIM
TRIKEZRNSARINT

Name of company
UNCIEL

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Principal activities

R @B RS

Manufacture and sale of juice

Wadh ZEMFTRIDER AR R EERHE
Yantai Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice
HEZEMIAREBR QA R EERHE
Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice
HKREFNRETBRAA] RESTHEREE
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice
TN LERRET AR AR REEEAHERHE
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice
MEREAZENRATRHERLQE [REESTHERHE
Dalian Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice
REBZEMNREABRAF RETEERHE
Yongiji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice
KEREMRATERAR RESTHEREE
Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of juice
BMZ B RA R BR QA [REERTHERIHE
Liquan Yitong Juice Co. Ltd Manufacture and sale of juice
RREBRITARAA] RETHEERHE

Baishui Andre Bio-feedstuff Co., Ltd.

BKZENEM AR AR AT

Manufacture and sale of bio-feedstuff

SRAEENHE

Preferential policy

BERER

Exempt from income tax
PEFEH
Exempt from income tax
SRPAEH
Exempt from income tax
RRPAETR
Exempt from income tax
REET
Exempt from income tax
RRPAETR
Exempt from income tax
RRPAET
Exempt from income tax
REET
Exempt from income tax
RRIPAEH
Exempt from income tax
RRIPTEH
Exempt from income tax

SHATEH
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements A SHHMERREEHEE

1 Cash at bank and on hand 1 E¥ES

2015 2014
ltem 15H —Z—hEF —E—OF
Cash on hand EFRE 222,294 133,843
Bank deposits RITER 106,150,765 191,400,633
Total A&t 106,373,059 191,534,476
As at 31 December 2015, bank deposits restrictions placed R2015F 128318  N&EBME
on the Group’s ownership amounted to RMB31,500,000 BZERHARTERBARKE
(2014: Nil), see note V.15. 31,500,0007C(2014412 8318 :

&) 2REMER 15-

2 Bills receivable 2 EWRERE
2015 2014
ltem (R —ZE—hEF —F-mF
Bank acceptance bills RITHEH[ER - 290,000
All of the above bills were due within one year, and were rtHEWEEAE—FARE - B
not pledged, endorsed or transferred. RIFERT « HEHEE o
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

3 Accounts receivable
(1) Accounts receivable by customer type are as follows:

&

Customer type

Related Parties
Third Parties

Sub-total
Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts

ERPEH

FEE YN
F=7

et
W

1]

Total A&t

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:

Ageing ARER

Within 6 months (inclusive) 616 A AR (& 61E 4 )

Over 6 months but within 1 year 683 ZE1FE(&14)
(inclusive)

Sub-total NET

Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Total

W RERER

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts receivable are recognised.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

SHMBEERREFE(E)

3 MR
(1) JEHh B 303 B 5 2B 51 5 7 4
I

2015 2014
—2-aF —F—mE

1,762,385 31,617,680
100,949,802 114,163,050

102,712,187 145,680,730

102,712,187 145,680,730

(2) BERIRF LRI S HTLOT
2015 2014
“2—-hF —F—MmF
102,712,187 137,253,953

= 8,426,777

102,712,187 145,680,730

102,712,187 145,680,730

Ariic B e M AR SR AERR B AR R AR
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

3 Accounts receivable (cont’d)

(3) Accounts receivable of the Group are individually
significant, therefore the accounts receivable are
assessed for impairment and bad debt provision is
determined on an individual basis and, then, on a
collective group basis. Management is of the view that
no bad debt provision is necessary for the account
receivables balances in regard of the sound credit
record of the customers.

(4) For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014, the Group had no individually
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision
which had been fully or substantially provided for in
prior years.

(5) For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014, the Group had not written off any
accounts receivable.

4 Prepayments
(1) Prepayments by category are as follows:

[tem HH
Prepayments to suppliers UL
Other prepayments TR EAM
Sub-total NET

Less: Provision for bad and o AR

doubtful debts

Total =
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4 FEMSFFRIE
(1) TBITIEZ2E2 20T

2015 2014
—E—5F —Z—puFE
2,236,903 7,720,751
1,756,111 1,260,700
3,993,014 8,981,451
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

4 Prepayments (cont’d)
(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows:

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

4 FE{SFUE(4E)
(2) FEFIBIEERER S AT -

2015 2014

Ageing AR =% — T[4
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8 EE B (%) Gk} EE (%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FLAR(E14) 3,701,054 93% 8,266,743 92%

Over 1 year but within

2 years (inclusive) 1522 (526F) 291,960 7% 714,708 8%
Total CEll 3,993,014 100% 8,981,451 100%

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
prepayments are recognised.

5 Other receivables
(1) Other receivables by customer type are as follows:

Customer type BPAER

Related parties ezl

Third parties E=F

Sub-total T

Less: Provision for bad and o AR
doubtful debts

Total AT

(2) As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
the Group did not hold any other receivables which
were denominated in foreign currency.

BE B4 T BB SR B AR B 44
HE -

5 HtbFEWRK
(1) B2 E P 723

7\— o

2015 2014
—Z—hEF —ET—OF
28,654,071 -
5,712,908 6,070,635
34,366,979 6,070,635
4,132,565 4,132,565
30,234,414 1,938,070

(2) 12015912 4318 k20144
12A31H « "EBEEINEHE
ftb FEUIFR ©
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

5 Other receivables (cont’d)

(3) The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

Ageing

Within 1 year (inclusive)

Over 1 year but within 2 years
(inclusive)

Over 2 years but within 3 years
(inclusive)

Over 3 years

Sub-total
Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Total

ARiR

1FEAR(E1F)
1FEE2F(526F)

2FE3F(F3F)

3FMNAE

gt

B IERRER

The ageing is counted starting from the date when

other receivables are recognised.

(4) For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014, the Group had no individually
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision
which had been fully or substantially provided for in

prior years.
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 1 SHMEBEERTEEFEREGE)
(cont’d)
6 Inventories 6 &
(1) Inventories by category are as follows: (1) FES#E
2015 2014
—ZE—hEF —E—F
Provision for Provision for
impairment of Carrying impairment of Carrying
Book value inventories amount Book value inventories amount
Item FEES FE&H BEE FEEE RE#E KEER REER
Raw materialsand R EREEY
packaging materials 29,904,414 - 29,904,414 29,280,800 - 29,280,800
Finished goods EXm 833,366,293 (663,546) 832,702,747 755,031,745 (2,967,908) 752,063,837
Total =HI 863,270,707 (663,546) 862,607,161 784,312,545 (2,967,908) 781,344,637
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, no MR2015%12 A31H k20144
inventories were pledged as security by the Group. 12A318 - AEBEEAR
EROEFEE -
(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the (2) FEARFZESHAWLT -
year is as follows:
2015 —E—hFE
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
at the beginning during the during the at the end
of the year year year of the year
&% L ¥
ltem FERE ks Bm#E HOH EXBE
Raw materials and M B R
packaging materials 2k 29,280,800 531,800,848 531,177,234 29,904,414
Finished goods BN 755,031,745 696,662,601 618,328,053 833,366,293
Sub-total INet 784,312,545 1,228,463,449  1,149,505,287 863,270,707
Less: Provision for impairment i : F S B (EEE
of inventories 2,967,908 579,459 2,883,821 663,546
Total At 781,344,637 1,227,883,990  1,146,621,466 862,607,161
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements A SHHMERREHFEE)

(cont’d)
6 Inventories (cont’d) 6 FE(#E)
(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the 2) FERFZEGSHISWLMT -
year is as follows: (cont’d) (%)
2014 —T=—pusE
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
at the beginning during the during the at the end
of the year year year of the year
E T
ltem FEBH FAERE B0 B EREAE
Raw materials and B R
packaging materials Bk 28,057,962 374,049,645 372,826,807 29,280,800
Finished goods ERXm 846,642,522 537,935,462 629,546,239 755,031,745
Sub-total et 874,700,484 911,985,107 1,002,373,046 784,312,545
Less: Provision for impairment i : F S M (EERE
of inventories = 2,967,908 = 2,967,908
Total CH 874,700,484 909,017,199  1,002,373,046 781,344,637
(3) Provision for impairment of inventories (8) FEHKIEESR
2015 —Z-hE
Balance at the Additions during Reductions Balance at the
beginning of the year the year during the year end of the year
Item FEEH FNEE FERMER FERYEH FXBH
Provision Written-off
iR o
Finished goods ERm 2,967,908 579,459 2,883,821 663,546
2014 —E-mEF
Balance at the Additions during Reductions Balance at the
beginning of the year the year during the year end of the year
ltem FEREHN FOBE REENRHE TERLEE ERAE
Provision Reverse/Written-off
iHE E et
Finished goods B - 2,967,908 - 2,967,908
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(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

6 Inventories (cont’d) 6 FE(#E)
(3) Provision for impairment of inventories (cont’d) B) FEEIEERE (&)
For the year ended at 31 December 2015, the increase M2015FE - FEKERERE
of provision for impairment of inventories is amounted Fig A R#579,4597L(2014
to RMB579,459 (31 December 2014: RMB2,967,908), FE : AR¥2067,90870 )
which was recognised as a reduction of inventories BRBFTERRIE @ WIEAX
and was charged to profit or loss during the year. HEFARFEENFER o
7 Available-for-sale financial assets 7 AMHEESREE
Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value at the end FREARBEHFENITHEE
of the year: SREE :

2015 2014
ltem 1HE —Z-1f —E-MF
Jiashi Wealth Cash Management No.3 ~ ZEHEHE&EERE3R 50,000,000 =
Working capital loan collective trust SMENRBECERELRES

scheme of Kaidi Electric Power f55tatEl 11,065,602 =
Income right collective scheme of EEEENGEESESETETE

Tenghai Agriculture 10,112,754 -
Bank wealth management products RITIRBEE M 15,000,000 =
Working capital loan collective trust BN BEMERETEREEESE

scheme of Zhengzhou Navigation FEatEl

Construction = 10,000,000
Sub-total NEt 86,178,356 10,000,000
Less: Provision for impairment B OREES = =
Total aEr 86,178,356 10,000,000
As at 31 December 2015, the cost of available-for-sale M20156F12A318 * AEBEFS
financial assets held by the Group is RMB86,000,000 M EAHEESMEERERS
(31 December 2014: RMB10,000,000). The total A R #:86,000,0007t(2014 612
amount of changes in the fair value attributable to other H318 : AK®10,000,0007T)
comprehensive income is RMB178,356 (31 December REF AHMEERENARE
2014: Nil). BEEFHEHER/IARE178,3567T

(2014%12H31H : &) »

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the 201512 A31 H %2014 124
above available-for-sale financial assets held by the Group 318 AEERB AN LA H#E
are expected to be matured in one year. ESMEEL KN —F ARSI -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

8 Other current assets

ltem THH

Input VAT recoverable RIS ERE IR

9 Long-term equity investments
(1) Long-term equity investments by category are as

follows:
ltem S|
Investment in a joint venture HEELENKE

Less: Provision for impairment — J& : JBU{EXEHE

Total =X
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I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

2015 2014

“Z—hEF —Z—UFE
65,697,933 60,263,754

9 REIRERSE
(1) REREREZELT -

2015 2014

—E—FE  —TF

- 53,762,081

- 53,762,081
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

9 Long-term equity investments (cont’d) 9 REIRERE(E)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the 2) RAIRIER EXRFEZE)E T 5
year are as follows: R -
2015 —E-RF

Movements during the year

FERAED

Investment ~ Declared
income  distribution

Balance at recognised of cash ~ Balance at Shareholding Voting rights
Investment  the beginning  Decrease under equity  dividends or theend Provision for percentage  percentage
cost  oftheyear in capital method profits  of the year  impairment (%) (%)
ERET  EEGM EHRE  EHAE
HEH  ReEW HEER  RiRR  EixaE
Investes HREE BERE  EMBE  WORE HEeR HHE  ERBE 0 ERRE WAG)  HA()
Joint verture aEls
Vantai Tongli Beverage ~ fEA%RISH
Indusries Co, Ltd. TEAERDA 50000000 53762081 55472414 1,710,333 - - - - -
2014 —F—MmF
Movements during the year
RS
Investment Declared
income~ distribution
Balance at recognised ofcash  Balance at Shareholding  Viting rights
Investment ~ the beginning ~ Decreasein  under equity ~ dlvidends or theend Provisionfor  percentage  percentage
cost  of the year captal method profis  of the year  impaiment (%) (%)
Eait  EEEH EhRE  ERRE
B RekA AREE  BURR EumAEL
Investee RREE RENA  EORE BRE REME INE FRRE O ERE filte)
Joint verture aEls
Vantai Tongi Beverage e
Industries Co., Ltd. TEERAE 50000000 57,569,260 - 164281 (5A50000) 53,762,081 - 50% 50%
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

9 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)

(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the
year are as follows: (cont’d)
Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd. was a
joint venture of the Group, and the Group held 50%
of ownership. On 31 December 2015, the Group
transferred all the 50% interest in Yantai Tongli
Beverage Industries Co., Ltd. to Shanghai Tongyibaoli
Times Industrial Co., Ltd. After the completion of
transfer, the Group no longer held any interest in
Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd.

(3) Details of the joint venture

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

2015
Total assets  Total liabilities
at 31 December at 31 December
2015 2015
2015%12A310  2015%12R31A
Name of Investee RIRBENATE BERE ARHEE
Yantai Tongli Beverage  ASFISHIE
Industries Co., Ltd. BRAF 119,851,105 8,906,277
2014

Total assets Total liabilities

at 31 December  at 31

2014

December
2014

2014128318 2014%12831H

Name of Investee BRBENSATE BEAS

Yanta Tongli Beverage  [HA#AISHT £
Industries Co., Ltd. BRAH 112,241 505
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BEEH

4,717,343

9 RERERE(R

@)

REJREIRE N FEZE ST 7
WrEaw : (48)

WEGREE TEBRAFR
BAEEBEGERNR  AEH
[R5 IZ BB &2 50% 742015
F12H318 ' AEEEEH
BHENBETEBRAREE
50% s T EBG—EBRA
BEBRAR  RZEE2EM
TRk AEETHBEEEA
SF R TEBR A R E ([ #

N2
s o

T
(8) &ELXEEE
—E—-RFE
Total net assets  Total operating
at 31 December income Net profit
2015 for the year for the year
2015612A31H FEER -¥:3
PEELR A& BA
110,944,828 94,024,161 3,420,666
—E—OF

Total net assets  Total operating

at 31 December income Net profit
2014 for the year for the year
2014512A318 AEER A
REELR LNt A
107,524,162 104,729,890 3,285,642
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

10 Fixed assets 10 BEEE
(1) Fixed assets (1) ElEEEGL
Plant &  Machinery & Office & other Motor
buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
RER B8  BORGR L]
ltem L BEh 1 | E-4Ed ] IA ait
Cost R
At 1 January 2014 20141818 455,079,943 791,324,087 21,608,874 11,034,214 1,279,042,118
Additions during the year REEN
- Purchases - BE 1,833,170 5,190,650 1,198,050 9,188 8,231,058
- Additions due to business — FRE-EHTEE
combinations involving A
enterprises not under
common control 46,820,353 56,454,904 726,764 488,096 104,490,117
- Transfers from construction - ERTEEA
in progress 1,536,060 2,131,658 = = 4,267,718
Disposals or written-offs FERESHE
during the year - (60,615) (90,366) (145,005) (285,986)
At 31 December 2014 2014%12A318 505,269,526 855,650,684 23,438,322 11,386,493  1,395,745,025
At 1 January 2015 20151 A1H 505,269,526 855,650,684 23,438,322 11,386,493  1,395,745,025
Addltions during the year AL
- Purchases - BE 2,582,052 1,453,832 2,217,400 437,903 6,691,187
- Additions due to business N
combinations invalving AN
enterprises not under
common control 47,012,338 30,588,187 195,198 609,892 78,405,615
- Transfers from construction ~ — ERIRREA
in progress 251,114 730,720 - - 981,834
Disposals or written-offs AERETRE
during the year (51077 (3393493  (687,938)  (2419.837)  (6,552,345)
At 31 December 2015 2015F12A318 555,063,953 885,029,930 25,162,982 10,014,451  1,475,271,316
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 M BEERRESEEE)

(cont’d)
10 Fixed assets (cont’d) 10 EEEE(E)
(1) Fixed assets (cont’d) (1) BlE ZEZT L (&)
Plant &  Machinery & Office & other Motor
buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
RER #E  BORGR L]
ftem R BEh | e IA ait
Accumulated depreciation e
At1 January 2014 2014E1A1A (112013,116) (425678373  (16904596)  (8884,770)  (564,380,856)
Charge for the year AEHR (10016,806)  (25,186,769)  (1,239,972) (661,457)  (37,105,004)
Disposals or written-offs TERESRE
during the year - 8,876 81,329 115,200 205,405
MO Db AWERRNE (20502 WER®O  (B0DZ9 G40 080
At 1 January 2015 20151 A1H (122,929,922)  (450,856,266)  (18,063,239) (9,431,027)  (601,280,454)
Charge for the year AEHR (10,923,117)  (28,451,527) (1,285,006) (469,851)  (41,129,501)
Disposals or written-offs AERERHE
during the year 45,968 2,904,406 460,584 2,117,738 5,528,696
MO Dt 0 AERANE (GOMTOT) A {BGEIAE) (7S (66259
Provision for impairment HE%EMR
At 1 January 2015 20151 A1H - - - - -
Charge for the year AEHR - (480,787) - - (480,787)
At 31 December 2015 20156128318 - e - - (eoTe)
Carrying amounts KEER
At 31 December 2015 2015F12A318 421,256,882 408,145,756 6,275,321 2,231,311 837,909,270
At 31 December 2014 2014128318 382,339,604 404,794,418 5,375,083 1,055,466 794,464,571
As at 31 December 2015, there are no fixed assets R2015F 12318 » A& H
with restrictions placed on the Group’s ownership EMEEZIRHNETE
(81 December 2014: RMB65,346,057), refer to Note E(2014%F12A831H : AR
V.15. #65,346,0577T) © 2 R M
Hh ~15-
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

10 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(2) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
no fixed assets were acquired under finance leases.

(3) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, no
fixed assets were leased out under operating leases.

(4) Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s fixed assets
with pending certificates of ownership is as follows:

Reason
Item Book value  for pending
Buildings of 46,872,968  The certificates
Liquan Yitong are in the process

Juice Co.,Ltd.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have
fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

10 BIEEE (&)
Q) BEBBEHEHAMEEEE

187

7201512 31 H & 20144
12H3818 - AEEEREM
ERANETEE -

(3) BABAETHET L AIEE B E

7R2015%F12 A31H & 20144F
12H381H » AEEESEAL
EHERHMNETEEE -

(4) RRZEREENEIELEF

i
R2015F 12318 » A&EH
NTEEEERNZLERER
= .

= -

KURE
EH FEEE #RERE
BRERE 46872968 EETE
Bt Y
BRAR
BRRE

R2014F12A831H » XEE
EANLZERIENETE
E o
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I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

11 EEIRE
(1) EZILIEIEL

11 Construction in progress
(1) Details of construction in progress

2015 2014
Z8-1f “3-R%

Provison for Carrying Provison for Carrying

Book value impairment amount  Book value  impairment amount

Project EH Ffi ] REER FEEE REHE FE%ERE REER
Refrigeration storage REEER

construction 5,835,509 - 5,835,509 - = =

Others Efth 44,821 - 44,821 15,311 - 15,311

Total CH 5,880,330 - 5880,330 15,311 - 15,311

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
no interest was capitalized in construction in progress

of the Group.

(2) Movements of major construction in progress projects

during the year

2015912 431 H & 20144
12H318 @ A"EBMERET
FRAEFBERLE -

@) EXEZEIEEEZHIEN

2015 —E—hEF
Additions due
to business
combinations
involving
enterprises Transfer to Percentage
At notunder  Additions fixed assets A3t of actual
{January  common during  duringthe  December  costto Project  Sources
Budget 2015 control  the year year 2015 budget (%)  progress of funds
#A-f THRM
05E  HTER BEBN  N5E BARN
Project ER FRM (MR ofEm  sEEM ERRE  0BME  UB(Y  IREE #exE
Boler e 768,920 - = 768920 (768,920) - 100% 100%  Intemnal funding
mprovement BRES
Tubbing workshop HREEER 80,068 - - 80068 (30,069 - 100% 100%  Interal funcing
construction BRES
Refrigeration storage RBERR 10,387,060 - 5061304 06961 (132846 5835509 5% 57%  Intemal funcing
construction BRES
Others i - 15,311 29510 - - 44821 NA /A Internal funding
&R TR BEAES
Total aif 11,236,048 15311 5000004 1755949 (081834  5880,330
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SHMBEERREFE(E)

(2) EXGZTIEERZEE7

—

Percentage
of actual
cost to
budget (%)
TEZi
RAEES
sfit)

100%
100%

61%

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements a
(cont’d)
11 Construction in progress (cont’d) 11 EEIRE(E)
(2) Movements of major construction projects in progress
during the year (cont’d) (#&)
2014 —=
Adaftions due
10 busingss
combinations
involving
enterprises Transfer to
At notunder  Adaltions  fixed assets A3t
1 January common during ~ duingthe  December
Budget 014 control the year year 2014
*A—f
e HEE FEEN oM
Project %R BEE  IME  AMEM REEm EEAE  123%1E
Sewage tregiment FAERIE 500000 296,409 - 1887 (459276) -
project
Fruit pulp workshop SREERT 5000000 1515854 20046 150364 (3701364 -
construction
Others A 000 122389 - - (lororg 163
Total aif 3700000 1934652 205,146 318231 (4.267,718) 15,311

—Z—-RFFH Annual Report 2015

Project
progress

TEER

100%

100%

61%

Sources
of funds

EEDY ]

Internal funaing
HAED
Internal funding
BRAL
Internal funding

HAEE
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

12 Intangible assets

[tem

Cost
At 1 January 2014
Additions during the year
— Purchases
— Additions due to business combinations
involving enterprises not under
common control

At 31 December 2014

At 1 January 2015
Additions during the year
— Purchases
— Additions due to business combinations
involving enterprises not under
common control

At 31 December 2015

Accumulated amortization
At 1 January 2014
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2014

At 1 January 2015
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2015

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. &L HFZERRTBRHERA A

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

12 |REE

HH

RERE
20141 H1H
AN

—BE

— IR TR E

BB

2014412H31H

201541 418
AR
—-BE

—FER—HEH T %

& G 0

2015512 A31H
BT

20141 H1H

AREFEFR

2014412 H31H

201591 A1H
REFTR

2015912 A31H

REEE
20155 12A31H

2014412 H31H

Land use rights

- ith {F PR 4

94,961,199

205,128

23,740,730

118,907,057

118,907,057

9,783,138

128,690,195

(15,841,809)
(2,364,571)

(18,206,380)

(18,206,380)
(2,809,351)

(21,015,731)

107,674,464

100,700,677
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements i SHHMEERREAFEEGE)
(cont’d)

12 Intangible assets (cont’d) 12 B EE(H)
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, all of 7R2015F12 A31H &2014F12H
the Group’s land use rights are on medium-term lease. 318 - REEMB T MERAER
FRERFEAY o
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, no 2015F12 A31H &2014F12H
interest was capitalized in intangible assets of the Group. 318 ' AEEEFEEREEE

REECBRFE -

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no intangible M2015F 128318  NREBEEER
assets used as mortgage for bank loans (31 December HHEFEEE2014F : AR
2014: RMB5,205,910), refer to Note V.15. 5,205,9107T) * 2R KR 15°
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, 7R2015%F12 A31H k20145124
the Group did not have land use rights with pending 318 ' AEEERPLEREE
certificates of ownership. B Hb{E AR S
13 Goodwill 13 BE
(1) Changes in goodwill (1) BEZE) g
Provision
Balance at Additions Disposal Balance at impairment
1 January during during 31 December at the end
2015 the year the year 2015 of the year
Name of investee RRAENLER Note i 15%1R1R RERN BERD  2015512R31R EXREER
Aoyue Andre Lemon Industy ~ ZERERIE (a) ol
Technology Co, Lid. EFNGERAT 3,066,399 - - 3,066,599 -
YongjAndre Juice Co,, Lid,  XEREFREL () ¥
ARAT 4,506,293 - - 4,566,293 -
Yantai Longkou Ancre Juice ~ RAROREAET () 0
Co, Lid SEERAT 1,020,683 - - 1,020,683 -
Tota Al 8,653,575 - - 8,663,575 -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

13 Goodwill (cont’d)
(1) Changes in goodwill (cont’d)

(@) The Group acquired the equity interest of Anyue Andre
Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. at an aggregated
cash consideration of RMB52,120,000 in 2014. The
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s interests in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Anyue Andre
Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.

T

The Group acquired the equity interest of Yongji Andre
Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash consideration of
RMB56,201,585 in 2011. The goodwill represents the
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
interests in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

(¢) The Group acquired the equity interest of Yantai
Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash
consideration of RMB32,035,810 in 2003. The goodwiill
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over
the Group’s interests in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd.

(2) Impairment provision for goodwill
The Group’s asset groups which the goodwill regonised
are Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co.,
Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and Yantai Longkou
Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
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I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

13 & (E)
(1) BEZE)EH(E)
@@ R2014FE - AEEZHA
R #52,120,0007T 47 88 Ak AN 4k
BT RERENEBRERERE
BRARAER - WK AR
BIZLHIEB N L ERERE
BEFXBEBRAR AT HRAE
E BEAAEBENEREAHR
ZELZENESEEEREBR
AREENEE -

(o) R2011FE - AEBZHA
R#56,201,585 T 4r B8 Ak AN Uk
BT KBREMNRETERA
AR MR - WAE R A B IR IR L
PIEBH X BELREFRETAE
RARIMHRAEE AEAR
BEMNERALKELZERR
PUTARARRBENEE -

(©) M20034FEF @ AEBH A
R #32,035,810TT W iB A A UL
BTG R 2R R SRR
BRAFMED - WEERANE
BILLLHIESOEGEDZE
MRARBERABAHAE
E BEARBEEMNEZRSH
MEa R ZENMRATRH AR
AREBEREE -

@) BEREERE
REERE Bt B AR A
BEMAES REERENER
EXMXBRAF - KEZE
NREABRARRMAEGER
ZEMBARHBERAF -
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I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

13 Goodwill (cont’d) 13 & (#|)
(2) Impairment provision for goodwill (cont’d) @) /’?ﬁé/ﬁfﬁ EfF (&)

The recoverable amounts of Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice
Co., Ltd. and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co.,
Ltd. are determined based on the present value of
expected future cash flows. The present value of
expected future cash flows was projected based
on the next five-year financial forecast approved by
management and a pre-tax discount rate of 10.07%
(2014: 7.00%). The cash flows beyond the five-year
forecast period were assumed to be stable. Based
on the estimated recoverable amount, no impairment
loss was recognised. However, as key assumptions
on which management has made in respect of future
cash projections are subject to change, management
believes that any adverse change in the assumptions
would cause the carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.

Key assumptions used in estimating the present value
of expected future cash flows of Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice
Co., Ltd. and Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
include gross profit margin of 10%~24% and sales
volume increase of 0%~13%, which were determined
by management based on past performance.

amaﬁﬂﬁgﬁiﬂ&ﬁ@
/NI ﬂﬁ£ﬁﬂ%mﬁﬁ
RARRMAEEOLZERNRAT
%ﬂﬁ@@ﬂmTW@ﬁﬁu
T ARB S RERBENF A
BE AEEHRBREEEEH
R B R R F B 75 TR & AN
10.07% (20144 : 7.00%) %t
RIHTIR RTEFT 2 B EA R R IR
RERERE - BBSFHHE
HEZ2EFHNREREHR
FRRFIBE - YA E L
ARt E RIS B EBUERRE
K - BFEFTZEEMARIRIE
SRERBEMKENBRER
AIRE S BENRE  EHEER/
MR ERBRREEEEE
AlFTgEE AR EW%EE@
BRERKEISEE o

HEEZBEMNEREERER
RBAR - KELZEMNRBET
BRARMMEAELDLZERNR
TAHRRER AR EARKIE L
MERBENFTERAT10%
~24% &) E F E F10%~13% I
HEHERRERIELSBER
%o%@@ﬁfﬁ%%ﬁzm
RE S BERETELRE -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements A SHHMERREHFEE)

(cont’d)

14 Deferred tax assets

14 EEFRSHEE
(1) REEZEAL T F L E AT

(1) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

[tem

Deductible tax losses

AEHER

(2) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognised

deferred tax assets

Year

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Total

15 Assets with restricted ownership or right of use

As at 31 December 2015, the assets with restrictions

placed on their ownership were as follows:

tem

Cash at bank and on hand

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Total

L

v
EE4E
ElAE

2015

-k TR

65,203,455

2014
—F—NF

48,930,441

(2) R EBAEIL 135 & Em) A

HEBH ISR
2015 2014
—E—FE —TF
- 4,927,592
12,710,556 13,798,356
2,009,827 2,009,827
3,070,754 3,070,754
25,123,912 25,123,912
22,288,406 -
65,203,455 48,930,441

15 iR EREZZIRFNEE

MN2015%12 8318 @ FTAEEXE
REIHEEBRIT

Balance at Additions Decrease  Balance at

the beginning during during the end

of the year the year the year  of the year

Note i FARE RELEM RERD FXBE
VA i - 31,500,000 - 31,500,000
V10  f 10 65,346,057 - (65,346,057) -
vVi2 & 12 5,205,910 - (6,205,910) -
70,551,967 31,500,000  (70,551,967) 31,500,000

Assets secured for pledged loans are the cash at bank
and on hand, and assets secured for mortgage loans are

the fixed assets and intangible assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

16 Short-term loans

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

16 HHIER

[tem 2015
ER ~E-1f

Annual Exchange

interest rate Currency Principal Rate RMB

EfE 1 F%eH HEEE AR%RH
Credit loans ERER 4.01%-~556% RMBAER - - 115,000,000
Guaranteed loans REET Base rate+10% RMBAR® - - 49,000,000

EEHELF10%

Guaranteed loans REBA 4.35%~4.79% RMBAERR - - 240,000,000
Credit loans* ERER: Libor+2.0% USDET 7,500,000 6.4936 48,702,000
Loans secured by mortgage ERER 1.93% USDET 5,000,000 6.4936 32,468,000
Total At

*

This loan item represents the subsidiaries’ loans which are
guaranteed by the Company. These loans are categorised
as credit loans in the consolidated financial statements.

*

485,170,000

WEBERBARRREEFARREMH
EROBRES  ARBREEA
R PA - RAS G IRER
PIEREBIEREFETIIR
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

16 Short-term loans (cont’d)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

16 EHAER ()

ltem 2014
HH —E-mE

Annual Exchange

interest rate Currency Principal Rate RMB

EF|% BiE REEE NEER  ARBEE
Credit loans ERER 4,28%~4.50% USDET 23,000,000 6.1190 140,737,000
Credit loans EBER 590% RMBARH = - 45,000,000
Guaranteed loans REBR Base rate+4%~10%  RMBARH - - 140,000,000

FAEFIE 1 34%~10%

Guaranteed loans REBER 550%-~6.16%  RMBAR¥ - - 97,500,000
Loans secured by mortgage R {ER 6.30% RMBARM - - 50,000,000
Total &t

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the
Group did not have past due short-term loans.

For the information of assets related to pledged loans
and mortgage loans, refer to Note V.15.

For the information of guranteed loans, refer to Note X.6.
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements A

(cont’d)

17 Accounts payable

The ageing analysis of accounts payable is as follows:

Ageing

Within 6 months (inclusive)

Over 6 months but within 1 year
(inclusive)

Over 1 year

Total

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts payable are recognised.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 15 Bz RS )

17 FETERRX

P REREBARET)

SHMBERREFEE(E)

FERBRFURBRIR DMTAOT ¢
2015 2014
BRER —E—h%F —ZT U
6EAAA(E6M[EA) 60,694,180 53,638,759
6EAZ1F(E1F) 5,810,491 4,629,647
165 F 2,486,747 8,295,159
At 68,991,418 66,563,565

st
=H o
A
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

18 Employee benefits payable

(1) Details of employee benefits payable:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
- defined contribution plans

Total

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
- defined contribution plans

Total

154 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

pERikadl
BB REA

—RERFAE

72 B
BB B
—RERIFAHE

18 FENE T HM
(1) EITBLH#H T -

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December
2015 the year the year 2015
2015% 20155
1A1H FE2m XERY 12A31H
16,365,153 42,602,268 40,597,060 18,370,361
- 3,350,424 3,350,424 -
16,365,153 45,952,692 43,947,484 18,370,361
At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December
2014 the year the year 2014
20144 20144
1R18 AREEIN RERD 12A31H
15,889,032 38,703,898 38,227,777 16,365,153
= 3,197,128 3,197,128 =
15,889,032 41,901,026 41,424,905 16,365,153




Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements I eHHMEERRBEEAFEGE)
(cont’d)

18 Employee benefits payable (cont’d) 18 FE{IHR T ¥ (&
(2) Short-term employee benefits (2) F2EIFT B
At Accrued Decreased At
1 January during during 31 December
2015 the year the year 2015
20155 2015%

118 FEBIN XERD 12A31H

Salaries, bonuses, allowances L& -~ #&% -

and subsidies ERLMFEA 3,375,108 40,170,553 38,045,776 5,499,885
Staff welfare BIRNE 12,988,131 443,504 561,159 12,870,476
Social insurance HeRkE

Medical insurance BERRE - 1,116,808 1,116,808 -

Work-related injury insurance ~ T{5RKRE - 175,498 175,498 -

Maternity insurance EERRE - 159,544 159,544 -
Housing fund EELES - 279,695 279,695 -
Labour union fee and TEILER

staffs’ education fee BIHELE 1,914 256,666 258,580 -
Total =) 16,365,153 42,602,268 40,597,060 18,370,361

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December
2014 the year the year 2014
20144 20145

18108 ARELEN RERD 12A31H

Salaries, bonuses, allowances L& - &%

and subsidies EBL AR 2,783,504 35,372,403 34,780,799 3,375,108
Staff welfare BIEMNE 13,105,528 1,596,178 1,713,575 12,988,131
Social insurance HeRkeE

Medical insurance BERRE - 1,065,709 1,065,709 -

Work-related injury insurance  L5RkE = 167,470 167,470 =

Maternity insurance EERKRE = 152,244 152,244 =
Housing fund FELES® = 174,339 174,339 =
Labour union fee and TEEEM

staffs’ education fee BIHELE = 175,555 173,641 1,914
Total Bt 15,889,032 38,703,898 38,227,777 16,365,153
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5t 35 ¥R AR B o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

18 BB T3 BH (4
(3) BEBILIET—RELEFat &)

18 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)
(3) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December

2015 the year the year 2015

20155 20155

1A1H FFEi12m *EHLY 12A31H

Basic pension insurance EAREZRR - 3,190,880 3,190,880 =
Unemployment insurance REREE - 159,544 159,544 =
Total T - 3,350,424 3,350,424 -
At Accrued Decreased At

1 January during during 31 December

2014 the year the year 2014

20144 20144

1A18 RE N RERLD 12A31H

Basic pension insurance EAXEZRR - 3,044,884 3,044,884 =
Unemployment insurance KERBRE = 152,244 152,244 =
Total A&t - 3,197,128 3,197,128 -

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the
Group did not have payment in arrears in the balance
of employee benefits payable.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement
plans organised by municipal governments for its staff.
The Group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans at 21% (2014: 21%) of the salaries,
bonuses and certain allowances of its staff of last year.
A member of the plan is entitled to a pension, to be
paid by the municipal governments, equal to a fixed
proportion of the salary prevailing at his retirement
date. The Group has no other material obligation for
the payment of pension benefits associated with these
plans beyond the annual contributions described
above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

(cont’d)
19 Taxes payable 10 EXHE
2015 2014
ltem IHH —E—hF —EF—-NF
Enterprise income tax TSR = 6,742,852
Value added tax BER 19,901,343 6,836,458
Business tax =) - 1,055
Land use tax b FE AR 562,742 454,081
Property tax BEM 108,492 297,281
Stamp duty ENFERL 5,581 20,947
Construction fund for water works ~ 7KFlZZEES - 58,635
Urban maintenance and ST R
construction tax - 426,827
Education surcharges B B - 309,558
Individual income tax (EUNGIEES 11,492 36,316
Total A&t 20,589,650 15,184,010
20 Dividends payable 20 FEABRFI

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual general
meeting on 26 May 2015, a dividend payable to the equity
shareholders of the Company of RMBO0.05 per share,
totaling RMB19,630,000, was approved for 2014 by the
Company’s shareholders.

On 16 March 2016, the Board of Directors proposed an
appropriation of cash dividends of RMB0.05 per share
to the Company’s shareholders for 2015. The proposal
is pending for approval.

The Group did not have dividends payable outstanding
at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

The Group did not have individual or significant dividends
payable denominated in the foreign currency as at 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

BIER2015F5H26 B FT B FA K
REFRSHEBARZESR - 2014
FENRE AR ARKO0.05
7T+ 5t AR #19,630,000T B
R ED IR T AR EIRER ©

BEEEN2016FE3 16 HiRE

NAEIRREIREZE2016FER &
f&F) - =R K B AR FI A R 60.05
TC ° UETBIRRR M AR R A G HE o

M2015%12 A31H k20144124
318 @ ANEEE R ARTHRMEF] o

2015512 31 H k2014512 A

310 - AEEEERIEAASNE
TRRHFERTRA -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

21 Other payables

[tem

Related parties
Third parties

Total

22 Share capital
2015

Total number of shares K&
Amount (RMB) ARELHE

2014

Total number of shares k{248
Amount (RMB) ARESH

ES2hll

Balance at
the beginning
of the year

NN

392,600,000
392,600,000

Balance at
the beginning
of the year

EBE

408,988,000
408,988,000

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

21 HtENR

2015 2014
—EZ—hsF —ET—OF
A = 7,859,697
56,481,147 31,960,551
56,481,147 39,820,248
22 R
—E—-A%F
Changes during the year(+/-)
FERERR
Balance at
Issue of Share  Purchase of the end
new shares  consolidation ~ own shares Sub-total of the year
BiTHE Rinat kR it FXBE
- - (11,600,0000  (11,600,0000 381,000,000
- - (11,600,000)  (11,600,000) 381,000,000
—T—mF
Changes during the year(+/-)
AEZBER
Balance at
Issue of Share Purchase of the end
new shares  consolidation own shares Sub-total of the year
BITHR ke st mEER (R It EXeE
- - (16,388,000)  (16,388,000) 392,600,000
- - (16,388,000)  (16,388,000) 392,600,000
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

22 Share capital (cont’d) 22 BRA(48])

Pursuant to resolutions passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 26 May
2015 as well as approvals from relevant government
authorities, the Company repurchased 11,600,000 H
Shares at consideration of HKD39,174,060 (equivalent
to RMB31,122,248) at Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited from 3 June 2015 to 11 June 2015. The
repurchase shares had been cancelled and deregistered,
the Company’s issued share capital was reduced by the
amount equivalent to the par value of the repurchased
shares. Excess of the repurchase price over the par
value of the repurchased shares were charged against
the capital reserve. After the capital reduction, the total
number of shares changed from 392,600,000 shares
to 381,000,000 shares with a par value of RMB1.00
each and the Company’s registered capital changed to
RMB381,000,000.

Pursuant to resolutions passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the
H shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 26
June 2013 and 25 June 2014 as well as approvals
from relevant government authorities, the Company
repurchased 16,388,000 H Shares at consideration
of HKD42,806,005 (equivalent to RMB34,161,243) at
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from 17
June 2014 to 25 July 2014. The repurchase shares had
been cancelled and deregistered. The Company’s issued
share capital was reduced by the amount equivalent to
the par value of the repurchased shares. Excess of the
repurchase price over the par value of the repurchased
shares were charged against the capital reserve. After
the capital reduction, the total number of shares changed
from 408,988,000 shares to 392,600,000 shares with a
par value of RMB1.00 each and the Company’s registered
capital changed to RMB392,600,000.

RIEFR2015F5 A 26 B A& A%
HAFARG RARA ZHEEEE
BABRFEAZEIREANZ @
BRBRNB AT 2 it
A B2015F6A3HE6A11H
IE - ANA R LA £ %E 39,174,060
B (HEER AR®KS1,122,248
TTIREBHER AR AR
4 &F [ 8% 11,600,000 M % {7 °
FrEEBRmHEFHE @ ARRE %
TIRAZEZER MO EBEEEE
B EEERBBIRARE S T
BT EARARTE - BER A7
[i% 15 42 £k i 392,600,000 i% & =
381,000,0000% @ B#REEARE
1.007T - FMEREEEE 5 A
R #381,000,0007T °

RIERR 201346 526 H F12014 4
6H25H BFAMRRBF A KA
AaElzHIRE B AR B A2
FIRRAZREB I RBEREREH
BT # R 2 3t - 8201446 A
17HE7H25H 1 © KR RILAKE
$ %H42,806,0058 L (HHERAR
#:34,161,243TL ) R BB ER B
FrA R A A& & E 16,388,000
A5 o FrEl B (D B s 8 -
AAREBITRARZERDH
EEMREER - BB ERBRR
KEEBR R T ERATE o HE
%  RAE KSR 408,988,000
%8 Z392,600,0000% @ =AY EIE
ARM1.007T + H & 2N A8 fE &
B A ARE392,600,0007T °
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Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements A SHHMERREHFEE)
(cont’d)
23 Capital reserve 23 EXRRE
2015 —ZE—hFE

Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at

the beginning during during the end

of the year the year the year of the year

Item ER Note [ ENEE FEEm FERYD FXRBH

Share premiums RAEE V22 h22 94,612,597 - 19,522,248 75,090,349
Foreign currency translation

difference INERATEER 9,926 = = 9,926

Total At 94,622,523 - 19522248 75,100,275

Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at

the beginning during during the end

of the year the year the year of the year

ltem ER Note  ffis FNRE IREHED RERD FRAE

Share premiums RARE V22  h 22 112,385,840 - 17,773,243 94,612,597
Foreign currency translation

difference INERETEER 9,926 - - 9,926

Total Gh 112,395,766 - 17773243 94622523
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)

24 Other comprehensive income

[tem

Items that may be redassified to profit or loss

Incluaing: gain or loss on changes in fair value
of avaiable-for-sale financial assets

Total

25 Surplus reserve
2015

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

2014

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

24 HtiRE W=

Movements during the year

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

FERER
Balance at Balance at
the beginning Net-of-tax the end of
of the year Less: transfer amount the year
attributable to to profit or attributable to  attributable to
shareholders Before-tax  loss previously  Less: Income  shareholders of ~ shareholders of
of the Company amount recognised  taxexpense  the Company the Company
RERBLR
RRtAH #HA BERELF
BAkE  FERBRE  AtBAWE REBER  RRGAHSS
R ENRE BER EWHABE W FORER REBAF  WEREXER
kBN BERRN
Efitreha - 178,356 - - 178,356 178,356
Hh: AT ESRAR
M BERHER - 178,336 - - 178,35 178,336
ait - 178,336 - - 178,35 178,35
25 BN
—ZE—-h%F
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
HH FMERE XEEIN FRERE
EERBOE 104,236,707 1,558,152 105,794,859
—TmF
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
HE FHIARFR REEIE N FARHBREE
EERBBRAIE 108,144,993 1,091,714 104,236,707
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

26 Retained earnings

Item JBH
At 1 January 2014 2014F1A18
Add: Net profits for the year attributable n: AESBREAR
to shareholders of the Company RRAEHE
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve B RREBAR
Dividends payable on ordinary shares JER SRR
At 31 December 2014 2014F12A31H
At 1 January 2015 2015F1 A1H
Add: Net profits for the year attributable n: AEZBREAT
to shareholders of the Company RRAFHE
Less: Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve B RRBRAE
Dividends payable on ordinary shares JER LR RARA
At 31 December 2015 2015%12831H

As at 31 December 2015, the distributable reserve of the
Company amounted to RMB366,364,934 (31 December
2014: RMB371,971,570).

(1) Distribution of dividends of ordinary shares declared
during the year
Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual general
meeting on 26 May 2015, a dividend payable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMBO0.05 per share,
totalling RMB 19,630,000, was approved.

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting on 25 June 2014, a dividend payable
to equity shareholders of the Company of RMBO0.05
per share, totalling RMB20,226,102, was approved.
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I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

26 2 AE

Appropriation or

Note Amount  distribution rate
i &8 RESSEHA
911,107,036
58,398,903
1,091,714 10%
() 20,226,102
2) 948,188,123
948,188,123
73,182,269
1,558,152 10%
() 19,630,000
(

2) 1,000,182,240

2015912318 * XA &EA[ 5
KTARFIRE 2 EESEAA
R #366,364,9347C(2014F12 A
318 : AR#371,971,5707T) °

(1) 280 E 8RR AT

RiE2015F5 426 H R E K
EHHE  AAEREBRK
EIRZERSBRFN - 5
ARM005 « et ARM
19,630,0007T °

RiE2014F6 A25 AR E KX
EHHE  AAE R EBRK
Rk IR I H - &K
AR0.05T @ Rt AR
20,226,1027T °
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B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

26 Retained earnings (cont’d)
(2) Retained earnings at the end of the year
Surplus reserve made by the subsidiaries in 2015 and
attributable to the Company is RMB6,003,088 (2014
RMB6,005,107).

As at 31 December 2015, the consolidated retained
earnings attributable to the Company included
an appropriation of RMB104,137,460 (2014:
RMB98,134,372) to surplus reserve made by the
Company’s subsidiaries.

27 Operating income and operating costs

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

26 Ko BLRE(E)

(2) FIRAK 3 BF B a2 B
FRANFRINEBR
ANEMBBAEBAEARE
6,003,0887C (20144 : ARKE
6,005,1077C) °

MR2015F 12 A31 8 » & &
SEBERSRF MRS A
BhREaTARANTFA
ARBRMNABBATBBAREK
104,137,460 7C(2014 4 : A
R#98,134,3727T) °

27 EXRA - EXRAK

2015 2014
—ZE—hF —E-mF
Income Cost Income Cost
[tem B E KA %3 A DN
Principal activities TEER 810,046,751 625,618,343 838,376,877 641,170,232
Other businesses H 7% 7,923,728 3,000,817 6,091,736 3,706,809
Total Bt 817,970,479 628,619,160 844,468,613 644,877,041

Principal activities income primarily represents income
arising from the sales of condensed juice and relative
products.

Other businesses income primarily represents income
arising from the sales of packaging materials and storage
charge income.

TEEBRAREARENRE
A MAEERFEERA -

HMEXBRATEREHEBRRD
EMHBARRRBRASE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

28

29

30

Business taxes and surcharges

ltem HH

Urban maintenance and 3T R
construction tax

Education surcharges B BN

Price adjustment fund ERAmES

Construction fund for water works ~ 7KF|E&RES

Total a5t

Selling and distribution expenses

ltem 15 B

Freight charge BB

Payroll and welfare TEEA

Others HAh

Total AEF

General and administrative expenses

[tem

Payroll and welfare
Stamp duty and property tax
Depreciation and amortisation
expenses
Repair and motor vehicle expenses
Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit services
Other consulting services fees
Others

Total

A H

TE®RF
HEREEERSHE
FTEBMEHE

HEENMERE M
Sl A

—FitE
HiniA ARG &
Hitp
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SHMBEERREFE(E)

28 EXEH SR

2015 2014
—ZE—REF —ZE—JOF
2,730,674 3,035,252
2,304,181 2,800,765
- 85,206
158,387 177,477
5,193,242 6,098,700
29 SHEEH
2015 2014
—Z—hF —E—NF
34,319,177 35,798,158
1,578,499 1,474,382
14,087,148 12,669,365
49,984,824 49,941,905
30 EEEHA
2015 2014
—Z—hEF —ET—OF
15,646,958 15,325,517
9,438,394 6,748,051
5,501,195 5,134,482
850,005 1,125,855
1,480,000 1,480,000
2,712,993 2,371,772
13,931,439 18,235,637
49,560,984 50,421,314




Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

(cont’d)
31 Financial expenses 31 BIER
2015 2014
ltem 1H B —E—-5LF —EF-NF
Interest expenses on bank REFREHFEZ 28,823,359 38,961,102
borrowings repayable wholly RTERFEER
within five years
Interest income from deposits FRE A B HA (237,183) (822,499)
Net exchange gains HIE H = (6,215,986) (1,295,724)
Other financial expenses H 758 A 1,021,802 1,120,467
Total SR 23,391,992 37,963,346
32 Impairment losses 32 EEREEBX
2015 2014
ltem IHH —E—RF —EF-NmF
Inventories FE 579,459 2,967,908
Fixed assets BEE&E 480,787 -
Total BEt 1,060,246 2,967,908
33 Investment income 33 BEWE
(1) Investment income by items (1) HE Kz 5B F 157
Note 2015 2014
ltem JBE 3 —E—5LF —E-NF
Income from long-term equity B A E KRR
investments accounted for % & Wa
under the equity method 1,710,333 1,642,821
Income from disposal of long-term & & FREIIRIEIRE
equity investments EER WS @) 2,937,986 =
Investment income from CREEEREDEDN
financial assets during "B W
the investment period 2,511,608 1,087,855
Total &5t 7,159,927 2,730,676
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

33 Investment income (cont’d)

(2) On 31 December 2015, the Group transferred all the 50%
interest in Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd. to
Shanghai Tongyibaoli Times Industrial Co., Ltd. at the
consideration of RMB58,410,400. After the completion of
transfer, the Group no longer held any interest in Yantai
Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd.

34 Non-operating income
(1) Non-operating income by item is as follows:

ltem JAH
Government grants B
Negative goodwill arising from WEFARBEE

acquisition of a subsidiary
Gains on disposal of non-current assets R EERE TG
Others Hith

Total A&t

(2) Details of government grants

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

33 REW=H (&)

Note  Hist

(2) 2015 12H381H - AEEE

EREBNBRHIERERRAZ
#Bo0% T L ER —BEBEAK
BEXEARRAA  REERARE
58,410,4007T ° N % B E BT
2% AEETBEAEB SN
FB TEFR A BT

34 EFEIMRA
(1) EXINRAZIEF IERL0T -

2015 2014

1% —FRF

4,280,647 2,775,500

2,681,631 =

65,276 214

12,272 15,905

7,039,826 2,791,619

2) BB

2015 2014
Item EH —Z-1f —T-mF
Agriculture grants BERHE 317,407 790,000
Science and technology RHZIE A #Ak 1,615,684 1,655,000

project subsidies

Environment protection award 535 (R 22 2,206,731 =
Others Hit 140,825 330,500
Total CED 4,280,647 2,775,500

166  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

Related to HEE/
assets/income eyl

related to income RIS AR
related to income  ERU S AR

related to income B2t 5 1E RS
related to assets/ REE /Wis1EH
income



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 M BEERRESEEE)
(cont’d)

34 Non-operating income (cont’d) 34 EEIRA (F)
(2) Details of government grants (cont’d) ) BfTiE BB (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
received grants totalling RMB4,280,647 from various
government authorities as rewards for its contributions
in research and development of juice condensation
technology, local environmental protection and local
agriculture industry.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
received grants totalling RMB2,775,500 from various
government authorities as rewards for its contributions
in research and development of juice condensation
technology, information technology for juice production

R2015F E - NEBWE%
EIBR AT 2D P M BL HL 5T A R ¥
4,280,647 JT LA SZ B 7K &= B &
RATBRERMAOTE - B
REREREWEEZRNE
Ej{ o

MR2014FE » AEEWE %
& R AT 30 P9 4 B HL 5T A R B
2,775,500 7T DA 52 B) 7N & [ &
RTRERITAOE - RoTE
EEEHEkEHEXER

and local agriculture industry. RIERL

35 Non-operating expenses 35 BT H
2015 2014
[tem IHH —E=E—RF — U4
Donations provided HINBHE 10,000 120,000

Losses on disposal of FMBEEREBRX

non-current assets 464,739 41,348
Others Hi 88,810 8,659
Total CEl 563,549 170,007

36 Income tax expenses 36 FTiSHiEH
2015 2014
ltem IHH —Z—hEF —ET—OF

Current tax expenses for the year ERERABER T E R

estimated in accordance with EEMSEH

tax law and regulations 588,355 249,092
Provision/(reversal) of income e/ (L) AR FER

tax for previous years Frigi & A 25,611 (1,097,308)
Total =X 613,966 (848,216)
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 M BEERRESEEE)

(cont’d)
36 Income tax expenses (cont’d) 36 FIEBiERH (&)
Reconciliation between income tax expenses and P55 & A et E A BEE N
accounting profit is as follows: T~
2015 2014

ltem 15 E —ZE—hEF —E—MOF
Profit before taxation W AR 73,796,235 57,550,687
Expected income tax expenses R 25% 5T H /) TE 2R

at tax rate of 25% FTiS i 18,449,059 14,387,672
Effect of tax preferential benefit HEENTE (27,755,102) (20,844,258)
Effect of different tax rates FREEATRFENZE

applied by certain subsidiaries 4,098,815 520,949
Effect of tax loss of R EREEN R

tax-exempted business 146,252 10,834
Effect of non-deductible costs, AR AR - BRA

expenses and losses B E 168,527 174,102
Effect of unrecognised deferred RE EARERBEILEFTSH

tax asset for deductible loss BEMAENBETE 5,561,740 6,280,978
Effect of utilisation of deductible {5 A AT AR MESRIRAE AT 1S

loss, which had not been HEEMIKISENZE

recognised as deferred tax

asset in previous years (80,936) (281,185)
Effect of adjusting income tax AR FEEFSHNE

for previous years 25,611 (1,097,308)
Income tax expenses NEFMBEHER 613,966 (848,216)
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 M BEERRESEEE)
(cont’d)

37 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments 37 EEREERMS
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are EEREEMES BN
as follows:
Salaries,
Directors’ and allowances and Retirement
supervisors’ fees benefits in kind scheme contributions Total
EERES 5548 iy

Name 4 fig R EMEN R it

05 04 N5 01 W5 A 05 01
RMB  RWME  RMB  RWB  RMB  RIB RMB  RVB
-$-if "T-0F Z8-EF CT0F Z8-EF CTDF ZE-BF CTIF
ABR  ARE ARR ARE ARR ARE ABR R

Executive Directors: §78%:

Wang An % 50,000 50000 209,638 188,281 10,765 9,779 270,403 248,060

Zhang Hui RiE 50,000 50,000 209,638 188,281 10,765 9,779 210,403 248,060

Wang Yanhui TR 50,000 50,000 112,031 100,489 10,765 9,779 172,79 160,268
Non-executve Directors: FHES:

Liu Tsung-i ArE 50,000 50,000 - - - - 50,000 50,000
Independent non-executive Directors: BUIHTES

Gong Fan -4 50,000 50,000 - - - - 50,000 50,000

Chow Kam Hung i 50,000 50,000 - - - = 50,000 50,000

Li Tongning IR 50,000 50,000 = - - - 50,000 50,000
Supenvisors: Bz

Wang Chuntang 15% 30,000 30,000 = - - - 30,000 30,000

Yu Jiang I 30000 30,000 - - - - 30000 30,000

Zhang Suoping RATE 30,000 30,000 - - - - 30,000 30,000
Total Aif 440,000 440000 531,307 477,051 32,295 20337 1,003,602 946388
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December R2015FE K2014FE » AAF
2014, no emoluments were paid to the directors or WAREZEREFES NEMEE
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the LAYE & W 5| E in AR A 7] &Y 12 B
Company or as compensation for loss of office. SREERRAE(E o
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements 7 M BEERRESEEE)

(cont’d)
38 Individuals with the highest emoluments 38 BREHFAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three R2016FE » Al H AL
(2014: three) are executive directors whose emoluments o = A(201445F : = A) BT
are disclosed in Note V.37 above. The aggregate of BE - EMEeERMER - 37F
the emoluments in respect of the other two (2014: two) FLAEE - Efh— A(2014%F : —
individuals are as follows: AN)ZFHI R ¢
2015 2014
A% —ET—OF
Salaries and other emoluments e LEMBE 275,285 285,801
Retirement scheme contributions BIREAET B K 21,483 18,167
Total At 296,768 303,968
The emoluments of the two (2014: two) individuals with Z U mxmE AL(2014F : =
the highest emoluments are within the following band: NBFMEATEHE 2R -
2015 2014
—E—hEF —ET—OF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A® AEL
HKD Nil-HKD1,000,000 B Z T — 7 #1,000,0007T 2 2
39 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the 39 BENBARMBEENERE
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders BERARRIRREZAHHFHE
of the Company includes a profit of RMB15,581,516 BEBINARRD R M BEREFE
(2014: RMB6,012,142), which has been dealt with in the AR#15,581,5167T (20144 A
financial statements of the Company. R¥6,012,14270) ©
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

40 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share

(1)

@

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding:

Consolidated net profit attributable ~ S3BRANA A @ ALAR R
to ordinary shareholders of & B FE
the Company

Weighted average number of RRABATEIMNE B
ordinary shares outstanding eI 8

Basic earnings per share ERGR
(RMB/share) (ARET/IR)

Diluted earnings per share RGN
(RMB/Share) (AR¥T/ )

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the reporting period.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares is
calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 112 3175 B E
Effect of repurchase of own shares  BEIRER{D B3 £

Weighted average number of FREBRAINFETH 2
ordinary shares at 31 December

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I SHMBERRAEZERGE)

40 EXBRUENFESRKEN
STERRE
(1) BRI Kz
EAGRIKZAZEBRAAT
38 AR AR R A & G R B A
NN R)EETTAE SN 38 AR A N4

FHEETE
2015 2014
—E—-hF —T—uE
73,182,269 58,398,903

386,049,977 401,123,563

0.190 0.146

0.190 0.146

AEBAIIRFEAGTA
BEREBEENBEELTEBR -

(2) B BB NI T B3 BB
W

2015 2014
—Z-1F T

392,600,000 408,988,000
(6,550,023) (7,864,437)

386,049,977 401,123,563
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(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

(cont’d)

41 Supplement to income statement

Notes to the consolidated financial statements ol

Expenses are analysed by their nature:

[tem

Operating income
Less: Changes in inventories of
finished goods and
work in progress
Finished goods purchased
Raw materials and
packaging materials used
Employee benefits expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
expenses
Financial expenses
Impairment losses
Other expenses

Add: Investment income

Operating profit

A H

ZETON
W ERERAEER
e

SN AR B OB 7K
A EMR R B

BTHNER
FrEMEHER

M5 E R
BERERX
Hitb & M

m: wEWKER

CEST

42 Explanatory notes to items in the cash flow statement
(1) Proceeds relating to other operating activities:

Proceeds from sales of raw
materials

Receipts of government grants
and compensations

Total

HERMHERINES

WS e B A B B R R
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SHMBEERREFE(E)

41 FERBEER

HMBRFHNERREEDHE -

2015 2014

-k TR —T-mEF
817,970,479 844,468,613
(78,334,548) 91,610,777
67,159,790 104,387,580
531,177,234 372,826,807
45,952,692 41,901,026
43,938,852 39,469,575
23,391,992 37,963,346
1,060,246 2,967,908
123,464,190 101,143,195
7,159,927 2,730,676
67,319,958 54,929,075

42 BERERBEEHITRE

(1) WER b 2 E &% B) B B #Y 2E

&
2015 2014
“S—h¥F —FmF
7,928,728 6,091,736
4,292,919 2,791,405
12,216,647 8,883,141
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(cont’d)
42 Explanatory notes to items in the cash flow statement

(cont’d)
(2) Payments relating to other operating activities:

XM BEEMEER

Payments for period expenses

(3) Proceeds relating to other investing activities:

WE ey 77 SR B U

Proceeds relating to interests
on deposit

(4) Proceeds relating to other financing activities:

Collection of deposits secured for U [El{& X E HERE
pledged loans

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

SHMBERREFEE(E)

42 REREREB TR (E)

2) XV E M 25 BB A 2

&=
2015 2014
“Z—hF —E—F
34,225,331 66,528,395

(3) W BB fth B2 12 B2 B B B Y 27

74
2015 2014
—Z—hEF —ET—mF
237,183 822,499
(4) Y2 A 1t 815 &% B B 5
2
2015 2014
—Z—AREF —EF-NF
- 9,354,986
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

43 Supplementary information on cash flow statement
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement
a. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from
operating activities:

I SHMBERRAEERGE)

43 BEREBEREBERBR
(1) B nEkibnEr

a. #FENEHASLLED
BERE

ltem B H
Net profit A
Add: Depreciation of fixed assets e EEBENE
Amortisation of intangible asset B EE
Impairment provisions against BERELEE
assets
Losses on disposal of REREEEERN
fixed assets FHEKR
Negative goodwill arising from W T2 A
acquisition of a subsidiary BEE
Financial expenses 85 & H
Investment income AW
(Increase)/decrease in gross FEHGEM),
inventories L
Decrease in operating A IR B /Y
receivables Ve
Decrease in operating KT IER R
payables Ve
Net cash inflow from operating RETREEER
activities WeMEFHE

b. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

ltem A H
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 34 KIREEEBIE
of the year FREE
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRREEEMN
at the beginning of the year FEYIERER
Net decrease in cash BeRAEEEY
and cash equivalents R
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2015 2014
—E—-hf —E
73,182,269 58,398,903
41,129,501 37,105,004
2,809,351 2,364,571
1,060,246 2,967,908

399,463 41,134
(2,681,631) =
25,254,847 37,700,477
(7,159,927) (2,730,676)
(23,431,096) 122,507,461
50,444,777 119,876,260
(24,898,263)  (154,907,088)
136,109,537 223,323,954
b. BeNIREEEWFE

B/

2015 2014
—ZE—-hf —T—OF
106,373,059 191,534,476
191,534,476 427,710,459

(85,161,417) (236,175,983)
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(cont’d)

43 Supplementary information on cash flow statement

(cont’d)
(2) Information on acquisition of a subsidiary during the
year:
Consideration for acquiring ST ARIMERE
a subsidiary

Cash and cash equivalents paid EST R RS FHIIREFIIR &

for acquiring a subsidiary ZEY
Less: Cash and cash equivalents Ji : F2 "l B HIE &AM
held by the acquired REZEEY
subsidiary

Net cash paid for the acquisition ERf§ TR AT HIREF 58

As at 21 August 2015, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of Liquan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd. from
Yantai Yitong Heat Co., Ltd. and Yantai Anlin Fruit
Co., Ltd. at a cash consideration of RMB104,800,000.
After the acquisition, Liquan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd.
became a subsidiary of the Group.

As at 15 May 2014, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology
Co., Ltd. from Yantai Anlin Fruit Co., Ltd. at a cash
consideration of RMB52,120,000. After the acquisition,
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.
became a subsidiary of the Group.

For non-cash assets and liabilities held by the acquired
subsidiaries, refer to Note VI.1(3).

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

SHMBERREFEE(E)

43 RERBREBIER (F)

2) ANFEFF LA EE 1 E

2015 2014

- 2k T 3 —E—OF
104,800,000 52,120,000
104,800,000 52,120,000
1,924,622 1,247,876
102,875,378 50,872,124

MR2015FE8A21H + REBE AL
KRB ARE104,800,0007C 18 B 1A
BEBATARARFEE LMK
REEBRARIAMFEMNERER
BETAMR A RI100%M8# o BRI
BEEiE  BREBRBTER
RAIBAER 2 FRF] o

R2014FE5 8158 » ZEB AL
KRB ARE52,120,0007T 88 B 1#
BEMREBRAAMBENL
ELEMNEREERMEBR AR
100% 3 - RIKEETEIE - &F
ZEMESEEERBEAERARK
BREEZFAR o

BB TFARINERELSEBEM
aFE  2RHEN 1) -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial statements A SHMEBEEREEFREGE)
(cont’d)
43 Supplementary information on cash flow statement 43 BWERERBEER (&)
(cont’d)
(3) Details of cash and cash equivalents

B) e ME 2 FEYHIIEK

2015 2014
ltem IHH —ZE—hEF —E—MOF
Cash at bank and on hand e 106,373,059 191,534,476
Including: Cash on hand Hrh: BEFRE 222,294 133,843

Bank deposits ATRERE AR Z A9

available on demand HRITFERK 74,650,765 191,400,633

Closing balance of cash and cash X & KIR& FEYWHEE
equivalents 106,373,059 191,634,476

Including: Restricted cash and ~ H&F : B RFIHEBAT AR

cash equivalents held {5 FA 2 1R il 9 3R & AN

by the Company or REZEEY

subsidiaries of the

Group 31,500,000 -
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Change of consolidation scope 72N
1 Business combinations involving enterprises not
under common control
(1) Business combinations involving enterprises not under
common control during the year
Time of Costof  Proportion  Method
equity equity ofequity  ofequity  Acquisition
acquisition acquisition  acquisition  acquisition  date
i1 i1 B ki
hRER L5 BREA  BRAX  MRA
(%
Liquan Yitong Juice Co, Ltd. 21 August 104,800,000 100%  Cash 21 August 2015
2015
ERERRATARLT  015%8A21A 104800000 0% %é 2015%58R21

Liguan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd. is a company registered
in Liquan, Shannxi Province on 5 December 2011, and
is principally engaged in manufacturing, processing
and sale of clear apple juice. Before the acquisition,
its ultimate holding company was Yantai Hengtong
Powerplant Co., Ltd.

(2) Cost of business combination and goodwill

The Group acquired the equity interest of Liquan Yitong
Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash consideration
of RMB104,800,000 in 2015. The shortfall of the
acquisition cost below the Group’s interests in the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Liquan Yitong Juice Co., Ltd. is recognised as part
of the consolidated non-operating income.

AEtHtEEnEE
1 ERE—EZEFTESH
(1) KEFEL IR —IZHIDES
Via
Acquiree's financial information
from acquisition date to
31 December 2015
BERAZ
015512831 RRWR A HEHER
Basis of
acquisition date Net cash
determination Income Net profit outflow
L
EEks kA BE SRLAH
Change of 24,635,592 3078215 (1,792,299)
registration
TEEZEE %A% 308215 (1,792,009

@

RREBRETERATEN
201112 A5 HERFEERE R
FERIH AR EBERELE
B NMIWHEERERRET - &
WEMZA - BREBRET
BERABIHREZIER AR AR
BEZRAEARAF o

B AR R

R20156FE - REBE LA
R #104,800,000 7T 4g B X 7
WETERBBEITARA
AIRRER - B AR IR
DIESHERIERRTTAR
RNAIFHREE - ABEARE
ENEEERBEHEEING
)\ °
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VI Change of consolidation scope (cont’d)

1 Business combinations involving enterprises not
under common control (cont’d)
(3) Identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree at the
acquisition date

Assets BE
Cash at bank and on hand BEES
Accounts receivable JFE U BR K
Prepayments TETERK
Other receivables H th & W 5K
Inventories FE
Fixed assets &l & E
Construction in progress EETE
Intangible assets mEAE

Liabilities BE:
Accounts payable FEfTER K
Advances from customers TR AR X
Taxes payable BT ®
Other payables H MR
Interest payable FER T &

Net assets FEE

If there is an active market for the above identifiable
assets, the quoted prices in the active market are used
to establish their fair value. If there is no active market,
their fair value is estimated based on the market prices
of the same or similar types of assets which have an
active market. If there is no active market for the same
asset or similar types of assets, valuation techniques
will be used to determine the fair value.

The fair value of the above identifiable liabilities is

determined basing on the payable amount or the
present value of the payable amount.

178  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & H ZEFNRARHERATE

SfEENEE(E)

FE—EH T RS0 ()

3) BEETREE AR EE
HME EayER

Carrying Fair
amount value
RERE [REE
1,924,622 1,924,622
2,379,324 2,379,324
1,165,817 1,165,817
3,157,315 3,157,315
56,220,841 58,410,887
77,488,736 78,405,615
5,090,904 5,090,904
4,952,462 9,783,138

10,922,786 10,922,786
22,069,388 22,069,388
910,684 910,684
3,819,249 3,819,249
15,113,884 15,113,884

99,544,030 107,481,631

LAAHREEFEERMS
BRSBTS T A REETE
HRAArBE: TFEEEMS -
BREXBUEEFELRRMS
B 2BRABXBUEENTS
EBREEEQAEE HRENK
BUEER I FREEEMESH -
ARMAERNEEEAREE -

AR HRBEERRENSENL
ENEBNREEREAAEE -



VI Change of consolidation scope (cont’d)

2

VIl Interests in other entities

1

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

The liquidation and cancellation of subsidiaries

In April 2015 and August 2015, the Group liquidated
and deregistered two subsidiaries, i.e. Longkou Andre
Bio-feedstuff Co., Ltd. and Baishui Andre Bio-feedstuff
Co., Ltd. The subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities had been
transferred to Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and
Yantai Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd., respectively, at
book value. As a result, Longkou Andre Bio-feedstuff Co.,
Ltd. and Baishui Andre Bio-feedstuff Co., Ltd. no longer
included in the scope of consolidation. The liquidation had
no significant effect on the financial position of the Group.

Interests in subsidiaries
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or
investment

-
/N

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

SfEENEEE)

2

1

FHBETAT

MN201554 A AI20154E8 A » &K&
EEETFETMRTAR 2
FlAEREOZEFNEMFEARERA
A BKZEFEMEARERA
A ZMRTFRARMBEEEER
BEERBERZERED @
BETREOZEMNRAKEERA
AR BAKEZEFNRTRBERA
Al e 2t EOZEMNEYRR
BBR AR A KL ERE YR
ERARITHMAESHEE 5
BEHAEENMBRAREESE

S/ 480
AEE o

t #EERtERDHER

RIS £
(1) BBRY HRE S5 ARIEH
FAA

Closing balance

of other items

that in
substance Group Group

Place of Year-end form net shareholding voting rights
Registration ~ Business Registered actual investment percentage percentage Consolidated  Organisation
Full name  Type and operation nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
REL#ad
FATRAE  RERR SERME
iR EXRR  HAAER ith ih &E
2 L ERUME  REEE ifids #eEE k4] B (%) () &iEx HEEARE
Baishui Ancre  Company Limited Shaand, PRC ~ Manufacture USD17,125,000  Manufacture of juice, fruitand - USD17,125,000 = 100% 100% Y 732664478
Juice Co., Lid. - (Sino-foreign and sele of vegetable beverage, and
joint venture) condensed juice related products, and ron
packaging; and sale of own
products
BARENRA AREMAT  PEREY  BERTEER 1IBW0ET EERATEGT FER 11500%r - 0% 100% ® 700664478

1t BRAA

(%) HE HREEERNERmER
- HEREER-
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VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d) +t EEHMmERERPHER(E)
1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 1 EFRARPRBER(E)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or (1) BHBER KR EZ T B2
investment (cont’d) FRE](4E)
Closing balance
of other items
that in
substance Group Group
Place of Year-end form net shareholding voting rights
Registration ~ Business Registered actual investment percentage percentage Consolidated Organisation
Full name  Type and operation nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN) code
BEL#eY
FATRRE  RERR RERAE
MR EXRR  HAAER ith ith ;&
2 L ERME  RERE ihEs #8EE t#s L] (%) () &iEx HEEERE
Yantai Longkou Company Limited Shandong, PR Manufacture ~ USD12,235,000 Manufacture of jice and sale  USD12,236,000 - 100% 100% Y 187209715
Andre Juice  (Sino-foreign joint and sale of of own products.
Co, Ltd. ~ venture) condensed juice
RAgnzEd sREADA  SEURE  BGERTEER 122500%T LERET UEEEE  122%500%T -0 100% B T100715
SrHEER  (pihaE) HE Eme
27l
Xuzhou Andre Company Limited Jiangsu, PRC~ Manufacture USD10,000,000 Manufacture of juice, frut ~ USD10,000,000 = 100% 100% Y 743134253
Juice Co., L1d. - (Sinoforeign joint and sale of and vegetable heverage,
venture) condensed juice and related products; sale

of own products; and
manufacture of ron barrel
for uice outer packaging.

PHEENRE SRAEAT  METEY  RERIEERE 10000057 FEREL FRREEE  10000000%7 - f0% 100 R 74313425
TERAA  (iheE) 5 b HEEEER  BfR

MRS -
Andre Juice  Company Limted British Virgin -~ Investment USD50,000  Investment holding. USD1 - 100% 100% Y -
Co, Ltd. [slands holding
REHRTER SRAAAD  ZBERAES RARK 000ET RERR - 1% - 10% 100 % -
Af
North Andre ~ Company Limited The Unfted ~ Sale of condensed ~ USD10,000  Sale of condensed juice. USD10,000 - 100% 100% Y -
Juice (USA) States of juice
Inc. America
YrRENRT BREEAD X8 EERHE 000X BERTHE - 1000057 - 10% 100 % -
(ZERN
BRAT
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(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d)

1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment
investment (cont’d)

Full name  Type

2 i

Dalian Andre ~ Company Limited Liaoning, PRC ~ Manufacture

Juice Co., Lid.

AERENRE BRAHEAT
TARAT

and operation nature

Place of

Registration ~ Business Registered

capital Business scope

R

ERME  REEE ihEs #8EE

RMB80,000,000  Manufacture and sale of all
inds of fruit and vegetable
beverage; biological
comprehensive Utization of
apple essence, vegetable
and pomace; and purchase
of agricultural and siceline
products (excluding grain);
and manufacture of iron
packaging; imports and

and sale of
condensed juice

exports of goods and

technology.
REREL  BADMEER  S000000 SEMESERATHE
HE ARET  BRER B RE)

HiaiR - RalEn
(REERIME - st
B EHRATELD

+t ERMERPHERGE)

1 EFRAFRRES(E)

or
Closing balance
of other items
that in
substance
Year-end
actual
investment in a subsidiary
RE iR
FLERRE
EXER  HAA%R
i) {'] #i
RMB80,000,000 -
80,000,000 -
NRET

(1) AR HREE T B iFa

FLRE] (&)
Group Group

form net shareholding voting rights
investment  percentage  percentage Consolidated Organisation

(%) (%) (YIN) code
SO5R SEZAR
i) i) ;&
(%) () &iEx HEEERE
100% 100% Y 95004248-7
100% 100% 7 959942487
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VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d)

1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 1 EFARRHER(E)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or
investment (cont’d) FRA(HE)
Closing balance
of other items
that in

Fullname ~ Type

substance Group Group
Year-end form net shareholding voting rights

FATBRR  RERR REERE
FXRR  MRMAR it it

) L RAtE ihEs #8EE t#s L] (%) (%)
Binzhou Andre Company Limited Shandong, PRC Manufacture ~ USD12,100,000 Manufacture of beverage, high  USD12,100,000 - 100% 100%
Juice Co., Ltd. - (Sino-foreign joint and sale of natural apple essence, and

venture) condensed juice iron packaging; biological

BHZENR ARAEAT
HHERLT (PaR)

comprehensive Utization
of pomace, and other
extended products; winter
jujule storage; sale of own

products.
ERRTEERE 121000005 FESH BERAER 1210000087 - 100% 100%
£ AR HZA%R 3B

AT RS
Eh ARER HED
il

Yantai Andre ~ Company Limited Shandong, PR Manufacture and ~ USD4,832,000 Manufacture and processing  USD4,832,000 - 100% 100%

Juice Co., Ltd. - (Sino-foreign joint

venture)

MaRENR ARAEAT
HHERDT (94%)

sale of fuit pulp of all kinds of fuit pulp and
related products, and sale
of own products; wholesale
and import and export of
juice and pulp

FREEREHE  40R00%T 4E NIZBARRERE 4832000%T - f0% 0%

AlER - UEREER -
SRERT - RonpR
MEHOEE o

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. &L HFZERRTBRHERA A

Business Registered actual  investment percentage percentage Consolidated
and operation nature capital Business scope investment in a subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN)
RE iR

&
L

Y

Alm

Y

Alm

+t ERMERPHERGE)

(1) AR HREE T B iFa

Organisation
code

CLL L]

151757338

151767338

73066788-6

73066785-6



VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d)

1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations

not under common control

Place of

registration  Business Registered
Full name  Type and operation nature capital

MR
FARRR  FAMRE  ERME  REME s
Yongj Ancte  Company Limted Shanxi, PRC~ Production 1SD12,960,000
Juice Co, Ltd. (Sino-foreign and sale of

joint venture) condensed juice

KERENRA AREALR  PEURE  RERMEER  12060000%T
TERAA  (Rihed) HE

Anyug Andre - Company Limited  Sichuan, PRC Production RMB50,000,000
Lemon and sale of

Industry condensed juice

Technology

Co, Ltd.

RERENER AREADA  4EmIE  BERMEER 50000000
EXHRAR e ARET
A7l

Liquan Yitong  Company Limited Shannxi, PRC Production RMB100,000,000
Juice Co, Ltd. and sale of

condensed juice
BETTEER  100000000AK
i BT

EXEARI ARRADR  DANER

AR

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

+t ERMERPHERGE)

1 EFRAFRRES(E)

@

Closing balance

of other items

that in

substance

Year-end

actual  investment
Business scope investment in a subsidiary
R LRy
FLERRE
EXER  HEMER
#EuE k4] B
Manufacture and sale of fut  USD12,960,000 =
and vegetable juice and
Deverage, high natural apple
gssence, and biological
comprehensive Utization of
pomace
EEOBEEERAT  109000%T -
#H - BIERMERER
FRINEMRAAE -
Plant, manufacture and sale  RMB50,000,000 -
of lemon; manufacture and
sale of lemon of, lemon
essence, orange of and
0range essence
B £Z BERR-RE 50000000 -
HEREN BEER ARET

i AR

Manufacture and sale of fruit - RMB100,000,000 -
and vegetable juice and

Deverage
FE BERERRT 100,000,000 -
K ARET

A — 2 H T A R HY
FRF

Group Group

form net shareholding voting rights

percentage percentage Consolidated  Organisation
(%) (%) (YIN code
fAGR SEZAR
i) i) &E
(%) () Ai#x HABRRE
100% 100% Y 79638415-X
100% 100% & 19638415
100% 100% Y 569715959
100% 100% 7 560716969
100% 100% Y 586962759
100% 100% 7 586962759
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VIl Interests in other entities (cont’d)

2 Interests in joint ventures
(1) Joint ventures

Place of
Name of Entity registration Legal Business Registered
investee type and operation representative  nature capital
HRREMER i+ EMPREREE EARR REHE EfEE
Yantai Tongli Beverage Company Limited ~ Shandong, PRC~ Wang An Manufacture and USD14,641,200
Industries Co., Ltd. (Sino-foreign sale of beverage

foint venture)
RasMHHIZARAR  ARAEAR HELRE iz HHEERAE 14,641, 200570

(P5ha%)

(2) Key financial information of the joint venture
The key financial information of the Group’s joint
venture is set out in V.9(3), which was adjusted for
fair value adjustments at the time of acquisition and
the differences in accounting policies of the Group.

VIl Risk related to financial instruments

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use
of financial instruments in the normal course of the Group’s
operations, which mainly include:

— Credit risk

— Liquidity risk

— Interest rate risk

— Foreign currency risk
— Other price risk

This note mainly presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks and their sources, their
changes during the year, and the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risks, and their
changes during the year.
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ERfERR AR (R)

2 ERELEPHER
(1) &EEE

Accounting
Group Related treatment on Strategic to
shareholding voting rights  investments in the Group’s
(%) (%) joint venture activities

K0RER
RERGR HeEeR HE5%0
FATRRILA ARHA BEmE EBRE

(%) (%) EERE ARBRE
50% 50%  Equity method No
50% 50% 2% A

2) AETLFEEEHNHESE
AEEEELENTIBMHBE
BRMFEE 9@ F IR » %
BECENEIBUBEERE
BERERAABEREMRNT
BEUARG— S BORARRN

£ -

B & it T FL 48 BR &Y L BR

AEBERREHTHRSESHT
BEmAER - TEBHE

—(ERER
—mEE AR
— M= g2
—EXmER

— B ERER

TCE 2wt bl R B i Ko B AR
FRRARERFRENEL  ERE
BEER  BEANEFANERRD
TEREERFHELENBSE o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

VIII Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

The Group aims to seek the appropriate balance between
the risks and benefits from its use of financial instruments
and to mitigate the adverse effects that the risks of financial
instruments have on the Group’s financial performance.
Based on such objectives, the Group’s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The internal
audit department of the Group undertakes both regular and
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures.

(1) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to cash at bank, receivables,
debt investments and derivative financial instruments
entered into for hedging purposes and other financial
assets. Exposure to these credit risks are monitored by
management on an ongoing basis.

The cash at bank of the Group is mainly held with well-
known financial institutions. Management does not
foresee any significant credit risks from these deposits
and does not expect that these financial institutions may
default and cause losses to the Group.

In respect of receivables, the risk management committee
of the Group has established a credit policy under which
individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
to determine the credit limit and terms applicable to the
customers. These evaluations focus on the customers’
financial position, the external ratings of the customers
and their bank credit records where available. Receivables
are due within 180 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with balances are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I\ BReRT A4EmadmbE ()

AEEEERREENBERERR
Migs 2 BEGEE T - SkE
1K B B 39 AN 5 B B 5 S AR ) TN )
TE  ENZAREERR  AKH
il 58 [ B B 3R R R A % 51 A 0 A R
SEFfEENRR  REEENRR
A] 2 SR 3R AT AR FE RO BB E A2
FoABEEASENRERKFE - K
SEeEHEHELRREERRR
BREAAES RS - NERTISIER
FAEELLERHHNE - REEH
M ERE A RRPI L AR BE M B A &E
THIRMOMITREN SRR EER
o o

(1) EARE
FEAREKE Rt TAEN—7F
THEBITER BB —H %L
MEBRORAR - AEBEMER
EREBREEEES - BRK
B BERENAERBENR
MITESMIAS - EEESH
BEVELLEARRAOMDO o

AEBBRBESUNINNERESE
2ERREARIENS BEE
EEERA/ETEEEANER
R - EHTERASHITENM
RASEEERIER -

HREWTE  AEBERERKREE
ZESERBEERBRSTE 75
B  IRPETERF-NA
BEREBEEEERAIAR - 8
I EZRBEREF MG -
INEBET AR M iR1T1E AARC e (20 Al
B8) - BRAMEUGRIE A L ARRE
HAE180 R A EIH o FEUFRIE %1 2
MEBASHERLTEME R
EERE  AALNESE—FH
ERBEE - E—REAT A%
BT Z kT PREERmS o
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VIII Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) I\ Be&mT AHEMEE(\)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d) (1) 1= AE k(&)
In monitoring the Group’s credit risk, customer data are REEASENEARR - A&
analysed by the Group according to some factors, such BEiZRERR HHASEEREARN
as ageing and maturity date. SENEFERETON o
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly AEBEEREBEFEEXEBER
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather FESRFENTE MIERFRP
than the industry, country or area in which the customers FrER TR BIRMM[E o E it
operate and therefore significant concentrations of EAGEARBREFHNBEREZR
credit risk arise primarily when the Group has significant BEARSEEFEHENEFPMNEXR
exposure to individual customers. At the balance sheet FEUIE - REEAERXRAB @ K
date, 53% (2014: 76%) of the total accounts receivable SEMF T+ AT F M EKGRE A
and other receivables were due from the ten largest & (5] 8 Ui BR FRR0 E b E U R 4B 5
customers of the Group. In addition, the debtors of the #153% (20144 : 76%) : BEAN
Group that are neither past due nor impaired mainly relate 7N £ ] 7R 460 HR 2R OB (B B FE R
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no 15 & 22 B BN 2 52 A9 Fe Bk Y
recent history of default. BREREBBH -
Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted AEE-—BRAgKERBEED
on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered LHEF RREBIRERIN) -
into for long-term strategic purposes, and counterparties MERXSGEATNERATRESR
have equivalent or higher credit ratings than the Group. S EAEEER c ERZHEH A
Given their high credit standing, management does not MERATART  ~EEEEE
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its WABEHRZE T SELRITE
obligations. 7% e
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by 7N & 3| B A 2 9 B N 15 AR LB
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance AREEAGBRTBESMEE
sheet. The Group does not provide any other guarantees MEE SR - NEERBRMEME
which would expose the Group to credit risk. A EM AT gL A EBAZEHR

BEVFELR
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VIII Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) J\ He&mpT AHERERY RS ()

(2) Liquidity risk (2) BN B

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company
and its individual subsidiaries are responsible for their own
cash management, including short term investment of
cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

mEBERRE  RECERERITNA
RNBeHEMEMEENTRA
RENEBRELEBESEROME
B ARBERZFRARAER S
MRSEETIF  BRASAEK
B IR EMERE ERIAEN TR
AREFR(MRERERBR L
BREELR  EREFAQA
EEgnitE) AKEHNRER
THELAEHNRENRDES
FR - URREFEERBHEN
BRIE @ NEREFTHNRERH
BNAHERERNEEZE S -
REFESTIEZSRBEARREHR
RANERES - UWinEHM
BEREWRBDESFEL -

AEEREEREBERANTSRA
BERAFTENGRBRSRE(ERE
RE RN E(MRZF N XAIZ
12 A1 BRBRTH )G EF
BIRRBRAOMR - AR EK
SNRFAHAT :

2015 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

WI5FRARNEARLNE

More than ~ More than Carrying

Within 1 year but 2 years but amount at

1yearor  lessthan  lessthan  More than balance

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total  sheet date

1ERE BERRZ

ltem 1R ERRE 1§F%F  2FE5F S5EHL &t EERE

Financial liabilties ERAR

Short-term loans BHER 497,962,384 - - - 497,962,884 485,170,000
Accounts payable and e R

other payables AT 109,212,200 - - - 109,212,200 109,212,200

Long-term payables RBEER - - - 1,111,000 1,111,000 766,519

Net amount At 607,175,084 - - 1,111,000 608,286,084 595,148,719

—Z—REFH Annual Report 2015 187



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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VIII Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) I\ BEmT RERBRE ()
(2) Liquidity risk (cont’d) (2) BN B ()

2014 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

DUERTENARTE L E

More than ~ More than Carrying
Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at
1 year or less than less than More than balance
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total Shegt date
1R, BEBRR
ltem L ERER  1FEF  2FESF SEbE At REEE
Financial liabilties ERAR
Short-term loans RHER 484,744,324 - - - 484744324 473,237,000
Accounts payable and FERESRR
other payables EtERFR 93,094,602 - - - 93,094,602 93,094,602
Long-term payables RBEEAR - - - 1,111,000 1,111,000 692,453
Net amount ) 577,838,926 - - 1,111,000 578,949,926 567,024,055
(3) Interest rate risk () F=mpkx
Interest-bearing financial instruments at variable rates and EFEFFEFI RN S5 m
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate ITADRIEASEHEGARBE
risk and fair value interest risk, respectively. The Group FlERRMESREMNERER °
determines the appropriate weightings of the fixed and RE EIRBE T ISR IR AORE EE
floating rate interest-bearing instruments based on the MEEZFHFET ARG - I
current market conditions and performs regular reviews BREHEHNEESEREEN
and monitoring to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed EMZEFETABEEG - K&
and floating rate exposure. The Group does not enter into WARAITE BT B A X
financial derivatives to hedge interest rate risk. [\ o
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VIII Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) I\ Be&mT AHEMEE(\)

(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d) (3) == (48)
(a) As at 31 December, the Group held the following (a) AEER12H31HfFHRIETE
interest-bearing financial instruments: TEITAUT :
Fixed rate instruments: BEEfESMTA :
2015 2014
—E-1f e S [:3
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ltem 1B ERflE & BIRFE x|
Financial assets SHEE
- Available-for-sale financial assets ~EHESREE  6.30%~9.80% 86,000,000 9.50% 10,000,000
Financial liabilties FHAR
- Short-term loans — i 1.93%-~5.56% (387,468,000) 4.28%-~6.30% (333,237,000)
Total ait (301,468,000) (323,237,000)
Variable rate instruments: FEHESMIA :
2015 2014
ZE-1f “5-QF
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
Item EH EE & i &8
Financial assets SREE
- Cash at bank -B7ER 0.01%-~1.75% 106,150,765 0.10%~3.00% 191,400,633
Financial liabilities ERAE
- Short-term loans R Base rate +10%/ (97,702,000) Base rate + (140,000,000)
Libor+2% 4%~10%
REFIELEZ10%/ FEFR 2
Libor+2% 4%~10%

Total At 8,448,765 51,400,633
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VIII Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d)
(b) Sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would increase the
Group’s equity by RMB31,683 (2014: RMB192,752),
and net profit by RMB31,683 (2014: RMB192,752).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the net profit and equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the
impact on the net profit and equity is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.

(4) Foreign currency risk

In respect of cash at bank and on hand, accounts
receivable and payable, short-term loans and other assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currency, the Group ensures that its
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary
to address short-term imbalances.
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I\ BReRT A4EmadmbE ()

(8) MRk (&)

(b) SHEENE ST
MR2015F 12 A81H » £ H
HMEETENBRT @ BE
Fl = EAS0EEE G S B
AEBRRERILINARLE
31,6837C(20144F : #IMAR
#6192,7527T) + FFEEMA
R #31,68370(20144 : 0
AR#192,7527T) o

HRNEERBERARKENER
SEER R 2 BENERERE
TRTHE - EASRESFTH
HEMBERRRERNFZER
BREEERBERANEREZLE
HE) - WA G PSR
TRETENITERNTE -
HRNEERERBFBAN &
AEEERRSRENRRER
HFBIRIRIEDTAET A - bat
RN D AT R BRI RARCR
BENFER DN RS e
RERMBENNEERAIEA
VHE o L FEMNTER
R RERFTA
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VIII Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d) I\ Be&mT AHEMEE(\)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d) (4) ExEE(E)

(a) As at 31 December, the Group’s exposure to currency (a) REER12 A31 B INE
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities AEBEEA EXRR® A
denominated in foreign currencies is presented in T o HRPIERZE R - E bR A
the following tables. For presentation purposes, the SEAAREBIT - LEESB
amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, EXR ARNHAE R E - JMNEHR
translated using the spot rate at the balance sheet date. RITHERARBIELA ©

Differences resulting from the translation of foreign
currency financial statements and the description of
other exposure items that are excluded.

2015 2014
—E-1f —T-mF
Balance at Balance at Balance at Balance at
foreign RMB foreign RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
e HAARS HNE& NEARE
ltem EE 3] 3] BAEE BAEE
Cash at bank and EHEe
on hand
usb T 8,819,244 57,268,642 19,636,773 120,157,414
HKD B 599,254 502,055 - -
Accounts receivable JE W BR 3K
uUsb X 6,046,400 39,262,900 18,677,982 114,290,574
Accounts payable TR
usb X (4,774,524) (31,003,847) (3,989,861) (24,413,959)
Other payables HAb R
usD ETT - - (5,096) (31,182)
Short-term loans ARG
usb X (12,500,000) (81,170,000) (23,000,000)  (140,737,000)
Net balance shest BEARBR
exposure mimpes
usb =TT (2,408,880) (15,642,305) 11,319,798 69,265,847
HKD potcd 599,254 502,055 - -
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VIII Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
(b) The following are the exchange rates for Renminbi
against foreign currencies applied by the Group:

HKD
ush

(c) Sensitivity analysis

Average rate

I\ BReRT A4EmadmbE ()

(4) ERmEB (%)
(b) A& EEH A K ) A
[EEZHTLOT

Reporting date
mid-spot rate

FiyESE BERPMES
2015 2014 2015 2014
—g-if —T-mF - "T-MF
Bk 0.8134 0.7924 0.8378 0.7889
ET 6.3063 6.1454 6.4936 6.1190

Assuming all other risk variables remained constant,
a 5% strengthening of the Renminbi against the US

dollar and Hong Kong

dollar at 31 December would

have increased/(decreased) the Group’s equity and
net profit by the amount shown below, whose effect
is in Renminbi and translated using the spot rate at

the year-end date.

As at 31 December 2015

uSD
HKD

Total

As at 31 December 2014

uSD

20155 12H31H
e
B

2014412 A31H
ETT

A 5% weakening of the Renminbi against the US dollar

and Hong Kong dollar

at 31 December would have

had the equal but opposite effect to the amounts

shown above, on the
remained constant.

basis that all other variables
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(c) BBESIT
1R TE R B 2 DA S Ay L i e B 22
=g KEBEMN12A318
A RS S 32 T RS B B R
BFE AREFAES% G E B
B 3 ANF A Ay 38 0, Ok
DYVBERIT o W BIREE
ABEXRANHBEXRTEAAR

HIIR
Equity Net profit
BRRER FFE
586,586 586,586
(18,827) (18,827)
567,759 567,759
(2,597,469) (2,597,469)

R12A318 ' EBREEME
ERBTIENRIRT + ARK
HIERITTFB B HE RS FE A
R ¥ 87 (B 5% 1% 8 B IR R =
MiBmMEF LRI TS
ERES AR o



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

VIII Risk related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
(c) Sensitivity analysis (cont’d)

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the balance sheet date. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of
foreign currency financial statements. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the previous year.

(5) Other price risks
Other price risks include commodity price risk.

Fair value disclosure

The following information presents the fair value information
and the fair value hierarchy, at the end of the current
reporting period, of the Group’s assets and liabilities which
are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date on a
recurring or non-recurring basis. The level in which fair value
measurement is categorised is determined by the level of the
fair value hierarchy of the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire fair value measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:
Level 1 inputs: unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets that are observable at the
measurement date for identical assets
or liabilities;

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are
either directly or indirectly observable
for underlying assets or liabilities;

Level 3 inputs: inputs that are unobservable for

underlying assets or liabilities.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

I\ BReRT A4EmadmbE ()

(4) ERmEB (%)

(c) BENEDHT (&)
ERBRESTERREER
BRAERZELET - A
BHEXHEERBRALE
EEEN - MREXERNES
BT EETENFESLD -
AT A BEINERKRITE
Z8 o F—FENONERR
B RERAITE o

(5) HftEEER
HitEREREEAmERRR -

h SnREREE

NTRASEESEEERBERAR
BNEREARABEFENEEMN
BERABRERRNAABEEER
HERABEENER - AAEBER
ERRMBERBURNE QA BER
EXREMSAAERERNREER
AR - — AR XBAENEE

~

_‘

F-BRBANE: GEtEHEANG
MERBEXRAE
FEIRR™IS EARK
FEBRE
F_EBRBANE: BE-RERBAE
SMAREER AR
ERZHEERATER
M AR
F-EBRBANE: HEEEXREN
THEEHAE -
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IX Fair value disclosure (cont’d)

1 Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair
value at the end of the year
As at 31 December 2015, the Group only has available-for-
sale financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring
basis amounting to 86,178,356 which were measured at
fair value under Level 2 (2014: RMB10,000,000).

2 Reasons for transfers between different levels, and
the policy about the timing of those transfers for items
under the recurring fair value measurements
For the year ended 31 December 2015, there were no
transfers between different levels of the Group’s above
assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis. The Group recognises transfers between
different levels at the end of the current reporting period
during which such transfers are made.

3 Current changes in valuation techniques and the
reasons
For the year ended 31 December 2015, there were no
changes in valuation techniques for the recurring fair value
measurements.

194 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. & LH ZEFNRARHERATE

h

LRREMEE(K)

1

LAREEFENEENERGN
FERDAAEE

R2015%F 12 A31H + NEBER
EREBENRAREEFEMNAHE
ETREE  ZoemBEEBRMU
F_ERAREEFTEMNIER -
Hit AR #86,178,356 7(2014
£ : AR¥10,000,0007T) °

BENAAEBETEEE  &F
ABESER2EERY > Hig
R E R EEREINBUR
R2015F E - AEE FuliiFE N
AREBEEFENEENEAESE
RZEREZEER - KEEZ
EEHEEREFHOREHRER
FEIXZERESR -

TERABENGEERNTEERE
BER
R2015FE  AEE EAFER
R EEFTEFE AN GERMmIL
REEFEF o
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X Related parties and related party transactions

1

Information on the subsidiaries of the Company
For information about the subsidiaries of the Company,
refer to Note VII.1.

Information on joint ventures
For information about the joint ventures of the Company,
refer to Note VII.2.

Information on other related parties

Name of other related parties
HtigE s 28

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR ZENEEBRAR

President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.
G—E(RE)REFRATF

Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.
KT EEXRRERDA

China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited
China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

Donghua Fruit Industry Co.,Ltd.

Yantai Andre Yangma Resort Co., Ltd.
ReEBESRENERNERAF

Yantai Andre Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
RezENEEREERAF

Yantai Andre Micro-Credit Co., Ltd.
BamETREZEN NEERERETRA
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

e BHNRBROERAF

Yantai Hengtong Heat Co., Ltd.
MazBEREARAH

Liquan Yitong Heat Co., Ltd.
REERANERAAF

Yantai Yitong Heat Co., Ltd.
BEERREFRAA

Yantai Xinping Jian’an Co., Ltd.
BamTELIRERAF

Yantai Andre Art Gallery

1B & RN

Yantai Andre Painting Gallery

ilk=yagt S

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

T BELTRABXS

1 AQFANFLABER
AABHWTARBBEEELZ2AN
[ i

2 AAFMEELERBR
AARMEELEXEHUEERA
BsE+ ~ 20

W\

3 HBEHALRER

Related party relationship
Bk Z

An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)
HASEEREAYENEE()

An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)
HASEEREAYENEX()

An entity which holds more than 10% shares of the Group
BEAEEI0%A EROMEE

An entity which holds more than 10% shares of the Group
FEREEI0%A EROMEE

An entity which holds more than 10% shares of the Group
HEAEEI0%A EROMEE

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR ZENEBERARNTAR

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR ZENEBERARNTAR

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd

IR ZENEBERARNTAR

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR ZENEBERARNTFAR

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.(ii)

L3R {275 BB R A R 602 Bl i)

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.(i)

LIZR {2 7|5 BB IR A R 602 B i)

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. (i)

IR LN B A R A R T2 A

An entity which was controlled by chairman and his relative
AAREERIEBBEHNGE

An entity which was controlled by chairman
AARESREHINEE

An entity which was controlled by chairman

KARRIESREHNEE
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X Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

3 Information on other related parties (cont’d)

(i) Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. and President Enterprises
(China) Investment Co., Ltd. exercised their significant
influence over the Company through their representation
on the board of directors of the Company.

(i) Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. acquired 100% ownership
of Yantai Hengtong Heat Co., Ltd. and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. Upon completion of the acquisition, Liquan
Yitong Heat Co., Ltd. and Yantai Yitong Heat Co., Ltd.,
become related parties of the Company.

4 Transactions with related parties
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out as follows.
Some of these related party transactions constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(1) Related party transactions

+

FRBAREABRES ()

3 HitbEEB SR (&)

() WRZENEEBRABTMGE D
X(FEDREBRRTEBRE
ERERARRIEEEORRITE
BHEARE - EMHEARREE
BEATE -

(i) 72015812 H28H @ ILRZEF|
EEERATKEREFTRAES
FRATI00%ME - BREBR
HAETERAEERAFARETES
BT RARERERANBRARM
REEBREERARKALEER
HRRES T ©

4 BB ZER
FR2015F & » A5 B B BB 7 3
TWTMERSHIN RS - BT
ZEMB AR BEK ETAEBE
14AE IR E R B R 5 S E 1T
MRS o

(1) BB 5

The Group The Company
F5E r. 3/

Note 2015 2014 2015 2014

2 —Z-RFE —TmF ZB-RE —TNF

Sales of goods HE®M 106,254,107 97,791,943 91,527,960 50,801,949

Purchases of goods BEEm 18,283 - 375,051,626 238,631,492
Purchases of maintenance 5 & #: 1S iR 7%

services 766,090 3,644 730,090 3,644

Purchases of fixed assets & E EF &E& (i) 1,376,068 = 15,883 424,154

Storage charge incomes BREEMA D) 2,756,189 = = -

Operating lease charges &EZHEER (i) 352,043 509,234 352,043 509,234

Provision of services B (iv) 300,000 - 300,000 =

Equity transfer incomes ~ MR#EEZEWA (v 58,410,400 - 29,205,200 =

Provision of the funds RHES -
Repayments of loans BEER (vi) 7,770,201
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- 211,493,413 152,868,464

93,088,008 = =
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X Related parties and related party transactions

(cont’d)

4 Transactions with related parties (cont’d)
(1) Related party transactions (cont’d)

U

(i

)

v)

Purchases of fixed assets represent the equipment
acquired by Yantai Andre Juice Co., Ltd. from Yantai
Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. and equipment acquired by Dalian
Andre Juice Co., Ltd. from the Company.

Storage charge incomes mainly represent the storage
charge received by the Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd., for
temporary use of its warehouses by President Enterprises
(China) Investment Co., Ltd.

Operating lease charges represent the rental paid by the
Company to Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. for leasing its
office buildings.

Provision of services represent the income received
by the Company for providing management coaching
service to Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co., Ltd.

Equity transfer incomes represent the gain on disposal
of the equity interest in Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries
Co., Ltd. by the Company and Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Repayments of loans represent the repayments of loans
of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. to
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

(BHEBIZHI - 2HEECBARKET)
+ BTG REABRZS(E)

4 BB IEN (&)
(1) B 5 (4E)

(0

(i

)

(v)

BEETEESEM A LB
RARHERARBEMS %
BRRBRMER QB REN
ARABERERBNRET
BERARRENER -

RREBERAZEZEFRMEE
MREAERRBGH—BE
(P E)IRE G R A BRE(E A
HEBEmEBRNE#E -

ReHEBEREEARAE
EMAENTHERERR
BRHAERIRNES

REEBEEARA AP E SR
MEB TEERARRHER
EERBEFHUA -

BEEERAEARBNRE
MRABRA R RE A A
KB TRER A B MIRGE
EVHA o

BEEFERERBNEERE
EMRAERAAEERSRE
MREBEMDARABER
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X Related parties and related party transactions + R ARARES(E)

(cont’d)
4 Transactions with related parties (cont’d) 4 BEMRZER (E)
(2) Remuneration of key management personnel 2) [AREEA ST+

Key management personnel are those persons holding FREEASRIEEENNME
positions with authority and responsibility for planning, TEENEERE - F5EME
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, HIAREEFEHOAE @ BEAR
directly or indirectly, including the Group’s directors EEMNEENESE - HAES
and supervisors. Remuneration for key management BABRBENT ¢

personnel of the Group is as follows:

The Group FTEEHE
2015 2014
ltem 5 H —ZE—hF —TNMOF
Remuneration of key A B IE A B R
management personnel 2,432,625 2,370,758
The Company b. /N |
2015 2014
ltem I5H —Z—hF —T—OF
Remuneration of key R B IE A B R
management personnel 1,526,093 1,428,065
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 R2015F E R 2014F & + K
December 2014, no emoluments were paid to the SEERARAWRAES K ES
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or EX A ER B S A E AR S
upon joining the Company or as compensation for loss Hpn AR & #9 52 ) sk B 5
of office. For the year ended 31 December 2015 and F1E o R20154F [Z K 20144
31 December 2014, no fees or any other emoluments B EFESEHERERS
were waived by directors or supervisors. SEMEE o
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X Related parties and related party transactions + R ARARES(E)

(cont’d)

5 Receivables from and payables to related parties

Accounts receivable

Dividends receivable

Other receivables

Accounts payable

Advances from
customers

Other payables

6 Guarantee

FEAR K
R WP
Hit YR
AR
TR

(1) The Company as a guarantor

Name of guarantee

WIERT

Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
TINZEFRETBR AR
Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

ZIEMRABRAT]

Total
Ast

5 BAMLEWENKE

The Group The Company
F5E b /N
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 20144 20155 20144
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H31H
1,762,385 31,517,680 18,147,374 27,056,068
- - 56,822,440 57,674,279
28,654,071 - 605,438,723 393,945,310
2,795,971 - 190,261,636 65,266,165
72,466 - - -
- 7,859,697 117,961,572 95,160,162
6 PBIERIER

(1) KR FIERERT

2015 2014
—Z—-5F —ZT—MmEF

Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
BRRER BRER
Ry BEERTRSE EReE ELETTE
N/A Y
= A#EA 50,000,000 =
N N/A
50,000,000 & - TEmA

50,000,000

50,000,000
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(B 15 Bl Ba 51

F BB BARRTT)

X Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

6 Guarantee (cont’d)

@)

3)

The Group as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

R

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IR EREEARA T

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IWRZENEBBRRE

Total

At

The Company as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

ERT

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

WRZEFEEBR QA

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

IWRZENEBBRRE

Total

At

+ BBLRABZS(E)

6 BABHER (A
2) REBERWIERY

856,500,000

200 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&it AR EFRTROERLDF

996,641,600

2015 2014
—ZT-5Hf —E—mEF
Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
RRER ERER
RREHE CRETRESE R ERETTE
N N
289,000,000 & 237,500,000 £
Y Y
567,500,000 & 759,141,600 =
856,500,000 996,641,600
(8) KL\ EIERBEIERAT
2015 2014
—Z-hE —E—mEF
Guaranty Guaranty
Amount of completed Amount of completed
guaranty (Y/N) guaranty (Y/N)
BRER ERER
RR&E CRETES EReE ERETTE
N N
289,000,000 & 237,500,000 £
Y Y
567,500,000 & 759,141,600 =
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Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level
of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group defines “capital” as including all components
of equity plus any loans from related parties with no fixed
terms of repayment, less unaccrued proposed dividends.
The balances of related party transactions are not regarded
by the Group as capital.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed to achieve an optimal structure and return for
shareholders. Factors for the Group’s consideration include:
its future funding requirements, capital efficiency, actual and
expected profitability, expected cash flows, and expected
capital expenditure. Adjustments are made to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting
the Group.

The Group’s capital structure is monitored on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes short-term
loans and long-term payables) plus unaccrued proposed
dividends, less related-party loans with no fixed repayment
terms and cash and cash equivalents.

During 2015, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2014, was to maintain an adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio of no more than 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, request new loans, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

BFEH

AEEEAEBRNTIZABRRRER
SENFELE - BEHRIBHIE R
BIKFARE B E A RS B A% I FE AR
NEEMERAESRENTR @ #
BREREHER -

AEBMPEANTEE SRR ER N E
R [ & SR EA IR /O BA R 5 5 SR H0
BRARERNCIRE D EMRF - KE
B EARTBEEEY T 2 HNER
EREREE -

AEETHERNERBE FNERLE
B WREIRBAMNEREBMAR
RO%K - AEEZEEHNRAREE A
KERKNESHFR  BAMEX - B
EMREHNANES  BHNRE
m o AHEAXHEE - REEAAR
LANSEW T EARE - AKEKE
HBENER -

AEEBBEARNFEFEARENR
EESENERNER - KABNFE
BREEH(BREEHERLREE
M3 MERERNERZED LA
BRI - FORR IR [E E A& Sk AR A BE B
TEFARREMREEFEY -

REFE2015F M) & N E 1 BB 2
2014 FE—B - PR EABRNFES
BARRTHBBI0% © B T HEZFHFHE
ZEhl - AREETTRE S AR AR
RERA SRR - EMFAER - BT
I AL EEENRLALE -

ARARARANTFA T BBURE
HINRR B A AT, o
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1= RERBRAER

XIl Commitments and Contingencies

1 Significant commitments 1 BEERHEE

(1) Capital commitments

(1) BA#IE

2015 2014
ltem IHE —Z—-RFE _—TOF
Signed contracts for acquisition B % 5] B IEFE S EEBITH

of fixed assets being or to be Bl BEHEER
executed 2,056,017 -

(2) Operating lease commitments
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014, the Group and the Company had
no non-cancellable operating leases.

Contingent liabilities arising from outstanding
litigations and arbitration and related financial effect
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the
Group did not have contingent liabilities arising from
outstanding litigations and arbitration.

Contingent liabilities arising from guarantees provided
for other enterprises and related financial effect

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the
Group did not provide guarantees to other enterprises.

XIll Post balance sheet date events

1

Material non-adjusting post balance sheet date events

On 29 January 2016, the Company entered into an
agreement with Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. in which,
the Company agreed to acquire the real estates of Yantai
Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. and Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.
agreed to sell out the real estates at a consideration of
RMB27,375,070. Based on the agreement, the acquired
real estates included a building and related utilities with
total construction area of 11,489m? and land use right
with total area of 17,086m? located at 889 New City
Main Street, Muping, Yantai, Shandong Province, China.
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(2) #EEFHEAIE
R2015%12 431 H & 20144
12H318 - XEEB KA QA
RN A AL E T E

5
2
2

RAFABAMPBERNIEEER
Heigse g

M2015%12 A31H k20144124
31H @ AEERERAFRMFE
FERHSEEE -

AHMBEVREEKEREAN
REEBEREMBEE
MR2015%12 A31H k20144124
318 ' AEE SR B RHMENIE
HEBER -

= BRERRRA®ER

EENEEEBRAZIRAES
IE 55 B

MR20164F1 A29H » AN A Al 2R
BLEMRBRMAER QARG L
W o Bl - ARRREERER
ZEANRBEREHELEMNE
BEENYE @ HEETHHE
B ANRE27 375,070 © BRI #
EFTWER Y E B EL R I
REMAE T2 &I A #8895
B EEE L) 11,489 H A=
E iR E K K EE 217,086 F
FKEAERE T A o
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XlIll Post balance sheet date events (cont’d)

2 Profit appropriation after the balance sheet date

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

= BREARKRAERERGA)
2 AEAMEEANBSEHRH

]

2015 2014
ltem TH B —E—RF —ZTOF
Dividends to be appropriated ¥ e AR 19,050,000 19,630,000
Dividends approved and declared REZIES S ERAIRF 19,050,000 19,630,000

On 16 March 2016, the Board of Directors proposed the
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMBO0.05 per share
to the Company’s shareholders for 2015. The proposal is
subject to approval by the shareholders’ general meeting.
Such cash dividends are not recognised as a liability at
the balance sheet date.

On 12 March 2015, the Board of Directors proposed the
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMBO0.05 per share
to the Company’s shareholders for 2014. The proposal
was approved by the shareholders’ general meeting on
26 May 2015.

BEEEN2016FE3 16 HiRE
NAEIRREIREZE2016FEIR &
A& A - R K B A FI A R 0.05
JLe WERZ M FREARNGH
HEoREEAMBRARBIMEIRE
MERATAREEEBERA
EREAE -

EE2N2015F3H 128 #
NAEIARRIREZE2014FEIR &
A& F) - B K 2R FI A RE60.05
JC o WLIBIRE 20155 A26 H
KRR A HE -
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XIV Other significant items

Segment reporting

The Group is principally operating in a single reportable
segment, which is engaged in manufacture and sales of
condensed fruit juice and related products, therefore the
Group has not disclose any further information with respect
to reportable segment.

The geographical location of the Group’s operating income
from external customers is set out as follows:

Geographical location b [&

China F

North America b ZEM

Asia (excluding China) M (FRBIBASN)
Europe BM

Oceania RAEM

Africa FEM

Total A&t

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of non-current
assets located overseas is RMB285,213 (31 December 2014:
RMB336,669).
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thH At EESEIR

7 HRBERE
AEETIZEE-—KRENHALE -
BIEEHERBRTRBEER @ 7
AAREBLERBRREENEMIER -

AT RAEBEZEPEIIRAE:
WA

2015
~2—-1%F

264,800,970
181,016,875
158,204,535
125,716,997
70,333,837
17,897,265

2014
—F—NF

263,268,960
200,772,797
159,623,431
115,672,753
92,211,050
13,019,622

817,970,479

844,468,613

R2015F 12 A31H » KEB KSR
INEBNIERBDEERELEARE
285,2137t(2014F 12 A81H : AR
#336,6697T ) °
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thH Rt ERER(HE)

AEIRE (&)

HZE2015F12A318 ' EAEER
FH - AEBRFENE—FFRAL
AEEBRKA10%H A ENEFE A1
(20145 : 1{8) - KL AREE LU
A13% (2014%F : 13%) - REZF
EEHMWRALREIRIOT ¢

XIV Other significant items (cont’d)

Segment reporting (cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has 1
customer (2014: 1 customer), the operating income from
which is over 10% of the Group’s total operating income. The
operating income from this customer represents approximately
13% of the Group’s total operating income (2014: 13%). The
income amount of this customer is set out as follows:

2015 2014
k- =Lk -2 —E—F
Geographical Geographical
Customers location Amount location Amount
®PE HE &8 & o
Asia Asia
(excluding (excluding
Customer 1 China) China)
) | o
EF1 (FRELISM) 109,983,199  (FREILASN) 111,605,521
XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFMBEERTEREHFEE
financial statements
1 Cash at bank and on hand 1 EBES
2015 2014
ltem IH B —E—RhF —ZTOF
Cash on hand Be 188,504 32,951
Deposits with banks IRITIFR 44,660,935 180,465,424
Total = 44,849,439 180,498,375

R2015F 12 A31 H '+ XA 7
FMEEZIRINEEES S
31,500,0007T (20144 : #&) ©

As at 31 December 2015, cash at bank and on hand
with restrictions placed on the Company’s ownership
amounted to RMB31,500,000 (2014: Nil).
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAGIMBERRXETERHEE
financial statements (cont’d) (#8)

2 FEWERFR
(1) FEWERFIZEEFIZ IR0 T -

2 Accounts receivable
(1) Accounts receivable by type are as follows:

2015 2014
Type Lpsll —E-RE —T—mOF
Subsidiaries F 7] 17,447,502 14,951,604
Other related parties H {th B EE A 7] 699,872 12,104,464
Third parties F=75 72,323,573 88,484,312
Sub-total g 90,470,947 115,540,380

Less: Provision for bad and B AR
doubtful debts - -

Total =1 90,470,947 115,540,380

(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as (2) FEYERAIZRR B S THO T -

follows:
2015 2014
Ageing AR —ZT—-Aa%F —E—E
Within 6 months (inclusive) 61E A LA (& 61EA) 73,023,445 115,540,380
6 months to 1 year (inclusive) EBEIF(S14F) 17,447,502 =
Sub-total /N5 90,470,947 115,540,380
Less: Provision for bad and W AR
doubtful debts = -
Total aEr 90,470,947 115,540,380

The ageing is counted starting from the date when ARl B B W AR R SR B R 4A
accounts receivable are recognised. FTE -
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

3 Prepayments

(1)

&)

Prepayments by category are as follows:

(BH5IaERES) - 2 RRE BARET)

11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE
(#8)

3 FEfRFE
(1) FATHESEE5 R0 T -

2015 2014
ltem =R —E—RfF _—TOF
Prepayments to suppliers TARHER 364,315 6,195,974
Other prepayments TERTEAD 147,282 48,908
Total A&t 511,597 6,244,882
The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows: (2) TEITHIAILRRE SR A0 T -

2015 2014

Ageing BRI —E—hEF —ZE—mF
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8 EE B (%) G| Lt 51(%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FLAR(E14) 511,597 100% 6,197,484 99%

Over 1 year but within

2 years (inclusive) 12256 (525F) - - 47,398 1%
Total A&t 511,597 100% 6,244,882 100%

The ageing is counted starting from the date when

prepayments are recognised.

R 5 T SO R 1 R BT 44
HE -
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

4 Other receivables
(1) Other receivables analysis by type are as follows:

Type L 2hal]
Subsidiaries T A]

Third parties F=h
Sub-total /INET

Less: Provision for bad and B EEREE

doubtful debts

Total A&

(2) The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

Ageing ARER

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1EAR(E1E)
Over 3 years SELA
Sub-total /NEF

Less: Provision for bad and o AR

doubtful debts

Total BE
The ageing is counted starting from the date when
other receivables are recognised.

(3) As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,

the Company did not hold any other receivables which
were denominated in foreign currency.
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11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE

(#8)
4 EAftpEWR

(1) BEAfbfERFIZIES

2015
~2—-1%F

605,438,723
4,222,837

IS HTHRAT

2014
—EF—NF

393,945,310
4,075,203

609,661,560

3,987,685

398,020,513

3,987,685

605,673,875

394,032,828

2) H#tEW LR

2015
—Z—hF

605,673,875
3,987,685

B -

2014
—F—NmF

394,032,828
3,987,685

609,661,560

3,987,685

398,020,513

3,987,685

605,673,875

394,032,828

ARk B H YR RE R B AR FE

A=t B
Oal >+ °

(3) B2015%12 A31H k20144
12A318 » "RalEINEE

fl FEUK
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAGIMBERRXETERHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
4 Other receivables (cont’d) 4 EMEWRK(E)

(4) For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 (4) PA2015F [E R2014FE » K
December 2014, the Company had no individually N AR A U B 5 ] LA B F S
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision O 2R AR K Al 5T R BR
which had been fully or substantially provided for in HEERE D EI R -
prior years.

5 Inventories 5 FE&
(1) Inventories by category are as follows: (1) FESE
2015 2014

—2-1§ |

Provision for Provision for
impairment Carrying impairment of Carrying
Book value of inventories amount Book value inventories amount
Item FERE Efi ] B R EEEE RE®E BEER REER

Raw materials and ~ RH# R EE

packaging materials 6,700,285 - 6,700,285 5,766,302 - 5,766,302
Finished goods Elm 90,285,397 - 90,285,397 68,792,379 - 68,792,379
Total aat 96,958,682 - 96,958,682 74,558,681 - 74,558,681
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, no 7R2015%F12 A31H k20144
inventories were pledged as security by the Company. 12H818 - ARARDEEAR

PEREOTEE -
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

11 BRFIMERREIEREEE
(#)

210  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&itH R EFRTROERLD T

5 Inventories (cont’d) 5 FE(#E)
(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the (2) KRl FEZE &N 54
year is as follows: o
2015 —E—-R%FE
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
13 3
ltem FERR 2] 3] amE WO FEREBHE
Raw materials and packaging EMB ke
materials 5,766,302 96,976,658 96,042,675 6,700,285
Finished goods Elm 68,792,379 536,904,989 515,438,971 90,258,397
Sub-total INat 74,558,681 633,881,647 611,481,646 96,958,682
Less: Provision for impairment I : T EB(BER
of inventories - - - -
Total Bt 74,558,681 633,881,647 611,481,646 96,958,682
2014 —ZE—mF
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during the during the the end of
of the year year year the year
RE RE
ltem FEESE FRE e B ERBE
Raw materials and R R B E
packaging materials 6,514,575 57,692,027 58,440,300 5,766,302
Finished goods ER 164,836,743 385,722,883 481,767,247 68,792,379
Sub-total NEt 171,351,318 443,414,910 540,207,547 74,558,681
Less: Provision for impairment ¥ : T EH(BERE
of inventories - - - -
Total Bt 171,351,318 443,414,910 540,207,547 74,558,681
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFIMEERRTEREHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)

6 Available-for-sale financial assets 6 HWHHEESHMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value at the end FREAABEIAENTHDLE
of the year: SREE

2015 2014
ltem JHH —E—-hRF _—ZT—OF

Jiashi Wealth Cash Management No.3 =B EIR & B IRFER35E

Working capital loan collective trust FME N RBE 2 EHN
scheme of Kaidi Electric Power SaE2ErtrEl

Income right collective scheme of BREEFNZEESERE
Tenghai Agriculture =t &l

Bank wealth management products IRITIEMER

Working capital loan collective trust BN BMERETERES
scheme of Zhengzhou Navigation BEEs aJrgJ

Construction

Sub total /NEt
Less: Provision for impairment B ORE S
Total =i

As at 31 December 2015, the cost of available-for-sale
financial assets held by the Company is RMB86,000,000
(2014: RMB10,000,000). The total amount of changes in
the fair value attributable to other comprehensive income
is RMB178,356 (31 December 2014: RMB Nil).

As at 31 December 2015, the above available-for-sale
financial assets held by the Company are expected to
be matured in one year.

50,000,000 -

11,065,602 -

7t

10,112,754 -
15,000,000 =

- 10,000,000

86,178,356 10,000,000

86,178,356 10,000,000

R2015F 12 A31 8 » AR A+
BRI LA E S B E ERK AR
A AN R #86,000,0007T » (2014
F12H31H : ARK#%¥10,000,000
T0) BRI ARG WA A
EEZHSELAARK178,3567T
(2014128318 : &) -

HE2015F 12 H31H » AR A

B LA HESREEND R
FE1FELRRE -

—Z—-RFFH Annual Report 2015

211



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 Ak Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

7 Other current assets

ltem 15 H

Input VAT recoverable RIS E EIB T

8 Long-term equity investments
(1) Long-term equity investments by category are as

follows:

ltem (EE

Investments in subsidiaries HFRRIRRE
Investment in a joint venture HELBLENKE
Sub-total /INET

Less: Provision for impairment W ORE X
Total =
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11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE

(#8)
7 EftRBEE

2015 2014
“E-RF _—TF
49,623,213 42,902,832
8 RERERZE

(1) REKERESELT
2015 2014
—F-RE T NF
573,355,647 573,355,647
- 19,476,107
573,355,647 592,831,754
573,355,647 592,831,754
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11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE
(#8)

8 RERERE(R)
2) RERIEREXFEEER D

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the

year are as follows: WrEaTr :
2015 —E—fHE
Book value of long-term equity investment
RORERERERE
At Shareholding  Voting rights
At Increase/ 31December percentage  percentage Cash dividend
Investment cost 1 January 2015 Decrease 2015 (%) (%) forthe year
EHRE  EHNE
Eiikk  Bfxad
Investee HEE KEns 1818 BEEB  12AMA HA)  RAK)  FERRAH
Cost method-subsidiaries REE-T08
Baishui Andre Juice Co,, Lid BKREHEAARAA 110630130 110830,130 - 110630130 7% 75% -
Yantai Longkou Andte Juce o, Ltd.  BAENZERIRHERLR 8062269 8062269 - 80626% 75% 7% -
Yuzhou Andre Juice Co, Lt BEEHREERAR 5BEM548 5645418 - 585418 75% 75% -
Andre Juice Co, Ld. REHSTERAA 8 8 - 8 100% 100% -
Dalian Andre Juice Co, L1d. NERENRGITARAR 56,000000 56,000,000 - 56000000 7% 75% -
Binzhou Andre Juice Co, L. ENEENRHHERL 107893488 107,893,488 - 10789488 7% 7% -
Vanta Andre Juice Co,, Lic RazENRHHERAT 30000000 30,000,000 - 30000000 75% 75% -
Yongi Andre Juice Co, Lid KEREHREIERAT TTA390T T 443907 - T 7% 75% -
Anyue Andre Lemon Industy ZEREHEREFHAERAT
Technology Co, Lid. 52120000 52120000 - R12000 100% 100% -
Sub-otel gt SI35664 573355647 - 57335647 -
Fouity methooint verture [Ear-pets
Yantai Tongl Beverage Industies Co,  BRSHEHIEERA
Lid 500006 19476107 (19476,107) - - - -
Subrtota it 2500006 19476107 (19.476,107) - - - -
Totd H] SOBHOTS BB ™A (19476,107) 57334 -
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFIMEREREEREHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (&)
8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d) 8 RHEIRERE(E)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the (2) REJIRIER &R FEZE)E 7
year are as follows: (cont'd) war (&)
2014 —ZE—JUF

Book value of long-ferm equity investment

RERERERRER

a Shareholdng  Voting rights

d  Icrease/ 31 December  percentage  percentage  Cash didend

Ivestment cost 1 January 2014 Decrease 14 (%) % fortheyear
E#EE  EERE

Bk EfifiE i

Investeg B EE RERK 1818 EEEY  12R%R sthile) thle  BedH
Cost method-subsidiaries RAE-TA7
Baishui Ancfe Juice Co, Lt AKREHEATERAA 110,630,130 110,830,130 - 110830,130 75% 75% -
Vanta Longkou Anore Juce Co, Lid.  [RAERREAETHERAE 80626% 8062269 - 806226% 7% 7% -
Yuzhou Andre Juice Co, Lt ENRENRRITERAT 5865418 58645418 - BG4I 75% 75% -
Andre Juice Co,, Lid. RENSTARA 8 8 - 8 100% 100% -
Dallan Andre Juice Co, Lt RERENRRTARAA 56000000 56,000,000 - 56000000 0% 0% -
Binzhou Andre Juice Co, Lt EMRERE HEARAE 107893488 107,893,488 - 107893488 75% 75% -
Vantal Andre Juice Co,, Lid. ReaxENRHERL 30000000 30,000,000 - 30000000 75% 75% -
Yongi Andre Juice Co,, Lt KEREHRATERA T390 7443907 - TR0 7% 7% -
Anyue Andre Lemon Industy PERENRERRHAERAT

Techndlogy Co, Lt 52120000 - BI000 52120000 100% 100% -
Subtote 15 BT3GAT G124 52120000 573,355,647 -
Equity methodint verture Ear-ngl%
Yantai Tongi Beverage feffsHIzERAR

Industries Co, Ltd. BO00D 28559606 (L0839 19476107 25% 2% 490500
S i (U BE S 0 e
Totd Aif SORHATY  BATOSAM3  4B(36A11 52831754 4,905,000
The detail of the Company’s subsidiaries is set out RATFRAAINEBAEERR
in note VII.1. s+ - 1

214 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&ait AR EFRTROERLDF



Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE
(#8)

8 REIRERE(E)
B) BELEEE
HEAEE28MER  90Q) °

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(3) Details of the joint venture
The detail is set out in note V 9(3).

9 Fixed assets
(1) Details of fixed assets

9 BEEEE
(1) BlEEERBK

Office &
Plant&  Machinery & other Motor
buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
BER HORER
ltem A BEY BERE AR ERIR At
Cost RE
At 1 January 2014 201451718 99,802,726 121,725,706 7,847,281 4,053,163 233,428,876
Additions during the year REEN
- Purchases -kE 859,340 2,046,782 145,888 9,188 3,061,198
- Transfers from construction in progress ~~ ~EETREA 66,355 - - - 66,355
Disposals or written-offs during the year AERERAE - (45,614) (86,406) - (132,020)
At 31 December 2014 2014127317 100,728,421 123,726,874 7,906,763 4,062,351 236,424,409
At 1 January 2015 201551418 100,728,421 123,726,874 7,906,763 4,062,351 236,424,409
Addtions during the year REEN
- Purchases -EZ 2,051,772 1,270,499 69,547 98,291 3,490,109
- Transfers from construction in progress -fRIREA 6,604 - - - 6,604
Disposals or written-offs during the year AEREUHE - - (661,510) (826,474)  (1,487,984)
At 31 December 2015 20155124318 102,786,797 124907373 7314800 37334168 238,433,138
Accumulated depreciation ESEiE
At 1 January 2014 014£171H (28,383,840)  (59,507,728) (6,557,518) (3,107,067)  (97,556,143)
Charge for the year TR (1873,642)  (4,708,644) (247,345 (336073 (7,165,704)
Disposals or written-offs during the year TERET R - 5,043 77,165 - 83,708
At 31 December 2014 2014127317 (30,267,482 (64,210,429 (6,727,098) (3,443,130)  (104,638,139)
At 1 January 2015 201551 A1A (30,257,482)  (64,210,429)  (6,727,098)  (3,443,130)  (104,638,139)
Charge for the year TR (1,880940)  (4,693,374) (30,865) (22,761)  (6,627,940)
Disposals or written-offs during the year TERET R - - 43,705 467,957 911,662
A3 Decnte 201 WEERIA e GRNOR) G2 RMTe  [H0gs4dn)
Provision for impalrment HEEE
At 1 January 2015 201551418 - - - - -
Charge for the year TER - (480,787) - - (480,787)
At 31 December 2015 016F128%8 - ot - - l4s08n)
Carrying amounts REEE
At 31 December 2015 2015F 127317 70,648,375 55,612,783 1,000,542 336,204 127,597,934
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 70,470,939 59,516,445 1,179,665 619,221 131,786,270
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

9 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(1) Details of fixed assets (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
no fixed assets with restrictions were placed on the
Company’s ownership.

(2) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
no fixed assets were acquired under finance leases.

(3) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
no significant fixed assets were leased out under
operating leases.

(4) Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,

the Company did not have fixed assets with pending
certificates of ownership.
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11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE
(#8)

9 BEEEEHE)

(1) BE&EBR (&)
7201512 A31 H & 20144F
128318 » "RAEMARE
ZEIRHBOETEE ©

() BAMEHEHRANETEE
187
7K2015F 12 A31H & 20144F
12H3818 A AR EMREM
ERANETEE °

(8) BBAL S THE T H A EE B E
7K20156%F 12 31 H k20144
12H381H » ARAIEEALK
EHEATNETEE -

(4) KPR EEFZNETEER
i
7K20156%F 12 31 H k20144
128318 * "RA|ERMZ
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAGIMBERRXETERHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (¥,)
10 Intangible assets 10 BEEE
Land use rights
ltem HE TihfE g
Cost BRERE
At 1 January 2014 201441 HA1H 35,349,854
Additions during the year ARFIE AN
— Purchases —BE 205,128
At 31 December 2014 2014%12/318 ?7_5_,_5_5_4_,9?3_2_
At 1 January 2015 20151 A1 H 35,554,982
Additions during the year ARFIE NN
- Purchases —BE -
At 31 December 2015 2015%12/314 ?_5_,_5_5_‘_1-1?_8_2_
Accumulated amortization RET#EE
At 1 January 2014 201441 A1H (5,927,662)
Charge for the year REFHE (755,624)
At 31 December 2014 2014912 A31H (6,683,286)
At 1 January 2015 201541 18 (6,683,286)
Charge for the year REFHE (967,692)
At 31 December 2015 2015%F12/31A | (z,§5_9:??_8_)
Carrying amounts REEE
At 31 December 2015 2015412 A31H 27,904,004
At 31 December 2014 2014512 831H 28,871,696

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, all 2015512 A31H k2014512 A
of the Company’s land use rights are held on medium- 318 - ARFIFELMFERAESR
term lease. FRHERFE A o
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAGIMBERRXETERHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
10 Intangible assets (cont’d) 10 B EE ()
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the 7R2015F12 A31H Kk2014%F12H
Company did not use any intangible assets as mortgage 318 ' RRAREBEERNELE
for bank loans. E e
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the 7R2015F12 A31 H &2014F 124
Company did not have land use rights with pending 318 - ARGERWNLZERTE
certificates of ownership. R REER -
11 Deferred tax assets 11 EEFEREE
(1) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets (1) RHEGREIE AT 137 & EE B A
2015 2014
ltem 15 H —Z—hF —T—MOF
Deductible tax losses Al IEE 24,762,786 19,169,145
(2) In accordance with the accounting policy set out (2) B E= - 28FTE 25t
in Note I1l.23, the Company has not recognised BE BRARATERA]
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses RS AR EHEEED
of RMB24,762,786 (2014: RMB19,169,145) as it is RRERAE - Bt AR F]
not probable that future taxable profits against which M R Bt A R #24,762,786 7T
the losses can be utilised will be available to the (20144 : AR#19,169,145
Company. Deductible tax losses of RMB19,169,145 TR RBE A EHNEERRE
and RMB5,593,641 will expire in 2019 and 2020, EAEMREE - Hp: AR
respectively. The deductible tax losses can be #19,169,145 7T ~ 5,593,641
deducted from future taxable income within 5 years 7T ' D AR 20194 ~ 2020
from the year when such losses were incurred under FHE - BBIMITHOE - BLE
current tax law. AEABEBREFER - 7

VATE S 8 38 5 F 1) B ) A 4K+
RFEHAE ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAGIMBERRXETERHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
12 Short-term loans 12 HHIERK
2015 2014

ltem IHH —Z-RFE _—TOF
Credit loans ERER 115,000,000 185,737,000
Pledged loans BB SR 32,468,000 =
Guaranteed loans REBEEN 289,000,000 237,500,000
Total A&t 436,468,000 423,237,000
As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, 7201512 A31H &2014F12H
the Company did not have past due short-term loans 31H - ARFED B HREED
(including short-term loans and long-term loans due within & 3 (B 435 58 R g 3O — & R &) B
one year). RREER) ©

13 Accounts payable 13 FEERRX
The ageing analysis of accounts payable is as follows: FERBRFURIRES DT AT -

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
Ageing BRER —ZE—hF —E—OF
Within 6 months (inclusive) 616 A AR (& 61E 4 ) 196,200,464 54,122,859
Over 6 months but within 1 year FEGESEAGRED)

(inclusive) 4,134,202 1,513,559
Ovar | v 144+ 1,715,398 44,392,404
Total =X 202,050,064 100,028,822
The ageing is counted starting from the date when BREL B FEN BR AE SR B IR 5T
accounts payable are recognised. =
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

14 Employee benefits payable
(1) Details of employee benefits payable:

Short-term employee benefits 52 H B

Post-employment benefits BB
- defined contribution plans — & EiRfFE
Total At

Short-term employee benefits 2B

Post-employment benefits B EA
- defined contribution plans — &R al
Total BEt
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11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE
(#8)

14 & 5B T %7 B
(1) FE(TB T EH 3T -

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2015 the year the year 2015
2015% 20156
1R10 &8 EEEM FERY 1283108
2,463,514 13,653,511 13,979,603 2,137,422
- 1,107,945 1,107,945 -
2,463,514 14,761,456 15,087,548 2,137,422
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2014 the year the year 2014
201445 20145
1R1E%E REHEN AERD 128315
1,778,254 10,773,339 10,088,079 2,463,514
- 853,578 853,578 -
1,778,254 11,626,917 10,941,657 2,463,514
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE
(#8)

14 BB ITHM (&)
2) F2E %

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

14 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)
(2) Short-term employee benefits

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2015 the year the year 2015
2015 20156
1A1B8# EERM FERYD 12B3108E
Salaries, bonuses, allowances I8 %% 2
and subsidies GilkeE 1,581,500 10,863,261 11,067,477 1,377,284
Staff welfare BIENE 882,014 1,882,393 2,004,269 760,138
Social insurance HERRE
Medical insurance BERRE - 369,315 369,315 =
Work-related injury insurance IEREE - 58,035 58,035 -
Maternity insurance BERBE - 52,759 52,759 =
Housing fund FEAES - 171,082 171,082 -
Labour union fee and TeKBEMBT
staff education fee HERE - 256,666 256,666 -
Total A 2,463,514 13,653,511 13,979,603 2,137,422
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2014 the year the year 2014
20145 20144
1R1B 8% REEM AERD 12831848
Salaries, bonuses, allowances 1% - ®e 28
and subsidies GilkeE 896,240 10,203,900 9,518,640 1,681,500
Staff welfare BIEHNE 882,014 109,374 109,374 882,014
Social insurance HeRkE
Medical insurance BERRE - 284,526 284,526 -
Work-related injury insurance IBGRRE = 44,710 44,710 =
Maternity insurance ERRE - 40,647 40,647 =
Housing fund FERES - 66,202 66,202 =
Labour union fee and SEENRT
staff education fee HELE = 23,980 23,980 =
Total Bt 1,778,254 10,773,339 10,088,079 2,463,514
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

14 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)

(3) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE
(#8)

14 BB THMN (&)
(3) BEBIE AT —REEfFal &

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2015 the year the year 2015

2015 20156

1R10 &8 EEEM FERYD 12B3108E

Basic pension insurance BEAREZRR = 1,055,186 1,055,186 =
Unemployment insurance RERBE - 52,759 52,759 =
Total E&r - 1,107,945 1,107,945 -
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2014 the year the year 2014

20145 20144

1H1B%%E REEM AERD 12831 BHE

Basic pension insurance EREERR - 812,931 812,931 =
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 40,647 40,647 =
Total CH - 853,578 853,578 -

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the
Company has no payment in arrears in the balance

of employee benefits payable.

15 Other payables

[tem
Subsidiaries

Other related parties
Third parties

Total

Rl

FAT
H A BB A R

P
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2015912 A31 H & 20144
128318 @ "AREMET
NP ERE R L E R FIE o

15 HMERR

2015 2014
—E-HE —T—WNOF
117,961,572 95,027,273
- 132,889
42,648,581 18,869,586
160,610,153 114,029,748
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(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

16 Capital reserve
2015

[tem

Share premiums
Foreign currency translation difference

Total

2014

[tem

Share premiums
Foreign currency translation difference

Total

R
BAAE
SNEBAFEES
At

A

AR
SRR ES

11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE

(#)
16 EXANE
—Z—hF
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during during the end
of the year the year the year of the year
E:2)) 3] EEREM *ERYD FRBHA
120,855,295 - 19,522,248 101,333,047
9,926 - - 9,926
120,865,221 - 19,522,248 101,342,973
—TlF
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance at
the beginning during during the end
of the year the year the year of the year
FRE REHE KERD ERBE
138,628,538 - 17,773,243 120,855,295
9,926 - - 9,926
138,638,464 - 17,773,243 120,865,221
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAGIMBERRXETERHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (#8)
17 Surplus reserve 17 BB AR
2015 —ZE—hEF
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
Item HE FEMERE FERM FREH
Statutory surplus reserve ETE BB NIE 104,236,707 1,558,152 105,794,859
2014 —ZT—F
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
Item JHE FMNEEE REHEN FREAEE
Statutory surplus reserve EERERNTE 103,144,993 1,091,714 104,236,707
18 Operating income and operating costs 18 B A ~ EERAK
2015 2014
—E-1f e S tiea
Income Cost Income Cost
ltem L] A BE WA AR
Principal activities TREK 596,798,223 523,230,489 578,368,900 490,421,657
Other businesses Hfth 7% 8,961,740 7,747,437 8,578,294 8,147,241
Total G 605,759,963 530,977,926 587,447,194 498,568,898
Principal activities income primarily represents income TEEBIMAERERNRNTNEE
arising from the sales of condensed juice and relative BAMBEEEREEWA -
products.
Other businesses income primarily represents income EMERKATIERESEYEH
arising from the sales of packaging materials. R NE=E
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

19

20

Financial expenses

[tem

Interest expenses on bank borrowings

repayable wholly within five years
Interest income from deposits
Net exchange gains
Other financial expenses

Total

Investment income

[tem

Income from long-term equity
investments accounted for
using equity method
Investment income from disposal of
long-term equity investments
Investment income from
financial assets during the
investment period

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE

(48)
19 B EH
2015 2014
15 H —E—hF —ZT—puE
RAFANZHEEEZRTERFE
=g 25,548,674 35,097,790
FREF BIA (206,138) (782,809)
HIE B s (4,723,808)  (1,033,944)
H b8 A 246,600 990,127
A& 20,865,328 34,271,164
20 RE W=
2015 2014
TH H —E—hF _—TUF
A E N R E W
855,166 821,411
BB RAARERE EENRE R
8,873,928 -
TREEEREHRRNEE KR
2,511,608 1,087,855
A% 12,240,702 1,909,266
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5IRE9Hs) - 2 RREBARRTT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

21 Income tax expenses

[tem

Effects of adjusting income tax in
previous years

(1) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and

accounting profit is as follows :

[tem

Profit before taxation

Expected income tax expenses
at tax rate of 25%

Effect of non-taxable income

Effect of non-deductible costs,
expenses and losses

Effect of unrecognised deferred
tax asset for deductible loss

Effect of adjusting income tax
for previous year

Income tax expenses

(#)
21 FRSHLE R

Note
THH ==

2015
—E—hF

]
fig
N\
Ik
_FR
o
Ry
i
=i
R
I

(1) -

11 BRFIMERREIEREEE

2014
—EF—-NF

(1,097,308)

(1) FrisH & HEETFIEAE

mE
2015 2014
HE —E—-RFE _—_ZTmF
BRITAE 15,581,516 9,819,834
LR 25% 5T H R TEEAFTIS IR
3,895,379 2,454,959
FEBBRANZE (5,413,986)  (7,247,245)
AAHEIIRIAAS ~ B A
BRRTE 120,197 -
RERERELEFMESHEEN
BEi#al A 1,398,410 4,792,286
FARABIFEFSHNFE
- (1,097,308)
REFEHER - (1,097,308)
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

22 Supplementary information on cash flow statement
(1) Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating

activities:

[tem

Net profit

Add: Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment provisions for assets
Financial expenses
Investment income
(Increase)/decrease in gross

inventories

Decrease in operating receivables
Increase in operating payables

Net cash inflow from operating
activities

(2) Change in cash and cash equivalents:

[tem

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of
the year

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 Ak Y A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRIFFEAS) - 2 BB BARET)

(#)

11 BRFIMERREIEREEE

22 HERERBAER

(1) #EF BN BACE)E B HE %
TE
2015 2014
BE —E-1f ket
FME 15,581,516 10,917,142
n:BEEERE 6,627,940 7,165,704
B EERH 967,692 755,624
BEREEE 480,787 -
HEER 25,266,061 33,904,338
RE W= (12,240,702) (1,909,266)
FEHRGEM),/ B

(22,400,001) 96,792,637
LM REYIEE R 32,592,986 38,968,440
LRI B g 115,765,252 30,938,147

REEPHEENRASTEFE
162,641,531 217,532,766

Q) ReREEEEYFLEEIE

I
2015 2014

HHE “B-HEF _—TNF
Re MRS FEMNFRBE

44,849,439 180,498,375
B Be kRS EEYNFIRE

180,498,375 423,377,863
B RRSFEMFHIE

(135,648,936) (242,879,489
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BR1FFIE RSN » 2B E ML B ARKET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

22 Supplementary information on cash flow statement
(cont’d)
(3) Details of cash and cash equivalents:

11 BAFIMBERREIEREEE

(#8)

22 RERBRB\AEN (H)

(3) HEME 2 FEYLIEX

2015 2014
ltem 15 H —Z-hF —T-NMOF
Cash at bank and on hand e 44,849,439 180,498,375

Including: Cash on hand Hrh: EFRe 188,504 32,951
Bank deposits AIRBERF AP ST HY
available on demand RITIF K 13,160,935 180,465,424
Closing balance of cash and FERRE RIA S EEBYHRE
cash equivalents 44,849,439 180,498,375
Including: Restricted cash and Hr : RNARIEAXER A
cash equivalents REMBLERBY
held by the
Company 31,500,000 -

XVICOMPARATIVE FIGURE

The comparative figures of 2014 represent figures for the
twelve months period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2014. Certain items in these comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform to the current period’s presentation
to facilitate comparison.
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2014 F ML EREBFTEH2014F1 A1
HZ2014%F12 A31H 1E+ =& A &8
MHET - BHEMTEAARENLR -
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